) SBemng mn Bzt BB HEm ¢Dmnde
.- ymasuimev wpgd wgEmd erar CaAu oiFsmyssmu
4 National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

2018

B8 OBIE
2460T(h BV MD
Annual Report




2018

NHB» DIBHD

&8emng ) dexeid 88 HHBH» gldmdG



cBemne ® Bexend BT HBD DG

2018 B8 HBond e



6530deH»

eBemng ® ®cmend BBRe HBm aglmded
(NATA) d&Scgwén B88e 6600t 69
BEENDDE e D DB Be 2O0® @ Do
D558 O ©5eHBD 600 OVHD W WO
56R. 608 DNEDE 6mMORNOT €3585(3) &ree)
gRoded emsy DVEEND  SeHdd® @O
O8BSCE.

1971 eotd 38 o Bed 26d 14 O» DOBS®
©® EHENE® OVemIBeE® 0D, lmIdG
OB OO BBenE SOO &dms O &md
D5 OO dxed D6l emORGT &M
IBEEND®E, DBHBD BE® 5t BHIDIDSBE®
OVNEDE.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

2018 )68» Bomd 3



cBemne ® Bexend BT HBD DG

2018 B8 HBond e



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

s0,®
01. es0de® 3
02. &g®» 5
03. ®® EB3DD 6
04. eHNdzes EEBEEDD 7
05. etesSBn@Ie6 sFMBEG 9
06. cus® 12
07. e®e®»do 12
08. @y 12
09. »bOS 13
10. glswis O eH@IBEDBS 15
11. 2018 &esed 3eBc (2018 350000 1 80 £t 31 £258))
1111 90 5066305 16
11.1.2 eexn8m Fu@db® 17
11.1.3 DEOBESD Sihds 5&®) hdm) e308BRD Drf)esdws) 18
11.1.4 @060 Secme wEies 5NH8m BH® 21
11.1.5 Ee35s eCm® mHmIede ey S@hdS e 22

28 EDOTDS 38 HVe® Drded®mD
11.1.6 &BemE ) ®exend eNEMEB EH) E85H eBedeIkm WEIENHEE SMBH SO 23

11.1.7 @805 et @ e £Bemg ) B0 508N Drdesd®sS 24
11.1.8 @85, DOcNBS €569 PR e WEIENBE 5w crrds BBe® Drtlesd®mes 25
11.1.9  epthede 0389 66DesDOTS E3E®) 3EIOtds MENSded® Dit)ead®m® 27
11.1.10 80®® 5ebh®» OB 27
11.1.11 6®5 ed® 6di® SNOHMG BEH) CL6EHmS N BERE DOD 28
11.1.12 eDee codd &5t dbvR® DBenNdE 2018 29
11.1.13 8ndgn ee30) 29
11.1.14 e@3™ Bemg 80&n Exnc - 2018 30
11.1.15 eH550 58eBEme 65 DSBS (le3d® 31
11.1.16 ¢BemE M6 BERe BB I - 2030 Oxesascm 31
11.1.17 e@3Bc B8 e e esnc 32
11.1.18 £@0&D £BemE SN0 DEOHS 33
11.1.19 £Bemg 65@HI®® i) cOdS grmm SO BERE sHedsenc 34
12.  DEO®O EENE® / OB OSTREG
121 £5086h® D596 35
12.2  2018.12.31 E®0 630w €505 6:IORGT 36
13. QE5 5806
131 @5 5H®® 37
132 @QE5 5DIGD BEH) 0D 41
13.3 B®NABE DVDID 5IBSD 49

2018 968» B>»dD 5



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

@t m DHD

ORd 1 £.8.29. gldmde 59D B06S GOV BENHDS DES DN &8 &) 17
ORd 2 £.8.29. glmde 59D BO6H BHeD 6639DS VWBWOGTS B 5O &S 9E) 17
D®D 3  2018.12.31 E»DO 6e30wm 30D25) 6MODOT 36

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

%110z @B 5D

00z 1 €59 2
&0z 3 e 4
e300z 5 €5t 6
e$)dzes 7, 8 &9 9
e300z 10
e300z 11
&0z 12

e300z 13

eHdzeses 14

&30z 15

300236 16

9300z 17

e$dzeses 18
e$dzeses 19

&30z 20

&30z 21

e300z 22 5% 23

&0z 24, 25, 26
&) 27

280300z 28 6529 29

e$300ze363 30

e$)0300ze305 31

e$dzes 32, 33, 34
&% 35

&30z 36

1 RESNBO B Besd 68398 3VBBWOOTSGE BIGRIDMDEB
: DEOCE O®eD 6639DB VWBWOOTEE 3D
: ®Be5 eI 6639DB BVBWBWOOTEE 39eD

B3 68395 BVBBWOOTEE® 9EHeS BHO

: BRDS®red @060 Sewed D@

1 639RB 658 W@IBG BN DB O @B

: @93 6395 OHBBWOGS PG NEME BBRE eHds Fwdhi® BO®

: O®® £9).63. MVEEGE Besdy BN e NS uey BHeD

RIEAF O]

: BB £9.63. VEEEE BDeBY BEMNDS 3EH) LoD e BHE®

Rl

: GEDD £9).6Q0. MVEIEEE Wedy BENDS BEem) 5MENEodS &gy BHe®

RIdA OO

: 2NOBBE £9).6@. DVEEEE ey HMDS BEm) 5ENmotds megy BHe®

ROl

: ®esed ®) gBemig BONoOEN Hded® O 5Dy 6EH0 63 MVGBIRDR

DeBE BEMDS 650® @EIDD 3@

: OO BB wed e®esde)cn WEIENG® SMBD SO
: @HRDO EBHHDeE 38eInD DEENEE SSNBD BOH®
: HPDSEO gOSE BBOY ®B®® GeH) BcseNd 6w e SO

RIS

: 0 OB B0 ®d@HD 3eHm) BereNd 5 cBemE BOIOH Difesdws
: ReBe ELi8nwed DOt®n DOTHHBS BEew) BRSO ©® &Bemg SO0

RIS

: eNE® El5med €@ eew) BD5EN0 5t £BemE BD0EN Defesdmws

: epEbede %) 6eDESDOTS EEM) 3EIOTDS 8 BHe® Dtlesdmws
: R DB 60I® BENOMEB EH) CLGEH WHOED) BEdec DRFOD,

sZaleralele]

: @] DeB®Dm Ce36c®mNEG BBRAEC 5Smey) eNABI@D
: 6@ &880 BedID Emek 2018

1 68 08D cBemg BD0HG BBRE aeIE HV®OWODS 5O® C6s®me Clt3D®

2018 268 D65mD



cBemne ® Bexend BT HBD DG

2018 B8 HBond e



BMIBD 5OIGH
&5 &7 B

2018 e300 31 80 6ce5c®dW 31 e E e
2E cBmIE 58 BeseNd BERAC eHBD GlmdG
BB ®H) @R D GBS BOH &5 BemodN
Q) e BEowd® BERE NOEE
238503 608 D DO GG 3ceH® 3O®
&0 6Re) ®e) BS.

6DetBE® cBemE ©® BentNd NEMDEB W
6nNged Bog HDIOEE OcOS cHENBDG
B0 BeH) s BOSNB cHBeD ©®
EBHEEING 60T FB®OT 5SS 6685eNE
8Bdetden @mm) 60D 566 REDD rmB® 500
B eem) 606 OEMNDS woOmS® O 8.
060 gBewmng ©® BeseNd HNOE BEEsOHS
EBEE) DIGEWROG 56e5B@ Eem) DSOS glBD®
OFINEG 6D EVemIBEE®E 5resd® 5w 0
DBNE DO 6DNEDS ®Or 6839RS FOIDS
OB 3OS Bt 6D EeS66 MADGDESED
8% »05658). 508D 695 BB cr® DE
& 63 6aMO® 60I® t30eHME DE B 58
BeseN0 NEBECE PSSO 51 DIeODD® )
eCTEBOG CamBDE O ETED.

Det3®, 66595 FBIDBIHEE 558D BRNIDS®
S5, B0 6He® Fu®ed HEEBO®NO
8 ER@SdO® 8B&ts SF@® GG BHEHE)
& S 6698 6CmBDNGEIEH®S, FeS6E Gr33ese
€5 50RHE 60D 9N 9BEG BBNOGE DM
BB5DS SHNBOOE®S €59 Hecsiess alsmies
B0NBDOTH6MmS €5 FBIDBIOHEE 6T 6NN
60® B8gdec V®Iomed Bog VG BLIRE
ENEDHESE®mS BOROD g5 6D  QIeRD®
BBBD ©HeEIBMD 6w  Eemon  e0®HS
B0 ¢ 0 @0 MDD WO ®5B. 5oz
VEODODS (B3 HeBeOs RO DS T
OB ©®eimne s gldnded ®OrmORD
B 595D & 56d.

6@ 6395 30DNDEE B LNEME BERE
6088 9O 63D WWEEEB HBOKS EeseE
DEINSO GDHOS 5w DEHNOE DG B
5W®ODOT 8 e 6@ 66595 50DIMEB
O® b 6@MBPB, D@BG 5 60O] B0
6@3.6639. £30DNBDEES &3O QTERD) &) BOICIES

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

eEi®el D0mm® B WG GXIMTEDG. &8s
660 cBemE IRDEHRH tNNHDG 60D NSO
SO €58503) LG 6@3.6659. t50DNWDGCS
&% clemng )eG 88 688 OOf 63mB
IBEIEEES &g 6D QIREY ©dns  &®
MDD cesece 68.

cBemng ) ®exeNd B8ERe H&D gldmded
FBDS OFIEEES B 60D HOSDHOGHS @T6RD
MOcED DOEH, esndS cece ©w HBHelsm
®® 6Re®IS gmn OB, glnded Desd®me)
8 o0&, FHNBDD 5t DB O BB OB
5500 Fn e D®EnS comdm 8 Sed.
QBB BOTAE 5855 52 EeNEBV® 5ee3
20 §EHDOm @O DO VS VEDS BB
5830 o ded s Brg 6608 DS
RDEOS PO BHDELEE FrHOB &) ARIGHEE.
50 OB 6ceNVDHEBTNOQ &® FIGEDHOR
Foc® ey Oresd®ns  ad  Srsew
5O erdd BDDIOGHES GBS BHERG
#R®IdeE ®OEHORD oo o Bel.

eMTEEHOB WIS  e®m  SBen B,
&®eEDD DHBG MOB®EEE glswe BSIR@G
DE FREV) BB ¢S eend ®OT FRIDBHDE)
B8 PO R 2O NNBwoSems )
BOBOOD > Bk, DD GomOE HeniBmnsided
23aQERD €39 ERIDEE IVEESO 3aesd® eI
Demee, ctmne®s @i D) DiBedE alses
BFROG BW® ESoDOIDEE.

G395 FRIDBIO®E BOGS &8 DB GRS,
FEDBo®EB 5 O g DS BO®,
Dex8ens® 66D 6OI® WEBHEHRE B
DOCMOBOEEHS (D o5 FRFID  DOED
B0 ®B00 BERed g gB®RE ©m)
De®E). HFEDB®ERS FS GO  QIGRD
BWEEIHG  gsded®n O god cBemg ©®
BBENO eNEDEG BBRE HOE) BIBGS @@L
DEDNEDO DIV @S B, §0) 6@HemIB:S
c®® DVED BEHS DO &TD.

2206 OB BemE 6@ CBME DBBBEG 8d
GO ONHMOD 65BRD HO® gesd O

2018 268w D)Bond



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

10

6®» 6e5HD. 2014 Beset STEPS e8xiesenedd
55 80068 DBB0 e 60X D) Bz,
D»® 2015 Desed 6mIPHL DoOE e
B DBHE 59 OV WO® @ BNBG e5BSLN
®NOD 68 BCH) BB cOB. B BeBHBOO
DO 66®] ez &S o 68 e GO O
eDODEBOBS €52B8@O 25550 OO &THENS
6O B0 BrHIIBMD CDIOD BSEHWLN
ROBDE FDHBBDO @I DOX) &, EBEIG 5%
®epse0 6000 OBR BKES 85 DB®H®S OO
D00 OB® gm0, Bg® 6® ®»G DO
®5 ¢ Ted FTmRDER) AVBND & 9wde)
68. e 60I® 6@emIOGE BE®) & 5ih®
6D DXes cdeme ©® BextNd DD &amd
DB B® RE6E DEIBMOD e’ GOD
B Bedm god DB 35OQES 6@ bl
R &g 68.

8OWe oRERRD® B Dzowd B
882DBS &3 @RI OB e, BOTECE BERES
®erend sdemiesm: wo® oS, 9 DE,
DDDOE 6e550)B O VDS BesenNd DD
OXB3Bn BERe O O8N DBelelded 68D
68. ©5@t5 T deE sDeIsDE & 658D
9BEG OB GO, BDOHENEE DNE HEGDEGEE,
DexBerns® MEMOS SBg  Oenenocs
sBe®3e3DE emOD RO trESedE, g ©6d
D ONeseS  eNWE  WOSHWER T &5E®RE
Oeszss  sDemwismn eMBE®D BT OB
QWE®B. &B5eE VWG OBl BesenddBe
D® BG 68 BerstNd NG NEHDE HO®
Bem O 6Bt oo &g gd®ms DHOD
ROBDE DTS emBEDL DS HEHHOH®
®Be® 600 G®rsc ©PSHEE 6@ COD®
6®ORD 8cd» OBEH OB DD ODC.
®epend OB grSBn ®ed 6e39Rs, bW 5
SEOEG OIBG FE®RS gHOD RdS Be®
D30 BB E s BOeseNd NEBDGB VOSDE
6EE EB3RD ®® @ONG. BexeNd NED
D 0®DO FB®OT S5MDSBROS MIGDDOG
8 a8 g0 DB P £0WBID DOBTHO BEes
OesB e30DND 589 BOQ e5®e3 e30DEND eO® epes
RO OED DS .

cBemg B Besetnd wdmn  OBm®HG
o DG GASDD Bem ®n % BHS
D Om, 6e® DO DENSO® 6@, M
cOemE IE® HEES OGO ©® 6@5.669.
e0DDG 6OBO oD DB KRS DS

2018 268 Dr6»d

T80 BYecm woOx @ a8 SEb®
o ONeE JVeWOMEB. & @od DemOEN
UBETHEE 31 KD HBNCHE SO® OGS
D® b g5 608 MBEEG BE®) MBEEDEE
DBV HESeHmS MDBHMD CB6ctS RH®
B0 B&es 6@53.6659. t30DMDG BR® e
5030608, 600 9HE® HEROD D» &md
Do el BV® o HPoIDOnm BOO eH) ofes
B EOIDBBEB LWEEIBG @R BB (D 6D.

eEBHD o® HEDD cBemng DO
DeHBEEHESGE t585I6HES e @RIOS 8 B8
2080 Oxed agc @00 Tee® @YD G®m®,
Bece@ ams #h)de o® To Btor FeIHEcOH
BB e3e®) ®rEH® g B0, B8 Desdmd 6850
o5t BRO D) &f) OB, BMHDNE Rewdsn
OGN OB 606 HODTGE @OX @IRNDEMID,
O30 TEBG G 6 deE RE eeHEE
QD) ®® B gd OE) dre®s Oxe £BeMs
DOBDSEE e30D56D FHEN® f)DON DO,
@B I8 and eO® DO i) Owee
BeOHNGE S, 639DNES 5 SHO®MEES EBE,
603 0GB, DRDDS, 6e39DB 5 PHID BB
&30 caddens’ e5c®D® BMesDE etEED BT
0D o3 BB wO®SBBe 0.

00 DG BN 5 BereNd Osesmed DXBSEEB
BIEDG B, £.0.09.6. S 5oeEIMEG
gD, OB B8 ®HDODD HEHNEBO
&gen SO0 gHao® e8md Hed a#S®OT
BDSBDOB6®S €56 EBIDSDAEICHS QTREN
EEIGGE. 98 B85k 608 @ B0HE SO
D0 g0 BRI 685 OB BEBSNHDED
80 B06 100 e @00 gedn DB
B0 e» B®OO 600 ® ol ecH
Qoo O8D eregde® HERNE® BB §
g®os e SO e Bemng ©® 8D
BCE) GOXE ®estnd e®) DEWOL LIVE
oe®) § 6:3sd OdD BE®S® & god 68.
590 Bewe 5oe@INDERO “t5odad” FOmIG
B88e cad) BVODHE 8 Frt® BRI
BB esoeren Ol RDD sBBD® 59 RRBED
BEMDSO 503 ReDE &5dd® Grs 68.

5880 D60 G0 erS® @ seH®d £.8.09).
gRNBB SHDO  oe@EIND DHINDD G395
FODBIOHE 5% £.8.29. DD B3 s
208 @Y g0 TNnE 6EHIOGE BB
OFEG gN®® 0K QW SHHZBSOO



98l BO® tcm) ceHBW® GBS 6t 6®
O® 80 emQBnr) DOBE 508. 5%es aGrHTd
BDDDN® DD Hod® dBO oM 693 e
DO Bt BeHOO 600 o@D 9dmad O
epeeD.

80 D550 60RO GBS BN (B FoB GCHSO
8 e3NDO DBBOG ) OBAMEG BBO NGB
0D S DO B @G DHIHEES (DD
B0 gesd oG, BSMNDE B BBRRG
& O5B0RD XD WO &S OB
B BFE DR D) 6O 90 OB
80» god VDR ©® odblmed Be®
gEBO M ®BS BHOO RBEO ®BOOO »HB®
a8ebn DB BFE NGBS GO®s Oy
oD, eSO, FOBS 630D oD FOGB)
633 WOR @R 65BN EBDIVBOE &5
el aroMoms Bgemr® &8 agod GRe®
630 oReD 6P DHNOT BODE EH
QBB DOED OB 0.

GE39RB, GSIBHN X LB 66DCS SFBIDBIOWED
5 gedRD  HV®O®OTDS, De®sens®
eRID® GE3IDS 30DNDEG OB EWEEIBDIMIOGHBSS
20 ©ed® B Dided®ms ©8ben BHAO
gANDBO  ®eHE) gd Tned  endoma
600 OVIED VB 6. goer BrE
®OEDODSBEB 5 FEDWS 6MOLSDODSEE
0B BJOBBHEE HBOREE 6@, £BGMSDBS
&es 000 8eD® BB Be® D0 59 DG BHesH
GE39RS HHHED 60O B0 OGS HBe®
D500 MEWDOE EBO £B6INE 5% Bensed
8B8Re eH5D DGO wrHO® OO Bweesnt
&30 Beld.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

F goo®, ®esend OBS Bedm NBEGE BRI
60 DIQGED DG NEDB VOO ® ¥ BrE
BouOO HEHNE® BN a5 DN 60606eB)
0@ DOBS @) OB B BBE SBHGEEI®E
FB e o 8.

gRNBeE &5t 6@Es, oREDS pE) BT,
80 TS 58 FHDEHGBEHRS CrDTDD
B8 e 90 oM, &.8.e9.6. eSS B0
QreR® BBBD) I X BHEEIME SERED
® OCHS DE GOG. FOEND DBEHS FeeE
ENHOBBDO VBTN, DexsenR® 6@
6t39Rs  30DN®EG, 6@ Rond, DBIHS
BetDeNBEE BB 60O cdtds ©®
GRS BEXE) e, 6PADVS BuODeEeE
B8 gom, 633 088 BEOBesE@G, Diess
Bs9e5e6ed 8Br0Q DEODeEB, D.259). e50DIMEB
€589 eHDBBDO GLILNWE BEH® 60D BIGE SR
56 DOBENE).

cBemng ® ®eBseNden® 60 & @omndw
B WOF).

66dexs S)DD PGS

=loSTo)]
&Bemng » Bzxe6 B8R HGwm glemndae

2018 268 D65mD

11



ePe®»dO

IO

cBemng ©® BcseNtdRE 6O &K ©®  £BemIE 5t BEneN0 eIEW 60 B EEDBERE®
®®He3DOD S eseE e@sn Bewed DOOD® eH) Br
SEEG gom Th® BOHO

1eJONOu)

12

O3 6e39S POBBLIEG EH) EBDEIE €5
Besend (99 g OBcOHs) &) HBRBR
303 39 DeEBD HrIBV® HEH) ®rS®.

BBenemwn, GeRDDOEG, SENOMEG &
cBemnEg ©®  ®cxsend D B
esdemiesnn B88ReD arrB® t® Slwe®nc
B0 BS B 5t BeseNd PG S
RIASIENRLON

cBemng ©® BextNd B BB 6O
35680»wd00 8 gD g8 SBde®%
E®EES, DeBBens® GBS £BeNDens

2018 Hb8m» Bomd

6] ®exend D) OO GeeBHEAS WOH
@R® FH® @TS.

£38308¢e, Drm@s Gl S BgRe 88 tswed
550, 00D DO®TE®, §DD Hod® €39
QR D WD FOwIG B BOO BB 5eHd
£BemnE 65 BerenddRS b WO tSe.

cBemng ® BexeNd 8BS S50 &g
20D BB DS SO ©eH) &BeIE
&% ®eseNd SNOE OelesDmesS &) 6OND
CBIBEND® 6l SVO ) DO 25odd.



VDO

cBemg By @) Besend BEde HBD
5586 BHEIDen OO HERVDDEBGS
DO cesece’ &®);

BDES FREHDDOGES 3 e QB
DDE0HS OBS 6595 VMG ED ®rd®
€389 €505 D®;

cBemne Bdee® ® Oestnd Bdesre®
sdemisnens cion d® MBG 4d® O
®eBO BE®) CeNB AMD® HHedm SO,

88 vl DG et 6®) e
BOO e HBD FBDNEIND DYBR) SNED
PFDEG BB B8 e BHO);

£BemnE o BesenNd BERE HSD uBSBBG
55D BOO eH) gdes On SBOs,
RewOL, SHBNED BH FOOND FOGS
B5@O® Stecm SOHO;

F 58058 Soon SO0 Bede Besn
®) OB BOHO;

8580 ®0R ©BDBEn SOO OB
B ol SHE BSBBOR BB D3O S
BOOO 03O cesect ENED;

cBeme » BcnseNd PR ®0g Bede
sbedeen ED®D e 8O s 58,

cOemng H&ee® ) Besend BEere®
e, demismne ®) geedeD geE
O, 639D B DD BLOE BBBBENE
BBO;

£Bemg ) Berend BEAT HBm gldan

cBemng ® BeseNd NTDDE ) HERRA)
sbedsen SO0, S5OBRDG o))
BRBIDOSNCS;

eBemng o BesenNd BERE ¢HB® BSSBBG
550D SHe®8 @ gO®B eSS 6OD
5% GBIEORD fomed BHE odNIDDR
BDMBROG @) @TBO);

cBemE o BexsenNd BERE eHSD SeDBG
5o BB® n odosesns SOHO
BEBRBVGES  FEd  geH  HmIBOG
EBV@cDB;

cBeme Bdee® ® Bexend B
SoB®, odewismn &) geedrd  gee
I, 695 ®) DD B0 ©BBBENE
850O);

cBeang o ®eseNd HTBBB ®) HBRSE)
sbed® ST, &5BR®CG o))
BBRDBDDOSIE;

eBemE o Besend BERe cHSm oSesS®
B5o50n SVe®8 @ GO®B XSS 6OD
5 GBIEHERD® fomed BHE oDNIDOQ
BDNBDOG @) @TBB);

eBemng o BesenNd BERE ¢HB® BSSBBG
S5 O o» odossns SO0
HORBEES  FEd geH  H®IBBOG
EBX@cDDB);

I —— 2018 B8 2B2ND



cBemne ® Bexend BT HBD DG

14 2018 B8 HBond e



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

GRS OBFIDEG

660es B GRS B®wm) - t5MNeSS
98.0. 65OBED o) - 8L 6 WS, FBIID EBIDBIOGES

660es QBB 8. 6tiPNo® - Heiss gsDe SHMNQ (66des 6638)), 6e9IRs Ge3BE ®) 68@EG
6eOES GFOIDBIOGE

D8.8. RHIENG @ - 6e558Q 5@mIO 63, SHEINS &) EGDIOROT EFBIDBIGE
Bouo® B - aBeHD 6Cm8, V@D ) DFNes OGS EBIDBIEH

603.8.965. BO®E @®on - FHELD 6Qwd, (6(39vD® DOED), 6YD® DOED &) g VRS
RIS

®ENVB 0% FeRE0® - eSS, NGO ®YB0) ED eHEW BHIRG

DE.65.8. @MHOVAD BHIN - 5OIDE EIBENVES 3DNAD

&80 BrcdDD W) - Beriess 6enNB3sS, & @omd

s ARDRBD.DB. BE®OD® - BANRDSS, e 660es Dy BA®, 683MeeHn DD BeRK
83695 EFe R ®ENDo®m B

6605 BQ HMBE

6605 C83 RGO

2018 268w D)Bond 15



16

2018 ®e36d 560G

(2018 S2® 1 80 625t8B 31 M)

M11 2006 gom 27 &6» gBemmg o
®ezs)6 88 HB» gtondeG
SO 668D S0

2006 gom 27 cb6» g@emng ® Bezse1d 8gde
B> gAMBE sHDO 6EIBD Soe@ID® OGS
SNdT® &8 HEIVH HeEIFMEDNGE 6ES
FANBEB MBEHBOMND 5 dESHIBDD 9®e
2oDOD Fewd OB.

6®® toemI® B8 emOBss  ©dsem
6ENHDEBBRDD BB 6B WO &S &md
g.®chHe ODBE ©OHGRDODG 60D  6e39DS.
eesIBEn 65 68K 6eDEH GFERIDBI®E BOM)
DO BE 6B e@ecm 60D 6608 o
&gy, e DD ) Erey OO B
GE39RB. BLIBIN 5 GEBE ©6DCS FRIDBIOBES &
8B Bdeen 98des O gro.

668 50 Soe®IDM

1. 50 BNSHWE 6 CE®ME e
cBemng 5w BeseNd NHEMEB 6 SHENOSN
Bo@® ) PRS0 eedes, BE 5w
FERWD WeBYHERE 5@ FEIDB &
DTS DS ENEBEWHS 563 6EE®W
eI ®T&O.

2. 3®0cMNBs® BBEND ®) PDEDOTDS,
3BTRS, BREDVRDS, 6OSSES],
BCR0 6DEHES 65 ®RE) DODDSS o)
& e ABded ero BHHD DD
6m® MHBO WrBHDH B8 #Dded PEDE
QWG HToD®.

3. &Beme 5w ®cxend BEencwed BBR) o
88 ©oeCR® ®) e Do SOO,
SODEDE BOO 5w 0SNG BOB eCH)
OO ®eHO® B8  Dded DEDE
QWG HToD®.

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond

10.

1.

12.

cBemg ) Bcrend BERE HBD DG
606 HEHHAM® TR0 66395 665EH
BEHDSO, B 65595  660es
BENDSO 5t W@ BENDSO BB 5O
DB BHds DEHBED Shd @iBtind0
Doy BO®.

1979 ot 15 0 eesNR) HE) BEND t50BBGCS
agbon DG O BEMHDS 6@ DRGED
BENDS e SO OB DO S@ihdsO
g8ebm pi®d / DEDE QNER.

Doew Be wo® 60 BeBOOO ¢55e0® O
B DT DO sd®) SBOOO e®
gOms 28, Docr BeBHO DRSS B
DTN, G FRoROD @eBBO &5t Sed)
®eBO0 REEED BEdSO gdesd eHED
BB DB BEHDBe® DeDE Ol BHO.

6®® &M 6508 BIDN® CCROBIEG
DOB Y Fedes ©eH e dtBnd
eeemes e D) B0@.

o® cBemg 6®] Bexend BBeNcHWHE
®RVEN O®, DpEn® 6% BBHO SEH)
980 ®O® SDFHES® gRde, 180 &fh)
DB AE@D B ®ode B8gde
B0 5c8®.

360» D®EGESRE GBS ®rdets SdOGHD B0
B Bomm gOED DG 68 ®exend M3
£BemnE BEencmns DRSO, DB ts&®)
BOxc®® 6] OBNO eH) gded @R E®
DeEro®.

BYelm OH DG S dE Ozes®n
Ge39Rs FONEEE Flo® TR 500
seb®HG BOHD.

aSVHEG 63 8 B Grdd BrE
OBESES Besend BBesem e®3 e
BN, @ocsD, DBE 306EI®  HEVGSDE
BHOe® B e5cnde.

@80 6300 &3t e5cOQDE 3 EBeNHE
BCH) D) OB CemoOd@  &reydt®
BED) FROWOS O8D &reyde® wE) E8.



cBeme o Bexend BBRE eH&D aldn

1.1.2. cendHm» H§ErNB®
ORD 1: £.8.69. glmdG 59 O gORE BEMDS BDEs OO a8 i)

DE O6EsmODR0 cBeme Bdecy IBLe® BOE 985

BBER BNDE &8 DB BHEB® Do 1,866

OBRD 2 : £.0.9. FDMOG 5B S B 6e39Rs DWBWOOTS DES SOG) gt ®E)

esSsdme 5820 e 6595 FOMe 5% OB O &BeINE
SH2HOE &8 DBSmEDSO HBs12m6d FgRo®m 06, HWIS 5@rc
S16 5B6® cBeong SH3s1cn BCHD 6O gBemng HB3Be®
dbée S55He® doe I55H6e® doe
BHHDO O O O O O O 6INBT
(CLNClde) (ClNClde)
&8e300 03 OB @O OB O MO
ClaNClde)
s> lerAlele] 10 O O BN O ©NB
(Lo
R® 11 O O BN O ©NB
(CLNClde)
GINE® 11 O O OB @O 6O
(ClNClde)
DOTHE®R 04 OB @6 OB O 6O
ClNClde)
CIONNONOIG] 11 OB @6 OB DO 6O
(ClNClde)
eeNe@BHOD 04 OB @6 OB @O 6O
(ClNClde)
(©)lere) 03 OB O OB O 6O
ClaNClde)
e 16 02 00
(303BCS 0 0 53

2018 268 D65mD 17



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

18

1.1.3. REsE® HEHdS secw Hdm
6@NT0DEd DrdsO®HS

REEES BHdS, DB od ®) BBk
OBBDOGTE, 6P BEHDE ©® GO
BEdS OB £.8.9. glmdn smm HEOO
2o0d® 8. £.8.09. gddn s BRCD ®
£B6mE ) Be5eN0 B 60 OB 68395 ¢O&0T
BBAed crnds BHed® 6OXO &.8.89. ¢idmde
52D OEBD ©® &5OF DBEHE DO
B0 o) gd®ms M) GRS OO GO®S
20D D0ED adonde ReID e wo® 8.
F wecm), o9 o SDe®E @umen ©z@0
BeO® #BHeEI® 6RO HEMHOD HIS HEWHS®G
S@® gdo#nG DOGE® B8t DRBED
BHDE 60xeDS GwIdG OGO 30D
DO 8. 62350 DE3ODEE 6OXO £.8.09. el
s B8R Oms® 695  SHDBDOOTH
s BB DeDns eRmdn BEs OB
2EE 00 EEHDmHOD® 5OFD® 8. VRGBED
Bds O B AHPeE ctn® G
20080 5 68300 grrB® B HB® ©®
SFBDVHED BB EORD 59NBOE® eDe3)
D0 @) ec» EE.

9268 HMBROEEE (DD, 6395 66DEH
BEODS ©H OB 6595 BDS ®OM)
eBc0ens Becwed ot S8 SBOAO
QDB 8 NG @) 6ed RE. DY BBEN
356DB®HED ®O®) 608 OGN WD WODSIM)
QE. OB HEH® 6T MIVHEIQL, LIGERED
83900, ©eNBEG, @IS FLBIBD WIVEIREG B3O®
698 660es BEMD VEERG WEEI®EHRS
DOED WOD EE. SEIB QM VEMNDS, ¢HecEE
6QDBOGTS, 39D 0 PEOTD BIGEWES &
D 0®® 3eH) Bi 6wn @) . 68 OB
B0 gBemng 58NcmdBE 60 H»®O 30O
D28 50D BNIDB WO TS GO FEDWD
6395 6685 BN V@R & 60 tBRSDEHBSS
8 gOIBEG 6608 WO &S VDS @8 DesdvdRE
cOemg HBencHdOBE MO DS DE@E
500 FrHDe® 9wt Bed.

2018 268 Dr6»d

oD 695 BEdS BB 9Qmd &8
IBOESE  5e5dsd® BHO e FEoOmBOE
D@D OO0 9BE $rod® BEes DG
D8 60560 5@IEEIDD Brledmns etdre®
OB OB 8. 2018 De3eHE RE3BO 5EI6H
&®6ERIOD O3B sO5D® 8. 6@® @RS
Dees0mes O8N Dxed eH @008 £Beme
&5t ®esend BNosN BIe®n sdBenn SO®
) goeBeB. cBemg & Besend Sdsn
DEOHS 6O 6B 5D R@BEOD SO® €5t
8DB® 50 ee®’ Pec®wdE &BemE BDIGHN
Bee0mss O3 BV 6weds D ¢E6ni®
6D S6R.

e 695 BEMDS eH) DeEH®B 5HmEn
DDEBODS e50DMDG OB 5DH® god 68
D» TO BHdS Bdew oBEmed cBewme
% ®esend HnoEn glsn® OEMOE BEGd
Bood B0a8.

cBemg ®w ®csend BERe 1208 i
BB 658eBemedE (APACT 121), £Bemg
BBencHdOBS 60 D@ BRVBDGGBS DOTEN
9By BOO VB DM @) 6e» 8.
O3 66395 HHdD O.8.083.903. 5o® @®wm)
B85 APACT 12 e5868emnd @8dss @0 @
‘G oned g®rlens Bemed ®@es SNBD
5B HBw® Osd®He®S O D" ;e
BBEDDO  e5cBOE BEE) G ®XE) 8.
D® OGN 2018 3@ 14 d» »
9BeBBID NBHE sD50m 8. O.8.98.93.
G OWIMEE CHENHE GO BHe® 5w &
omed &Bewdn HEES BTREd cruds
568 Bicmm® trES3RD ®BTS e
&5t ®esend BBRe HBW ¢E®IBE 608 Dic®E
SOEEMND eem) 5 e . ‘@ @owed
c®0ems Sewed ©dhw” BBRe gemes
FBDVHBD 658 @GS BO® 6D ®E)
®t560 6DEMOS 608 GdBMD &) WO 6D
@&



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

e$300ze5 5 €59 6 : ®Besen 36D Beesed 6639RS VB L38Y DrdeD®D

2018 268w D)Bond 19



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

i i
i'»
Hil
il

290z 7, 8 % 9 : 5®eEIDN (ieSDBDEE ®.6t39. 3dBBOGTN6E @EdS BHB

20 2018 2bB8m 2)Bond



1.1.4. &£®9tBer) Hewe g mEIsS S8
5%®

DB ®006® g5th® BRVSBDDIOWHES 6@ Bwesem
663925 DWBWOOTHEE NG gD EOBHBD
@ BVOHG e &80T6M0S 60 RIS
BMNsme SHed® HBw Oldesduen cBemne
&5t ®esend BERe eH&w gldn 2016 DesehE
POB® O BR. @D &M cBeme ®NODG
NEMDG BOO B DDA 5ed®m 6(ICIEED LS
g0 6@ 6395 DM BOFS OHEd,
c®0 oE®ed ©dE EHEVOED 6

Smoking free Zone
e CAneD B

e9030ze56 10 : BB emt) £BDidens Hewes
D@ISG

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

cB®erE 60 DO DNEDS EE6E®MEH
DOB. gBEE  ©®IE gD B®es® 6e9DS
OBDBOGE 59D ©@® DO gm0,
&80, DeBE, DB, @MDO, MEER, ®BS®,
BORSMO, BHRDO, IOAR, DS,
OcEz®E, D63, 6@Eh®mE, s,
2OOOB®B, 6N6@BDOTD, HBDEE, DO,
5e0®en &6 DEBG) EBHmOR £880:36me)
Bewel D@ SMB® 6 He®. 2018 deed
SMene 08 @R @0y Bewe @S
€300 16385.

eNEOzSH 11 1 66395 6e3D) wEIBK GFis® DadSn
&S O

290302850 12 : @93 66395 BOBBDOOTS £BemIE
SEBG BBRE &5e9H0S Stk BO®

2018 268w D)Bond

21



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

22

115 88853 6E»8 mHbmEde Bead
SENDS sc®) SMDOTDS SN
5568 DedDsd®H®

RDEEES BEOOSEH DEBY) ®006®
FEOODBORD sy SHHDBe® eI
555 OO BNt ODO, 9oBHDGB, 6EIE06EIB),
BCeB6, O®®, HBBEHRDO, MOBBOE, ®Be5w,
626@BHOD, DD, BwOOI®, WEHRR &5
DOPEG®RQ HEEBE 63mE VDR BB
BB ©BEe®)  EOMDODS  5WeNSe®

DesOns & gdde B8 sOH50® 8.
600 BEMHDE GeHD o) BERXSD 8 DOED

eNEOESB 13 @ OGO 9N.6Q0. IVEMEEE DeBD)

BENHS 3E®) 5meodS e BHe® Drflesdmwes

. oo s G T

7.8

ez 15 ¢ DD ¢.668. VWEEE Hesy
BENDS 5E®) 5587mODS e SHe® Brtlesdme

OB cBenE ) BeseNODBE Bed® ®NEG
88Re 09 crndsd OB. 6B 5SS
ecBORE HMDOE @R Wesy BEIHDS O
eIMN® DG BOBDO Bemne ® Benend
BNoOE Oefedns oOBOB. @ HESS
gROD, Desme BcseNd ) £B6mIE DO
Bnon® BERed ©®eEidw Oifdesdwmems
DG e5cdE) 0 DO HEHDS G BerseNd
LHERDD ©® Hedusmd GhSH® B&H DS
2985 DIWEB €3 ¢3e) ENEW GRS GE3DWDEHBS
&O® 581D DOED OB D 6eI568 HOBBLIE
20D EE&.

eHGESB 14 - B3eB6 .6Q8. MIVEMEEE BeBYD
BBS 5EH) 5EeODS 5men SO Drtlesdws

eHEGZSB 16 1 NOBBR £9).68. VRS Be8yD)
BBS 5EH) 5EIDODS 5men SHe® Dtlesdw®

e$9300ze303 17 :+ ®erend ) cBeme HD1080 H1mdm® 0D 5t HEEEBE 68H® DR Wesy)

BHDS 50® 5@EIOD C(e3D®

2018 268 Dr6»d



116 eBeong ®») PexeIb SIEDEG SEH)
gsGs odsvosm | 2e%eNed®
SN8B» HBH®

ENWOTDS WEBVe® ecE» 6B
BeBesOmwees 2018 6e3RONY 19 ® 20 ©®
EDnESS goemt) @It 6eIRs B8Re ¢H5D
EOEDREEE DROD @, 3D IIOD DERGBED
BEMDS 6@ DOED OB D, OB
DRO®H® BEH) REMBO S5 BerIes®e
OB OWesn 66395 BOBBDONTE I BN
@DG.

RIEAC) 568300 SONED 96®AR®
SOn® @D 5eH® & SNoOEed HEEIED
go® GBDO®D 8 g0 SHD CrRedD GrLd
&go® 6608 FOMNGB 6NE DOD .

1. BobO &8 BPOTDIIRIDG

2. cBemng ©®» BeneNd 0z emeds
EPDOBINCS

3. 3ODOLNEG €38 ENBIJBDOLICS
4, 5OBRDG 5w O BBOJ B

REBNBO 56 6e39DS 660es BN VGBI
Berismnn OB Omessn 6595 SdDBmdOTS
O @8 5B BCS.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

N0z 18 : DO ESHmed edestde)nm
DEENGEO BSNB HOO

e$)30ze56 19 : @HDO EedGwmed e®sdeInm
DEENGEO BSNB HOO

2018 268w D)Bond

23



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

24

N7 O8BHIsS s Y0 scH) edemne
®) Bexe00 0L DedBOHSS

‘Bdeene Ol cesedm® 683D" ©e® DO
Q8 ® BS0EE 9w OB e
) Oesend BBRe HBD gD Desdmns
00 8. uloeesw @0 w® / e®)
®eseN0DED R 8 80 08 o D6
583 edEMOBED 5550® o & G 6RIe:m]
I BReDS EBcm® o Qigs BHBes’
®0Q DOEOOD i 0. cPmne &®
OO sdemIsme 68NN F&) BEE @S
©weH) A58 Od Odlerns ed Hin oD gmod
DB HBWO s DG e PR DOD
6L 6MI®OERD 6mMEdr 68. @O cHDED ®)
GeNEED HHEMBD GRS HBDOEE B0 erocd®
B0 T mag 6di® 5 B 8 ROBDE 80
AN 6O3® £ 3OA e30EHD 0. DO
6OImMNNDE ©BORG dyed ®cd 9B
0900 eHrSBd® D ogd Bvd® DYPHED DG
Beme} E» DD edemd ) 68.

30028565 20 : HBRVBeND FOBS B8H0E ®B@H™
C®) Bened 58 cBemig SO
RrAFEOL)

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond

93002856 21 : A0 O B0 ®BBHD SEH)
®E5e0N0 3% cBemE S0
RIANOOL)

6®® B0 “‘©PIELDBS", ®id® HRENDD
Bo®®, 6c®DBr O, 6IERD omd, B
OB B 5 Hedle Bouedt omd®OE
SONBEDOES @D, DREOE, 6RO
&® eNBR B eme® ard® Hed®mdE
2D50® 8. ®WBRSEMO, DO 5w EHRMBO
E35nmde OB 8508 cPWOR £BeNE
® ©@epend SO DesOHs  etdide0
HB BN 6300V DDA SN 358
20 8.



118 8%, »0cHEs) & JeRD ghH
NGB o) tHds Hded
DeDsO®S}

€8 ©® DOENBS ©o®Eeds cBeme ®
®e5e00 60D 6(NE Hed® FOHBNOE SOBD DO,
@ 9530 E®) D® 9EID WHENGE DBEHS
6@ £B6mIE WHEIBDEH BE3S WEDICED &TD.
6EDB®D 6MORNGT B 639D BeBE £BeIMB
BE®) 6CNE DSBS FRHID £BenNDi DOB®S
RO 58 B PDe, D DO BOO® esem) &oc /
0 686056 OO DHEnS. DB &) £BeNWEB
BB grBD® SO B BBRAED 6vd®
D6 53DBDS crnds BV 6ewds Dic®ms
D® go®, cBeE DWHENBDG DEBS 6®H BN
et OBVBBSD MR 6aO® 6DEE IO
CENBEOS BERCD crn® ) 80 ¢ gosdes 680.
aQdB, e ©® ®esend 68 60
6®® grHO® cHedr BERED DexdD DD
6MmE OB, GBISD FOIDBIOB®OCE WG
80 3 GBS ew) N BB 639D
OB® DN SO ®o® 8. Rede
& eed® Zi8med g B8enD ctrds
BDe® Brd)esD®ns SsOTO® .

D6® o8 ©med BEde BewdsSDdTeS
&’ @Ot WONS  Be®) ot  DOMEO
5OmBD cBemE ®) BeseNdDE 6839RB E5EdD
B8Red uEnmOtds BuimSded® Bidedmnmn
230D OX @IDG. DeflesD®® E3EH) E3etN®
8) BemwPBeSOdts o 500 &.

DE® oSeE 6D 65M S  SglmS®
6eDEBBDD MG ©BO® WO BTG
CH & BB 509 BBe® DrflesOmem
00D 8 Do DeweeBdics ©eH 8
cBemng ® @csend HNog BOidesdnes®
ERDS. d® esdn® 2018 6cestd®d 10
6 11 EHOEE NdGeeNE GBS 50DBHD
BSENDEAEE OO DG, DBE Bowe M
6COE @S 6ceS® ROTOOT ®TO 5O LML
BVOO ereddes) 0K @R 0 E» 6CeS®
©oB 8 QOOGT 50D eENwD 5B BE.
600 ¥Hed oG Jed cBemE 658 BereNO
BNOHG BERE BBBHS crnds BOOO FeHRS
QOGS 58 BOOE.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

OeODs ghdD SN0H EmED RSO
DO e NFHes  EIDNoBEE B
120 ecomm SO &Xe) OO oew Dowds
DDPODD 50DNMEBE WO® EE. 6B DAFOD
Bem) 686 EDHROG cO® LGS DG
RIGISH

FBDNEDO DB ED HBD Oeen ¢ 2018
4B 15 39 16 3D 6CE» G OEDs DD
8O EnD OmBD enesd /S &5t DOTEN
DHENGEE 5w DS DO 6E@IENNI®RE
£50DNDEG OB QE. BYDD 589 @B €59
)63 BN HHBIG O BTSHO BEes 6esIIOL
DOMBED, CBE®D 63DE, BrdDS DOWELS
€589 30D E30EVBIEED SOBO® Q8.

2018 gemitiy 18 OB » Budce eRexd
5388 628Nl ¢G5 50 6cem 3EH)
£BemnE o) OBDB KNGS DrEDBHDE SOBOD
Q8. D& 30DMDG DOH EIREE BBoBCR ®
ez Bmwesm 6398 OBBWOGS DBE.
(BRBD.8. 8. Bediss - BBuIec@ 65 ®EIS
BEBD - WoedDzdD)

3390t MNB®  e®ENDES  HSHME  DIVCEIO®ES,
BBEDBBSO FTRORTEYDS 230TDIRIDCS
B D Dedm GROTEMNS®  OifdesOwemS
>5D50® gd Dsd®m® gdeNNeEE DS 6
SE®D 6meY. GO DetS 3DOTIIDCS
s aleenn DO 85 BsEEMN® O
FO®S B @R 68. B 40 6CeHWEE
NEDOEES 2018 €57e3mc@RW 19 80 21 cwdeh
@008 6E® oOs aredd BOifednm
DV@EoB®E  oDNHBEB @OH  @DE. OO
BeRes0®es e eo8g 86 30T
OB6® IOS®B B@BEIDDG WO, BB BOR
D) DO BEDVO eH) FO®S HEHEM®
@SB, 6®® BresD®ES ENVIWDOGE ESEH)
cBemnE ®) ®esend RdG e85 ek .

2018 268 D65mD

25



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

N0z 24, 25, 26 5 27 : 6IS® EEmed GBS 5em) BRBeNO 5 B SO Besdmss

26 2018 2bB8m 2)Bond



119 gbede zHh 660exd6s SE®)
506D 509E5H68 Dedesdn®

Dr® oees  mebede  6eebme®smd
©0® DD mHEbede gehH 66DEBDOTS EH)
509ODS  90eNSde® Bidedma 2018
eOBRY 2 O» E» WD BB @O» E.
DeRes0mwes i gofen el DB® 56D
cBemg ©mw Besend Bnoenn ae®) ubede
66DesOOTReE HDNOG 6mE) HodBB. BO
0D glmded OB cBemg OxeS
28068 660y 60D #®OBm B®wm) &.8.69.
DB 50 GHEd £BNDG NEDEG W
e® 08D cBeE BERE 6EBHHED BSOBOD .
66des O 65066 B BEsENd BB,
‘e 65K DHNSDG” BB @HDamd 6O
e0wHD 6®6HwHEdD® 8. 60® Brf)ed®m®
sew MEbede 660e5D0ts dDmEdn Sedews
5080 NG .

290z 28 et 29 : epEbede e e6desdOTS

BEE) SEDOTOS L5587
BBe® Oed®n®

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

1110 Som® gcboms e

FQDeE &Som® ebme @IOG D) OB
B L0 DR0®S GO0 erunds BB
Bewo® 8.

1. DEess BrddesO®H®

6IVOD FABIBWEE FoMEE OB LIS
DMENOE WD) OBS  6IDDESEH
DG 6mBDIBD Bemiesnd B emd
OEEB ©® eriswds §ODEGS JBBHO
B eems Desdmnsd ®Om s &
BE® 8ug D08 QeR. & @ RELH®
BomBB  (ee® E88n D) Bewe
odR® axnd, DNO®®) 688 EeNBEE
2018 ge®mitdmy 9 80 14 o) 530 BOOS
6508 DB® eme® BeRIVEEE £BemE
6 ®eseNodE gHbOmd DEeEd® Bgde
SBSHDG 5% BRBeDem 5 @) E® BB
8O O)d®H®D 5D50H QE. DB DEHLE
cBemg ©® Ocsend BEREe MECDBHS
100026@ @80 ctRDRRD @WE $Tod® 5EH)
&Qendi DR §rimow® sOHSD® 8.

2. 6Depes 66Des HEV®MDE

B S5edb®0 DBODeHEG B8 DSON
Q@R 60cre GimnSD eheHedE £BemNE
e Bestnd BDOMs BERE crndIRD
QBE MTod® e FO®S BB 6RRMED €5
DM &7 DK DS eesc® QE.

3. #5059 S5EHGRE, DBEBOEG

653 ®30 B GO GG 6DSE 68 6OD
B® 63800 6 HEINE® B O
“Nineteen plus” 6@t ®Bm0O 5 608 Heh®E
£30DNDEB WO QIREE RIS EBIDBIGBEHE.
2018 e 3 80 7 et BEBIed
8 0508 R 608 HEH®mHEEE, NI
FNOB0weE B3RO Om, oebm® OGS
DB 6®D 3D EE. AIBE e BBEED
cBemE ® BexenNd 5eedeS HODSN) G39DB
REez® BBRAED 609O® 60YOBGS RO
OO 51 DPYBeE 6cODBHESO @O D30
DOBO Be mO® 8.

4. 5653 BB5ES 5 DOtE DOTHIES ESEH)
@D piBD ODBODEHEEEB ©EIRDB
DEHO
SeNBB BB HEB®H® BE®) BK SBWDDG
ey Bo®m® ebmme 06 eHDDEES
cBemE 5 BeseNddRBS Bedm MBG €5
BN 9®ede BEACD ®HesDND CrRdD
20D 8.

2018 268w D)Bond

27



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

NN e} eomnd® 6di® HNbHE &EH)

CB6EHn® poED S8AE DdDYOD

6R3 ed® 60I® BMNGHMG BBRE C56E®MEH
e 5% WG BEMDS dxed “‘SBedi® &dxm 6O
BBEEN® " BEMNDSG. £BemE 65t BesenNd 5%
6R] DD 6OI® &mO tagy BBRBAGE BOS®
g0 DS 60I® &S i BeH) FHDHDO 6@
REeNEB. DD, cBemE 5 BerenNd HNOHIG
88Red ‘BedB® &dx» OO sEBEN®OR”
BEMDS e 5t DD @m OB
g g6 DS Oe0®nS e5did® B OO
BYedm DOH) @eD.

808» o B8 ‘BedI® &dxmn OO ARSLBENN”
BRDS 5E®) 6395 FRIDBIHEE 6R5 6eNOD

60I® Gomed 9BR® @ cBewnE 5w BeneNd
BNOE CBEEHD  HED) 88Re Do
®E@IOD 30BN WO QTR GO 9 SCGDTs5®
OO 835 SEHDE tew 2018 gemitsn
17 98 E» 5O0x @d6. 568 Ddesdmes
EDODBOB B S5cHBD O GEDd ecwmw
6B Bes 9 59 16 B3 EWNHERB WOTHED®R
8350 “‘Bedi® 8D OO BRsEMND” HoihHdes
eBe®) sDBDN @@, 2018 6cescd®d 21 O E»
#EM0 B35S DOD BEhds 100 e
HMBBOES 5tdig oo DB eS8
0250 9O MOS. EDB6S Bre® ‘OB
8D 6O BBEEMND” wIe BEDE 30g) BH®
Bem) 600 Biledmns SRHID SO 6Hm®
HBO e50@E® O .

230028565 30 : 63 6D 6GOIH SO BED) CLEH WD) BERE DBBOD, gudied

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond



1112 edgr crITB o5 5OBAM DESIOEG
2018

FEomOH 68D Fregde@®moIG

cBeme DB HNOHMG BERE crxd®m 2018
ged3d 22 D '©sed) T Oees gdesss
80ed ogmd® @ oo 5O5 ©8ben BODD
50 2018 ¢4 12 Qe ¢Bsd BmMed &
D05 8. &5 OFDRE DB Fx®D WO @
BRWOL OB Eredt@mOBNCEG SBEDBO BB
BEem) 600 DM CseEi® DOBEM) QF.

®DDEES 9DDHI® s5o®m goMmOM 6SND
(Quit Line)

1948 cesn0D Fr@R® o 63010 OBADEG
BBe® Vre Bem e @5 D50 20-20
0 DO@DBHE gooRd Oind &l MBdD
Deletd ©OFD® EB8. ‘cBemE 6200 6e39vDB
6NBEBD" 63@D s 3O 10 » 6]
Ozes NP e 2018 gemitdn 14 E» &
20-20 w0 O®eE 6dee crRdd® e
BDedme o0 16 DO 0SB DOD .
BSENHDEO EIREY Fc®DB® 305D DBDe®S
6ERE g V8 ePBBS comdD FrdRd
63D OBHAWEH BOBD 606 9OHAQ D &r>.

SesNBFEES

®esend ©® cBewng DG FeelHAGE
BB eeH 608 geEDOSMB 6(IE) ®TEH6O
DcOEBDO HEDMe®D &S gRIdE s
OEG GzesNBE) SENOE DBNOGBD 6O
8 FOM®EE 6HE HBOBD Hosn woO® .
D® @5 %006 2018 6ce3cBH 15 dwe) 80
2019 3N 13 Be) eme) DD 2. DKE
23835 o R6E RHMDo®m BB DB (B @O
66X B gllo® 330 30 BRG] 350G
B @oted BEms GzesNSH MBI S Dedee)
&OOG WO EE.

B @o) eHED GEesNBEIG D 505 DB
FDOR0 568 6DEE crRo® MHoede Ex 30 5@
DB 5580 DB DO 2. DB 6DSE crR®
B8N OzesNBED 63D 59 6eOEN OESENBFH
Deletl VPYBeE HEH® P HEIBES BET &M
6cd» 6DEE DB 06 goRd DO ®esedd
&z® 68 gBOED® (B 10 ) Bonme @0 Q8.
cBemE 5 BEseN0DZE Bedm BG BBAe
oMV DO crd® BB BSwDE® O
BB OO e5oH6Demn wo® @E.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

1113 5690 683

cBemng BDenS B8e® Bif)edn®m SED
DEBYHED 6@ DEIMCH®D HER. BGE Ee5OD
HcOR® owd»® 63D 2018 ¢& 12 d» 8»
SFBRORGO NEEB®B ©e39RS GBS WIVEIEGE
BNBD 0D EE. 68 ew) D) B8
ot (D3 OBD o : 1948) 98 Bagilo®
DEDNED), @IeRDN RO 50REIO 9BEG Htod®
& 6@emE® e B@D 65.5. 8.00 80 &.9.
4.15 exen Ebes DO BB GHOD @O BER.
DB 6t3eNdDs MLIOBD 6MO gmd & OXSD
et3NDE 5B g HBED @RI 6c8)
2089 36089 ¢e3etmDmns D Frdn® 6e581ed
6e300n OB 0.

68 ©O6x BNOLNHH BEREC CHBEEH KL
DO 6800 DHDDesEed B3]
B8 OOm . 60 e ©eEBHOS0
CBelHm® BeNIDBDWOOTS, @0 66395
e6des BB, @B 6B  ENEDOEREH
6306l Brm ome BEHDS, DEODeME €M
055 EO® 30DNMBORD BVBE BeIDex)
CB6EGDOGTS, B®mese 66395 S5OSO €529
63D 639DS €oDNDEE ENOIZWBS FHBEIDE.
CB6EHD BB eDOOTH IO
ENEDES OB DO eBSBEEWHS DBEES)
20@m D088 @Ed el 608 BA@d
RSO e5cDTDOBO BHBDE.

comom gOmdn 63D ®) BBRBD WOED
DOD 560D EeEHBS BEE) CBEEHD
DEED) BHSD 65T SNAD@OD & SOBO® @
g0 &1 RS HO®H) BIDEW 66395 63N
SNB® DO .

ez 31 : B Bes®m Cesetenmn B8EDeE
55Dy eNABI@D

2018 268w D)Bond

29



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

30

N114 eEl> eBemmg 564 8xc 2018

GE39IRB, GeIBHM 658 BEBH B6OES HFBIDBIOMS €369
BRI ©t39DB t30DNDEG BRO® EHEEIWMIDGHS
O cBemE ®) B0 BERE eH5W EidwmIBG
BB 38eNEWBS, IS O3 6ELNHDEBSS D
©® PR OQ BenisHnnn B8 H@Md
DOTENGEB, 6395 Des N BBBES,
£BemNE @D Diled®HSDE 6OSDOTOS 59
EEIBWHEB6® e3HMBBOG 58D 6@ID cBeme
Bnogn 8xnes 2018 &8 07 O 8» &@0» EE.
®O7 695 FEIDER® DO 5c®0® e
B® BB 8 O EEIODEB MDD B
6D 66395 30DNMEE & @otd) Be:IBDGEIG.

2018 6@ £BemE B0 Exed 653@D Hed
‘eBemg ® ®ac 6OI®" O gmd DO 6EHD
068 @S 56D DO VB0 LEND LIRS
6rORDDD ©O8® 808D cBemme B8RAEDS
e @oO» 8. DE® HdH OB EE
gemnm® 08 GO0 £BemE DHSDEE
OO B @O, REmOLNEG 5% &S
DD BBRe T i IG.

cBemng ©E®G B8Re 68 mmded 9®E
®006® cdeldm® Orfedn®E &tdid® BeE

V®ODOTDS gd DEN ®e§r FORIDG
Et@gns BB 0B OB @ G0 £BEIE
DONBDEE BEHROO, RO 65 &BemE
ei® pelmnn mED Dorg BBRe BB
5508mOEN e OB 9BNEG CLeLmMHE
6608 DYS6E #BGOHB 9BWE ModD EE.

DBHD €508 ) BSBEIED  HIENGO
6@ 680 DeBBEr® XwN® k. BrE
GOS8 S SO, D,
eeNHDEBS, ND.6M). oDNI®, MNSEID
& aOfed 65030 B6rIBmMnD® MHEGE 9meE
&% @8 0068 wE®WOtDS, BBOBESE
DD, @MABDES, oTs ®E) HiHdeS
€5 GRS ERIDNoBEE BB 6®® ¢Lelm®
DRE0®B EH) e3N® .

cBe®EB BED) 6MHS®) e BOSD
£BeEORS Bedm NG, £BEIES DL
OEHROO &1 DeWoOIEB 5 B D@D
BBRC DB €508 HDO L3EH) LIDENBOBDS
300 & &ledmom 2. @i gBewe SO
Emn 5®0® 506, £ NEDG BERE
MG 6EHENEBDEER0 6@ 638 5O
&BBeDemn BV6® ©d@ Led®m® Difdesdnm
Be.

eHEoEes 32, 33, 34 &3 35 : 6@ 800 Bedid Emnc 2018

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond



1115 &hassind &5868me IO
59656 Gled®

£BemE DG BBRE 6@ 66395 58686 M
o088 MHPDE NIVEODODTEH BeBHEE
g0s ec8n 2018 DexidY 1 8O 6 een
300ebEBD6E B85 OO 5dE. 6mIBEG
cBemNE BB B omcs BERAE 3w
BBe® tsode BFsn d» & sew e
BEDG BERde ©BPs OEged Bug @D
O0BOR MNGE BKB. 6t39DS FRIDBD®) (639,
3880 65® LGB 66Des §®NBomE) F.93.8
a3l (8, DD HEBEEH oDNHD6E
B o B BewiBm), NS cBemE o)
®esend BERe HBD dG), 66Des QBSD
6e3)®Do® (GBS BLRE eN@Ew 59 FBeHD
6QDB, ®®we® 6395 6t3006) e66des DBB)
Dn@Botw (Bewless aldsses &SoHMNg - 63
emO® 60I®), cBBE crwaNc (6cDD 6 P,
D.%. & o Bos BeniBm), 66DeS 3D
63O (B0 FEIDBRBGE EOBD 6CwD),
BOPO YNNG (s OFDE B &®
0 6CDE - SHEADG ERIDSGEH) DD
Bouod® (gdss @850 @8 5% #Sebw
6B™d, VOB & s  FEIDB®E),
cRVBBEE BT B & ®dEd
(st OFBE HNBD 5 Hedess g
6@, HOWE 6LLNVHEBBRD), 66D
Cad ®etind (dnwes @ 8D 5
®0c FEIDBEIGE B BDBDD) HBEHD)
0 @B 8do® c®EDESE) (GORg dwism,
8Re 6CIVHDHEBBDD) B3 BHDO BB &
Qo £ BN H@Bwmns e & eeH)
&6 8.

®en) OBSEND BRE 65580 DOV,
®en) 66dcys Dol 5 £.8.69). aglmded
e8e355e)0m 66Des 3BEIQ ¢ BJD), 65 LB
OFIE I@ED 529 & Qo) BBEDB IVBIo®ES
Beniss 6338 680 Bied 6B OHS
2018 4@ @6 mMHBESDEE Dro6tmnys 5tdis
6cd® 6@3.6659. to - MHB 65 BenenNd
RO 3e®) HBWOD .

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

1116 gBemng EMG S8 =8 HPD
(FCTC) 2030 &xrzadics

& @ow® 2003 6BV 11 O E 6@ 66595
30DNHEHEE cBemE HENG BERE ©BES
DD @D WG oo, § and OO ©Ees
D FhHRdD BE MBI 58 GG €5
6@ B80%m Grsnn DO & QoD SDG.

cBemE HEHE BB tseH) OB §HE@W® HHdDO
0D® GBS SHOVO® B&es 2030 OO N
00RO &NEEDO BEm) 6RND GRS EoDNMGB
0% 08 NE Pnedmd® MBEMEG {RIOBHHGE
8ud @O arm. 600 O em 00D 156
50 6INBS GO 9 D DREE & @owIDH.
Dot 6I0I®cBe® D SHENGDEE Dl Brdm
DR DY DG OIS S 9w 530®
8O e grs HrSEOB. FedWS BHENGD
fed 0O B88 ¢dmd BB HOBEG, 6E@ENE® 5
DEONMOD MEWDOEE resd® 5w DS
08 5cEB® Bem geE OO ede VD
68. OxsaBn §enm BdHed® pe®ede twdehH
BOO eH) 6@35.6659.650 / D.9. €50.807. DMRVER £
BHIEGD 6eDO - 2017 & &5t 2018 &, & @oNed
006 wedn. 600 dmsaBed HrImdm® 2018
53O BeseiE nd®m Ba.

c®® OB HO CLNEAV® el HO® B&Des
BB 39 DRDBED NG OB OB 0 &
Qoed OB BB B SO
BB D00 HBBOD wOR) .

cBeme ) ®Besed almde D 2006 De3ctE
5WBeBSRD 6D & god, 6t9DGBAG
FONEOE @G twdNed 98Dt ®) 5638t
80% &) ) OBS w® cf) @ed DO
2015 DeseBE 3506@INDE OD E.

cOMB G me® e DS HBO,
cBeme B8eNey e oo  O8D
&e0t® HEBENED 529 30D B0 BOG 100 2
8ee®mB E &80 eedn B BB vy DO
€306mI0D @5 OFDEE 2018 € andn DE
&0 O 506GEIN® SO SO 3e®) SHDO
BewE @O Boem® 68 d»n TO OB
DOBS 508, DO FH@M® 6@3.6659. t50DNBDGE

2018 268 D65mD

31



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

32

£BemE R 58S DO HRmE 6. HEIEO
& cEPned Dridd trEeBCRD @RS €3E®
D00 c@emg g DD ®EHE DOBEN §)
g, 36D el BOBO ¢ VG eemed woE.

c®® 6P NP OxmaSn 06D & @owed
35BRDS Dxed :

1) HED® cBenG NED® CeNEdB® 2018-
2020 ee5 BBO

2) cBemng HE® obons  cBeme
DHBDHEE OEDHDOBOBS oS SO

3) oo OB EreIdt@mOEG  ErRdD
Bomd#n 56 DEISE B GRS BHO

4) gBemng D 9HEG Hod®

5) BB cBemEedE
DIENOEE BB SOO.

6) 0B BBOD GFoeES £BemE DD
B0 DEBOS DrEeOHHE 36BINHEG
Alelc)

7) Dods BDexlenns 60m  @6d®0
£BemE 6mBSO e SO

8  B88Rded

2018 268 Dr6»d

N117 e®i@cs d8H gBeme sdBaddncs

cBemng HE® OBnddd iee® 5%,
B5@w BOO 569 epemBO BEHes OO NG
QWE ®de® ©® cBeme HHEBG BERe
6D 66395 t5oDNIBEE PGS IEed DS
agdesnn SO0 wnde® o e
639D E30DNMEB 58 6O3® eNE® BODBEBN®DG
9 eHED 6B PEDDG, &r.d.es. RS
Besend w cBemng BERe HBD alddG
@B OB cBemg ©5Bweenc Bemdsm @E.
Bty gfore 15 e 8O B8 DeBOnS amd
cBemng DG FDBENG DOD 6®3.8C.8.
o08eNE HBD Heisnen 8D ®awed
BDBHED 68. KODF 300 B8 @D 60O
&DDBEE SO &S god TNEBS @O
DO B8 5OV 6B 5@ 6 Hed.
6®06 cBemg D6 BN o®m &5 BemE
B)E® BB BE®m BV BBRD eH5wd
Berismnn 68D e 65868, C0O@ b 6O
23NV BBBEN HOE) WIEREBD BO® BedD
eDHBDB tsotse®E BV HTBED QRIGEDS
NG 30290 B OB 6O 3B
8e 20xn @8.

cBemg ) BAsENO BERE HD DG €39
GEIDB EEIDBIO®B, SHDERDD ®) E30DEBIGSDD
6eMDEBRDD OB DD 6@ ©39Ds
£30DNBEG €389 6O HNGEEH BHES BRBLENHEE
36EIH6HS 60O 3BmBENG & QoGS BN
QRB. FBEHEIDG BCH) DBED €55 B €5
505055 QRBE 6@3.6859. t50DNMWEB &H 603®
B0 BLBESNDEE.

BBDOBB B, HweE 5rEEBmOSEG €5H
&odun W) oy SO® gD alBkdDG
Sem) R DOED 68 O DO Hidw B Bed.
c®® HBw® ©®00e® ©BBHMeE HOBWDO
DOEES 2018 OENMEG ) 695 eree®dD0O 2019
B5EE) DHRO ) FRHIND Bewdy &, e
SE3BH® 2019 @ I®EEE O®HDBD Boud®m
g0 2019 by d» B0 ©ddemed 5O
Eeo®TBO0 WeBHOH) e, 600 TWBLHE SEH)
688, sDBEw, BO® sDEEND BHOOE &
ey OE3Se® 6w DBeCeHNE DHe® OO
comdsn edi®m BNOHo SBe® BBE3NDEG
50 6@3.6659. oDIWB BBGE @D GO
o8eemn S 8 oy T S9HegR® M



BoRMERRD® 6eNHeBRNED ecse DO
B30y gr. 600 ©BBHMED HE GO
OO ¢es®e BB® 8B 6wed® gmd Ot
DO O e DBeRBHEG BEM) BB HOO®G
60 ajd ©ledwsnn wOEH @eR. 603®
BNoOEN BVE® BDSLIND6E DEHENGEO 2017
DeeBE & @oted t5ot0E DG g0 Glmded
58 BHERD ) t3oRBIGCRRD 6LVDEBBHED
BVSHD IVE OFEEG ©BE®) OB
5D50% @DG. SHECR® B  oERRD
6EDERBNED 5 cBemE @) Bexsend BBRe
OB DBl DNDBEID DIVEOSIRD E5EMH)
2018 ee@ @168 &e.d). 39e5e6d FrORBOISBE
3DOH @De.

cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

1118 &86&H» 8emmE 56 DedesDHS)

gdonded BB cBewmE O%BABDE GIMECH
BxODemEed &me g8 EDBex gBO&D
cBemng D6 BERC 6B 8 OB
B8, gDHIH® HIENGE 62163 ®EIHE Flo®
600 658D BenE & DS GOBGBHDEE.
8O @D, O3B0 HBgnn SOO® B&Hes wED
0@ B ©ssn ©OmBD B O
QE. B &0» JTowed 5OH5®» 5 6055
e3MecHn DHODemEed e Ders Bk
QRIS ey BBSE &8 eMOROT @R BBEDE).
Doz® BOVeoD BOBD oG BB
BBeneme,Hoemnn, OBHE 66 DBHO e
QNED DB WOB®) &) BB HEHNE® EH)
6®® Bog ¢5E® 6ReMDS eriswdS Be.
REEED BHdDDeE crx® OEBDO em
D8 5991 OB o ernds HVe® DrEesD®)
DO @eR.

88 603®n0 emEdddR0 & 5 QB
8DBOR NNBWHES0 &) BROBO DO eemed
® BOO BN 6D Sb&Ee SHHOO
60O DB SOVBDWEG SEH) Ce5DO 59 @R
8@ B&Mes Voice of Blue Pea xe0006 808D
20D EE. 600 ) BEedR BHOH® 63
edi®wE, X e PEDHG, 636G
BEODEI@G 6589 MBI 852 OO 603D
6® O B0 SMBHG O &TD.

cBO8D cBeang ©® B BBwd BRSGHS
Bewdn cinds BOe® OesdnS  ees)
B80S0 6mgdt §) 608 603BS 5991 O &GS
a0 8 e®) DOH6® oG @) ®.

2018 268 D65mD

33



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

34

eHEGEs 36 1 6B OB gBemig B0ENG BBREC
#eg DBODOTDS BB® C6E®D
e~

2018 2bB8m 2)Bond

|

N.119 e@n gBeomg B ED»D SEDC
sbedssne

2017 62e5c@DH 1 One) 80O 2018 5D 29 ersen
6®® oHedwens 8g @O® @ gmd BexenNd
&9 £BemIE GRDE emE®, ®Bs®, BHRDO,
OB®0, Ao, RedE, autHd, ROEZE®QE,
@ISHDG ©055 FRINORHG B HeEmdR GBS
Bthom®, DB 6Q, OB o) £OHBBD
2630 80 OO 500 ® OGS (o &§eE®OR
B8O S cBPeme IO, FeRIDMB, BEV®MEH
OB e BeE SO0 Ed®Krsod B88Re caws
o¥PBeNns Bewod® 8. cPemng ©EmN®
05 o Dy ERD®, 0HG ®OE ERD M3
B5eHBHE DOE @R D) Wesy) Be3Bmene
O @O® EE. & guds ened 6® Stlomed
eese e g3 ®eHD 5Dl 6®ICH B3
(D3 156), DSBS (D3 93) e eesfs
Be@Ed (@D 22) 0. &8 Bog ©BHNO®
BE6CE SN cBomE @R § DS
@O £Bemg @HI®®EB. (BAT)

BB EreDD C O 66 DBV®BRHBRE®S
SENOONEG §) g 55 OBHeMNed Bedmd OB,

m 98 DHED D0 RY) 6dee GO
2®6 e 63300 (71%), Bee crxd® dds
(22.4%) &3t oS 0L BR (6.4%)

B 600 ¥eduwd BEE BB e DN DEEd
&S B BBencH e B®O0 (44.7%) &9
95 gD BB cBemg Bdencw (42%)
e D8 (13%) 68.

m Oern® DO Bdec» 4eed g SNH® Hed
20 VewiBD 6dce®H (64.8%). @5 o8y
g5 B88ecd3x B8 odees (21.4%) &5t So®®
6deeS3e. (7.8%)

B DOENES0 b 8, DINSO DBE Comdn
e & @oted JDR) SMeda 88D et &5
Stom® D0 8 B®OD (100%) ed SHAE.

B 3 @ond 5 608 BOV®mHE Be G 3™ 92%
» 866 el ®O0BS § (e D®EnS
B0 1) £Bemne Bdescy BdDeenn DO® @E.

m cOeang BIse® 85% © HEHGRG WO
BReE e O3 @ OH® 5 6e33RE DE)
EIESBHEEC.

Bé® oues Bdsed HHHd OO RDOD
5O cd GO DG GRG. OO
YOBDHEE 6@, ONMB Ess Sde®
BEV®RE BB BB, BOG 500 » oG ewe)
D58 HVE SVecm woOH @IDG BWeEE.



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

DECEO®D»IDOH
DOIEIGO® /2B
@I

12.1 S0INHOG 50D

£3)®)DD

—

esbesE®
@D

€50BO®
3920

DEODIDOHN
€550

2018 )68» Bomd 35



cBemne ® Bexend BT HBD DG

36

122 e8dm eondndt

D938 v 20 Bs S05 6D
DG SoR2D

2018 B8 HBond e



cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

©E5 85O G

13.1 ez sHm®

{@emng wo Oguess BEAE Ll glmibBe
s 350w 88 D2Em9D
2018 e¢es(®38 31 8m»0

500D 2018 (c) 2017 (6)
D@
Ho@® s O®H®
O swym®, 88un ew cemden 16 17,763,509.52 19,130,254.89
8¢B0s edue 17 53,046,996.07 28,463,269.37
gfsaas Om® 18 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
He® DTH®
ome 19 34162.58 12,638.11
cide @2 @ 26 - 118,613.32
952 eob® Cwo 28 50,000.00 115,100.00
g aﬁfgc eBB® @ 20 290,809.39 967,164.45
= 73,546,350.02. 51,164,930.14
3608
gom® @ Om®
5B Base® 21 1,691,233.14 1,864,577.77
=BeniBm sewr gBmen 22 186,738.50 120,255.00
owe msten 23 129,323.02 4,048.02
g0 @ Dfm® 71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35
@dd OmBldmsia
eFam e 24 6,560,893.26 6,560,893.26
ceed gome 25 66,677,823.10 60,753,500.00
©2808» gB8=nwe/ (Bwe) 29 (18,115,912.18) (18,138,343.91)
580 Dwed 08 27 16,416,251.18 -
71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35

8 oo s gened BHPmies 58 yEdd @ Gens ganan smid BOQ sy 9eluTdHR0O sewm
guHe DeAce DOBD gy =D. eBR E» ymam glus Bwice S8y 0@ »oy @ 895
c0nedsl gufest ®on @ #>.

2018 268w D)Bond 37



c®emnE ) Berend BeRe ¢HS8wm elmde

38

¢@emmg W Ogsesad BEAg Lofizm gdmada
e W8wedmne BEDE ymrmw
2018 o¢e31®@28 31 oy gdessy Desd e3gwo

RIS 2018 2017
Cr. Cr.

cRena® g1grw®
G¥ed yerme - 326DEn® 9 19,387,360.00 13,000,000.00
T gome HoFsw 30 12,902,798.55 -
8§ aewe® 32,290,158.55 13,000,000.00
e®eny® Bued®
euddn gy 10 7,709,152.11 3,535,245.45
00 BE 138O 0 BIBewfLn OB 11 502,549.40 418,77.96
5T 12 986,728.05 507,904.18
$38e3@mC @ed 13 10,821,251.91 10,225,870.76
Suedd v ndFse 14 12,902,798.55 10,784,56.35
§¢ 0Powvy® Bred 32,292,480.02 | 25,472,364070
o@eny® Hwimdm@dBsy ¢B8unw/(Bww) (2,321.47) | (12,472,364.70)
gen 8601w
Bem 0edn 15 9,260.00 6,250.00
e®en@® Beimcm@DEsy @fdd aBldnae/ (Svws) (11,581.47) | (12,478,614.70)

2018 9B8» BH>»dD




cBemnE ) Berend BEde eHBm glmdn

¢@emog W1 O¢uesnd BEADe 2l gzl
e YO YR»IW
2018 @¢es1@28 31 Somsy @dess? Dess esewo

00D 2018 2017
St St
oRevE® Hwmom®DEsY 8eE ybiw
c@cuy® Hwimidm®DExsY adbumw/(Bww) (11,581.47) (12.478,614.70)
0 c88;
0D BT DfHDEY eud e@evy® ww (11,581.47) (12,478,614.70)
Fowde® 888/ (50) 14 12,902,798.55 10,784,566.35
el Hddn yome nPlee 30 (12,902,798.55) -
omo (D:850)/g2de 19 (21,524.47) 5,386.21
Cide g2 & (21859)/ 4000 26 118,613.32 (118,613.32)
580 ewd® (2:880)/¢80®
28 65,100.00 (115,100.00)
mten (O 858) ende
cuDHBO (0B50)/ande 23 125,275.00 (141,951.98)
ol 0wd® (5:880)/a88e 21 (173,344.63) 1,832,727.33
©0ewa®08sT ¢ sfwin fed 22 87,511.50 58,275.50
190,049.25 (173,324.61)
oRewy® Hwimdm®DEsT @dd §ed ydow 190,049.25 (173,324.61)
ewedEs Bemdn®DBs! 8 ybw
B8wm w0 cumdm gfmd om® 16.1 (56,571.00) (3,222,946.87)
gedesams D ® axfmo @ 18.1 (246,698.00) (67,890.00)
B{00 odzg aa¥ms i@ 17.1 (28,213,135.31) (23,106,792.75)
d0m ghydems (d8ed yonw) 25 27,650,000.00 26,460.,000.00
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gec @ 8ec 0O ¢; @ DRDO/(aRDO) (676,355.06) (110,954.23)
D8uw §10@wede GeE v Ged w@m & 967,164.45 1,078,118.68
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. S
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glale e m 5od® 4.623.661.84 | 2.536.249.94
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S S
gedsams Dfm®
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St St
Doe woed® (19.1
B8 34,162.58 12,638.11
=l comiesm nnnd - -
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L. a.
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g8 e - -
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ot St
cedn Baed®
gdmc 41,618.98 86,976,.73
yonfest 153,956.25 -
250 Sie® 25,397.00 35,150.00
emdoy8E nE/ 868 BOe® oDy 1,406,774.17 1,686,283.58
BeBa 49.486.74 56,167.46
wbe @ElE 894 14,000.00 -
oW 1,691,233.14 1,864,577.77
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. .
e:8m
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St St
osien
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. .
¢ ®.8.4. gd8cc 6,560,893.26 6,560,893.26
dmpd 6,560,893.26 | 6,560,893.26
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. .
deied yamae- yoddm
9/en oduw 60,753,500.00 34,293,500.00
das yhgdemas (25.1) 27,650,000.00 | 26,460,000.00
Downzes- BBemp Dyt 6O WPPH 3563 woedthamdes S8sY - -
sd s gome pBalee (2018 edug w cuwds, JdR0e edug, adfams Dmd 8n (12,902,798.55)
s
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0. .
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G e
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OO @ BMF BHWLFS BLSSUUL LG

2018 om0l 18 o Had) Helwpse GusGHe0
Alervgen  BHeuTeowSHed 50  (GLHEDHHEHHHTS
Yemsuleney Lommib wgiFTrb HbUY BlapsfsHlLwn
BLSSLILLLG). 3l WeSwibgHev LOMHMILD
Ox60Cuel uGHamendF CFjhkh OUTH HBHTHTY
o HOWTESHTHMTe0  gouT@h OCFuiwlul L gl
(W.G.P  B@ymeges delwpbsHeo  oOMID  Sutest
Aygeen - GaevGuer)

L|6TT 6UITLD6Y| S} 60 6TSTUIT 61T [BITULIG 58560 LIGTTUIBLOIT 6015

BumrenaL1QUT(HEHHE SII9 MLOWIT 66U B (6Th (&)
yengeumeuefliusmeTs @ UL LejeumLpey
BawFHHH L sHenest bL S SHI6USIL 65T
BopFHSHN L GHe BniFuied ETY L

Fops5He0 Wai(HD Qenenidbalitbalaimety. eiery
LOTEUL L  6MLDWIBIGET  (LP6VLD  L|6OTT6UTLDEUT6ITIT &61T
BT TeosILL(H Bzxhemeuuwiment LSBT0
GULDMRISLILI(HEEBTmeT. LewTWISLOT 6T 40
o milifenyseilen umGsmyLen 2018 QFlLbuy 3
Wae0 2018 GauLwbuf 21 sueny QT (Hemsuulsd
3 mreT (WaiBamy WA (B BewsfsH LEms
gourG  Gelsgl. @b  BapsAslL sl
(W& H W BB EmISH6NT L|6uTT U LD 6T 61Ty & 61flent
waGammeHemg  Wenmuley GFuigl,  Seufserile
dréfemenimenens  umy  eleurdes  Sje|  smevwt
QUITHSHSLOT6 sI(BLILBT(GLD.
@by SlLsHar  Guphese sy Feu
GUGTIRIGEN6T  GULDMRIEILIG].

[BL6)19 & 69)& & 60 61T
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o BUULLD 22 wHmID 23 uKeneT TEUL L SH60 Ben6EhIHEHSHTERN OHIFTIL OHMID Lemaulensy SHULL ummiw
BlapssHI L 1D,

o UL 24,2526 & 27 Gamuby wralLHmssF GFjbhe LTLFTENED LOTERI6UTHEHHSHTEN LDHFTFL LOHMILD
yemaulemsy SBUY BlapFdsHlLLb.
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11.1.9. uijBeus &FupsHTW LHSSHIOTHEDH
-HBTAT LU BSPFASS L LD
6uL_BLosd LOT & T 60015 63T 25,7 Coug
FnemEBNMBHIL 0T RMWbhg TGS FupsHTw
whHHTBERESTE 10T  BPapFdsbdLn 2018
poublj 2 opb  Gpd  Geupplajors  UisHs
Qauiiu’ L gl euL Ged WTHTEHHE LOHIFTFLDO
wHpd  yemasuleney W7 Goug
eSS opppme alpss CFuug Qb
PawsfsH LsHear (pesdut ChToHsons DMHDHS).
Guaib, NATA&des UmaHHomm  Lenasulenev
sMHHILE GHumeadF CFjbs LmeEL] Gamwbs
SiydmEs  Seufsel  @RVEIMSUIN  LssHH0
sl (BUuT® wOHnLd UmasHs0mn Lmsulme &hlbs
alfleyengQuimeiTenm NATA slLgdnGlugrs

SBLULYSBT6

GuomOsTawiLTy. “wgiFmyn uphul & (HoHBmBH6T,
2 _eWiemd WHMID MmBHOBTH0” 6T6m  HemevLiled
LrasLy iy CameuBs  SeUHSHINTWITIQETS.
Biplapsduled swry BIOH Beudl WG
LOhSGHIUTHET LEIGHDHMEDT].

28 & 29
LO([(HSHHIEUTBHEHEHSTE  L.L.HBDFASH_LLD.

2 (HUULLD ST Ceugs FUPSTUWI

yemauleney womid wgumeid Waren Gxfw fsmraenu

11.1.10. pLOT(BLD SHewIBTL D FoL LD

oiFlany Fepuwien BLIOTHLD SRIBTLS gnlSmBLI
uweuGsd Ueteumw Baswpeaseiear  w&HBHulled
elfiiiyewnyey Geuiwiu’L g.

1. gngen) BlenFAsH LD
(PEDDEFTIT sevalluilen 0] SIDFITHS
STEILGESD FTTa] GUISBLOT6TE SmeieErhL e
BmenehI BN BLEMSBMWS SL10WILILMSHEL!
Cumpzalwrs oemwaBHTH  UWe6eTeT LMD

EGETG GPLDSHSHEMEN 2 (HoUTEHGEUSNEBTH
gnyemiy  HaFAGI LRGN  (ped  SieUTEH6IT
agnets  ulppelssiuGHEpat.  @eomImd

gnyemt] gFriBSHHE  (QBTUpWLY T LE  Hener)
Bouemi(hCamefle Guiflev, alammyoasTCsail
yrisTaled 2018 @60l 9 (pHed 14 suemy 53
g (PMmPWTHOD  BLSSLILLL QUBLTHAY
@&mpLy oGuTfulled LOGIFTTLD LoMMILD
ymasuleneoulenn ursswrer  eleneteyset  GdS
se0al  LOMID  HBeUEL QBTLIYL  QUTHLBEM6TT
QUDRIGISS (LPeVLD @h LwenieTen BIpFGHL L 1D
BLGSUULL G SbSHWPaTled Lemasulensy  ommid
waIEFETL SEUYS GMds &wry 1000 Fryewsefet
alfliyemyeney  HHSHIUSDETE L OUIGHMBSH6IT
aFsny Fmuulemed CmOsTeTeTiiuL L e.

(o@pSSHeuflesT  uTTeDe)  HSSHIeUS

2. Qeugers
ST 4
yemauieme wpmd  wHETD  BEUY  GNSS
alfliyemieney SFsfliugnsTs nf QeuwisufseLy
UEOSMEVSHBL  BLHSHW  hSSeufler  UTTene
HSHSHINS HIBTAHHTen QUTHLBMT HHBTY
FenL GUEIENIG).

3. sevald semiaTld - @eflumiiliy
LITL & TenevemLL ol (b&F CFITTMEUTHEHESTH
ouflem L eytd GouemeveumuiciLy FHMBHHS
SMwsiubssan "usagnaiug ered (Nineteen
plus) 7 e QuuwiLiulL seavisT s sevel
Simwsfarmed  gour®d  QeuwiulLg.  sevel
Simwsfer  CouemiGOamenLea,  Gsefwmiliguisd
2018 oB6LTUT 3 WpHe0 T euemy BHLGUDD
saiaT duled @ sT ddamLd  GuemiiulLg|.
Ozmhed st fbE Qmewmurs  Lamsulame

LOMHMILD LOGIEMILD SITJEUILOM S gnuGEeim
FHMHMSH  FHTEBRGET  QBTLIUTS — Ben6nEh]
weudaei el fiig L il L Gamb ST H6NG

OuOBTiEEREGWL Ufbaemiea] cupmISLILLL G|

4. UTLSTEN6V LOTEII6UTEET LDMMILD ER6N6IT(EHT S (EThHaHT 60

Gmrair  GaTdHBHeomeusy  LTHSTULL  LISDHMEVHS
1PBSH0 FHTHT] (PHTID.
SIHBTY  FOLWTNS SHMST AbEG — UmSeIyF
QFuig), Ymaulmey LHMID WHFTID S SueudmTed
gOUBLD SEIG OSTLIUTSaD BLITHWD Sersm fdb
saLal LLELGSS BBUY aufsst PSS
QuUTEILESEHSE eTPNLmITE| FOLGSHWSI.

2018 eu@mLThEs SiNsama

27



ymaulensey womid wgumeid WeTen G Hsmraenu

11.1.11. Ogrpor Cpruisensnsd HHLILSDST6T
aLBerFamans Smeit UMl
@zwevLoijey

" oL GITHEWLDTET CUTDHENE (LPEHD EMLOWIBIS6NT6H”

aiFsrfsem, QasTHOT CHTUISMeNTS HHLILSDST 6

31,860 F N EIH (6TH BT D mBluwidle s L eoy.

Uensulensy LoMMID W IFTTU  UWeuT(h  mmiD

Q@zromT

Crrywmen GQaTLIY sreuliubhauCasT(h DisHHemnsl

Grruise sTesTLsUMMISenLuled
GrTul 2 _sleneujsEnd@ @% Gurawrs urdHlenu
IOUBSSEFDSI-
QAUTDHENS (LPeHMH eNLDWIEIG6MET BB b EThH G
LoMHMILD
shuugmaTer ulnAl  ulLedpwreig  WseaD
SMWHSHCHT(H
Blaw&HSH L BiHemern

BLESSIISDES UFIbSIDISEILGSSDII.

oreniBou, oy Grradlwiioment

LensUuilensv LDGIFTILD  6TBILIUMENMS

LIWeDI6TeNSHTH DIHBHM B

BuonOsmenT(HLd

MMy mwsfar Qxummor  Grmuit  WAiflaler
Gouemwi(hBamafest Buifled, BTH (PIPEUHID 2 _6iTen

OLCITHEWIDTET UTDEHMS (LPeHD  HLOWIEIS6M6TT
SIFHBTHBEHSETE LmBUleney LoMMID LOGIFTFLD
SBLILSDHST6
el GPHS @M% ULLODSESTLT  gHuT®h
QeuiwiulLgl. oiger  rou Blepsd 2018
7o Had  sEHSHMD DT L
P BT BEHHHTH BenLQUDMS). SLILbULI
ulLempuisst  Qeupmlullesr W& SiglILenL WS
oImbHEH Gevd @rewi(h MowFHsen HeudL 9
oMb 16 o> HaHsefled GHHBTHED LOTeUL L

6TTLIOUMEN M & NERW 0T F: S

EAR: 19

SL,CrTEAWLTET UTDHNS (LPEHD  HLOWIRIGET 6N
IPBTBEHHHTH  BLEHSUULLeor. 2018 19FDUF
21 b Had SBITTSYT T LI UL eDOUITEIS
100 siFsrflseafer LBRIGHMHUL AT HenL QUDMSIL 65T
oi@  aHTUTISHS LUBIGsmenL 6l  Fsons
BOHSS. BTG (PWSID 2 66T DIMDSHI
SL,CrTEAWLDTET UTDHNS (LPEHD  HLOWIRIGEIT 6N
e Gl B ETh b SLD bs
BlasdsE L Sms CBTLIBSID BLTSSMSDSS
SOOI (BeTeng).

uuipAweliugnsrs

o UuLD 30. Garmor GmrTulsh HGBUUSSTET DLBuTFamerd Hmer LM QFWET6] - SIHIFTSYTLD.
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11.1.12. efembugd  LoHYILD
dygsmyb 2018

pad@ailiyll

Frgnyen QurHuiLed

ymaulemeoll uweLTLenLs  sblLs GNHS @k
aflembugd 2018 glyed 22 S Had FeawiGL 6L
CFuHGsTefar @nIHl usSHH Geueiui UL L gL 6
PNIGWLTEH Wl uss efembugd 2018 mPpaTl2 b
Hadl LOragy oulevemi @zifled Geuaflul il L g).
SIMLOFF NEULITE)

SIBISHHHBILL L G

GurHuiemey  elembugliuBss @b  eumuily
LWSTL(BSHSLILLL &I
LweTUTLC196S\BBSI GeueGuimieugHmasT e

OzTenevBud Gxemeu (Quit Line)

1948 2_g6l SimiplI Bevéss CFemeuaniul 2ors @ ed @10
CrTsa5HNHMH (PHeTeug 26 & Guissd 20 — 20
Afs0s. CuTlQuTaECUTEl & imevsuflenguled
BLESSLUULL Gl “‘Ymaulensy Sieve0 oCrmedluismas
Caiboshmrssm” @b OgTallGurmeiear & 10
alleommy  efigBuimr  Hefliyssit 2018 &0l 14 Sy
dadl 2020 Gurlyuler euemies @ Cousnerule
Gurgl 16 weny eefuFluiulLer. ewWSSNEGS
HemLds Semwliyseier clamiaisme DG bHH60
(psuld  STLLUUL (BeTen  suenaulled SIS LPEULD
2 g6l omplysF Csmeuamuw GLLUBHBUSNEG B
2_gelujaieng).

GaremevdasT. Fuled

OGIFTILD LOHMID Yenasuleney LWTUTL DL 20b&E0UHSS
OL6d FHMBLILI(HSHSHM0 LWSTU(B S SIeUS60
(paHWdgouSHemen Bearmiseaiberen HFsry Fenuulen
ueniliumeny genu QaTenevsaT U UyFsmrsHe oifs
soueid OFHE SToTaldgisienear. @bhs oo sl
Gygamyd 2018 wewuy 15 wpsHed 2019 mevreurf)
13 euemdy BoLQUODE. AHECUTH  6uem.sTe0G60
Gomeusiioy G o1 “oudbs8s OHHHEa” sTapid
utLeoiL et 30 elpmg  efgGuimr  Heflll  Gevmimesuilsd
UsoumD cwaim CsTmenssT d Semevsuflamasafled
@eflugiuiiud Lg).

Bevmimauial Caxfw OFTemevdast Awmeigl Lysren
Qauwid  @efluginien
@ Gauemenuisd 30
@eflupiiyd  Qeuisg. o165 elembugd  SwrHes
OaTemevssET s sumeowenioly  (.5.6160)  HmILD
Ozren OsTmGEHTL 8 imevauflnaserfiled Sieujseren
drsmer Qeuidulen (pHeomeugl OHMID GF6eRTLToug
aujsss Gl CoumenuiaiCurg <185 wrssHer aury

Gurgl  (psHevmeuzl  euewils

Bl el  elenbursHms

Bndasaied (10 BT ser) @eflugiuiu’Lg).

yemauleney womid wgumeid Waren Gxfw fsmraenu

11.1.13. auys Czeneusmeir

LenauleneoLl QeueGuimid
PapsAsH LD (pa@iflenwl LGHWTS DenLwmend
sTEwOUL B6TeNgl.  (pFHeomeug 2 Sl  Siemipliy
OzTemeuBudly Gaemeuwmeng 2018 welm 12 oy
dad ompprayrn AImpHu s&STHTIL  uesluTeTy
SIIEIVBSHN Bl L gl Gsnars sHGUTgisTen
@evdsld  (sLLewiopm  @evdsd:  1948) ydHw
QuaQuT@Bemer MW SILBSSIH60,
SIMWPLIEaTE  erewienlibamamul AHBHSHH0 LoHMILD
Ogmimur’.(h Gy @wp.u. 8.00 wenll (WHeo 11.u.4.15
UMY BlodhalLBeUBET (Lpeld  UILBHSSILL (HETETSI.
SIFCaameussl sl LamdbHalmha  alBUBeTenCsT(h
BTlh  Swelw GCrFmeusnul AIPBRIGHUFDGTS  61L0&E,

uweTuTL 9eSlbBH S

2 _6iTeU(HLD

2 g  OQurelh uvlind  Qupp STy
aBeourgajsar  Guopuy  ewplysF  Cameuuled
uemflwirmmielestmeny.

@g@dy  shuyl  upPlu  oGerFemen  uuind
ulLenm SQwfesTels UTaIBILET LESMVGHLS
QIOEBIBOTTE)  BLSGSUULLG.  UBIGHHUTETTHaTe0
oy BeumFenen LD6YIH60 LO([HSHSHI6UTH6NT, LDGYIH60
whsE  PsTiEeT, wape  deflelsgaaisd
ueniiyflud  STHUTHET, LEHMEVHHDEMBISET  LOHDILD
SITEFFTIUDD  BNICUNTEISEHLET DRenewibd 2_smeluied
8ergsyseT, QuTg aaTHTL LHGFTHSIHET OMMILD
2 & H&MHM) Smwidar o mlilagss opdGwmy
SILEIGNT. oLCuTFMN DB  LOHHHIEUTHET,
CainlshasaiulL  umGaspurerjseiLen  CFIhHa
AT BTVHH 60 @&6umein

QUETLILISTEUT 6T HETT S Bgmen

LIL L 6nME (6T BT 6a
(WO BSHHIF
QF6e0UTTH6T.

2 ol  OxTeneBuflF
uemiwimhmieesimn
a8ergmen  Hnet  GNGHS FTENBY LT GBHUD
BLGSUULLGIL T FpsH 6L HRIGET (LPULD 2 _61&F
&aMHMy CFameuud Mmieuliul HeTeng).

GremeuujLeur
SHEENT6

BmeambH|
O BTEFSTHEHBHEHTS

2 muuL 31 - 2 erelwed yBeurgameiuied Fraifsp
urL Qi)
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11.1.14.2 o0& yemaulemew iy Hemd-
2018

s&MHTIWL, Cursmer HDILD &EHE WHSH MO
LHND 2 & HHTHTY AMWOTE  PHSHIMIPLILL 6T
ymauleney pmid &HFTTD Beter Cxfw oidsmy
FoUWTNS OaTeTens euGLuUTeTE6T, GHTLFUmLW
STF HenemibaeNEIssT LHNID Bineuamismend CFjhes
ugeusoren  LUirHBHaeusaILagngul 2 SHCWTSHHBT
GWES6, &HTHTT elghehTen LTLOBN LoTemTeu]H6iT,
yemasulemevd
URIGSTITH6T  LODID  SSTeuTengaeT  erarGumyg)
uBRIBaOULET 2 s Umsulmer eadjuy Hend 2018
wer 07 o Had) QamemiLriiuLg. @ealpreaisd
Qzengeu GaTHTy SmwFF] Hysw elmhSayTsau,
Aevmimauwlss mit NyHHd Qsemye ellmbHeryTaeab
H0bHG OBTERIL 6.

sLBUUTLG — BlepFfsAlLmisale

2018 o> SpemNgDBETE 2 & Lmsulensy eIy
g OerallOurmenms  “ymsulmey  HIID
@sw  Crmiser ewiug  AMWHECHTH  GmuIg
OarelliGummefie S1p B6VHSHIMTWLITL G0 (ETHLD
BLHSUUL L.  IHCHT(H BILRe @ Ursmen
&HMHTIL  Uysfenenuns  wrdlujsien  Lemslligdsns
yenauleneo
Sigiempw  Hewiid
alLwmisepst  ymauwlmend Osmdedsar  Hmeoui,
auflaldliy wpod ymasulmey FTGuy  GBTLFuTeN
drsdfeneset upPlw eleuTHEIBEHD DL BIGLD.

yemaswilemnevd s GUUTL(HSST Ghs eUmSWITET © W1y
oL o Bergmen BasWEFS  BLHSLILLL DWTEIGE

QaTLjuTSa LD efleur oL L 6.

SHOBHGIEMTUTLILULL  eJenenl

SMNSS LUEIGSTIjeefon,Cu Splobs alfiliyemiey
2 _mHaurssiuGausmean 2 nHOFUISSHILET Lmaulmed
ma50sMd0a  Fmeoui®h,  euflelFHiy oMo
ymaulenev wuly wrom  OsTLjumer el WwkiseT
upPfl QareTenssamen  LYIFTMIUSNETS  SILOTEN
SFASHUTHTLED 155 Deujseile
o wisBug.

ONEHHMSH

QFTIHOHI L DIDTEYBEHBBTE  6U6TH (G (LD6UTSH
o 6lEnTy Blyswijaer UBIGsmHmen]. FOUBSILLL
SIF BT B6N,
seemieu Camewi(h Bmeueimaer, QHTHOBIL L
wHmib BF eupmIGL Bneuemismend CFIhsH
2wy wmmid BHSHSJ WLL (PSHTENLOWITETTHENT,

DIMIDEFFHBOIT, 6063018 B VRIS 61T,

LISV SH MBS B606aIWIT6ITT 61T,
2611 HANUIEVT6IT H61T, urglsriyL uenL_ufest
oFsrfleel  LOMID  HBTHTT D& Fes

uesllwmenysel  p@CwTy BHs  pBevorFemest
Maaled LRIGHDHMENI].
yen s Mg lILBmHBTHL LwieTUBSSLILH S TN

Lemaulensv yewaLligsaTs Lemaulleneoulest
FmIG, ymasuwlmend masH0sT00  Hmeouih
womid suflal@Hy wHmId Ymaulensy ellenenddeo

@M  BIaG GSMPOBIL ST BETTE)

300 UBIBHMHUIT6ITT &61T SNy LU L 6o,
"2 08 Umsuleney ey  Hed”  Hlabeneu
151660161 (Th GUG| N7 Slui606uT Heb6iT LoMHMILD

QUTEIEHEHHEG Umaulensy &l Buum® umplu
Quidemw  QFTLIUTLED  QFUIUSMETET @ H
Anps opCeoraemet Bl GLD.

o (pUULL 32,33,34 & 35 2 ovs ymasulemey el Herd 2018
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11.1.15. #yeuGmh& MBETH LOHEID HBiLjew) el
Fal LD

yomawlmed asLGUUTHG  GHSES 2 606 &STHT]
swiipsrer  Flras  swamusdHar  (COP8)
aLLTD  Siofe el sjeorpdar  Omeafouraled
2018 oi&CLTUT 1 (pH60 6 euedy  HOLOUDMS).
2 qaammalu ymaulmend Osmeimaseils Simensg
SigriIsmen D eleurdlugnaETen weamwTéu Gl
ymawlmeds sl GUUTG GNSS FLLEE FoaUTWSHSH 60
o _mlensenTa 2 6ien JmMHSH BTHSHEHD BeVHE
CFBTEWILN. FHTHT] DMOFF] (HSTHTID, GuTFene
wopmi &8HF WwmHGHI dmwEFd), ALA. sifed (Hm
57, @.Erelal @emmasstar BIbsyl  AFSBiE),
semevau] (Yemauleney ommid waETIL WeTen Gadw
SIHSTY Fmu), LTGLT ol &1l Camwgms (Lemiiumemy
g 2 mileny womd Qurg &sTHTY GFemsuules
Guevdag QFweoreny), LmsLy Folsr elsyodms
Wyl uemiiiumeny BrwesD - OHTHLT CBIU), HHod
gieolal  sanpTwss  (@gauiLTeg  Geweoren,
QevmimassTar M.6r.olar Bybsyl AyHPd), LrsLy
GmrsT CaamydHen (Q@snysay SenwFsfen JHSIEISS
Qswevreny), &Hm. ugreHyo  uewiLTy  (LewliuTemy
gmu 2 _muleny wpmid CQeuGmem o & S
o2 gl  Qgweoreny), Hpwd ~G&HD  wgben
ueniiumeny semu o milifen OO MBHESHTLIE
opmid  eureniu - SigiueIB6T  SemFFe GBS
Qzwevreny), Hm. CFusdiguie QLeTdled &M 19
GuosdBsusu (Lemiitiumeny genu o minieny womid Ly
wgloufl oL, gi0fle Senauissenid), LI&L]
2 1o GauBsay (Uewilumeny Fenu 2 milderny wHMILD
Ozengey  emFFfET  WEBHT  QBTLIY  DieVI6UsVT)
ooy S, wds sgms HouHaGameur (wgieufll
ufiGsraay, waufls  Hmemssend)  SLECWTT
Bevmimaswls UydPdsetme LRGsHMET].

ey  WhSHGHa  HCravr  elfleyemywiment,
LOAB6Y LO(hGGI6N Bljewn] ommid  iFsry Fenuules
euemudljeureny  LTGLY  muiomed 19 Hledeurm
opmid  ueliiurery  Femu 2 mleimL  BevmmasL
GurengliQurmer uslwssHear rdHl  GumreSsd  wom
SFy  Fdeu  Qweuss opFCWTF 2018 wiemev
OIHL UTRIGTSESD BOLOUDD GSIewiLToug 2 605
GHTHT] DL - STUI GBTHTY GFTID Lmplws
Ul L@ UfbaImydaLILL L e].
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11.1.16. yamaswliemevds s GUUTG — uhpiw
FLLaurdaF FLswb (FCTC) 2030

@evmiens 2003 Boubuy 11 o Had 2 s
GHTHM Sl Lensulmend S HUUTL(H Luhmlu
FlLad goamwimg (FCTC) oipear drsmyn Gnss
FoamusHmen SmdSsfles opfwmals s BI6H
oPMID 2 edled BIEISTOIE BTG REVRIMSBWITES.

YenauleneveniLid &L (BLILGBSHSHIUSD ST
BLOIGSMBHMET  aUILILBSHSHIuSS  QurmLG 2030
Spb Wb udy  BIBEEHEG 2 HeUBDETEH
2 & SHTHM ML PN FLLSF FloeUTW
Qaweasd Spdume @ Wwuphdamuwd OSTLRIS6N.
ResHSI_LsHNs16 CaIHOsHSsIL L 15 BTBS6I
wLEw 0&faCsuuiul LCEsTH Bevmme  SieunuieT
QEOTEWL. @Bss  Czxjaled  LWATLGSSOILGBL
e Camevsaflled  @eaim  smeveuflwgliy  FUL&F
FLoaumwISHest @605 G BM6T SIMLEUSDSTE
FTGHLLTG. egmen  SieneyGameisenmerencl BT(h
SIMLbGl6iTen (eiGehmd, ydlued wHmid Biyeursd
seomeoenoulen  SFUUEIiY  LOMID  DSSMSBW
AUFHBEHHEHTS BTH STL(HD SLTEUD  CTGTLTEITGHLD.
REBHHILEMS CFUOUBSHIUSDBTH  (LPEDMEET
GNHHIE SOBSIMTWTHUSDSTS 2 605 HHTHT]
Simwliy/  m.6r.ol.Ceu. QRIS mRIHS &It
séGw 2017 oo 2018 o ewHEefed
Arewih  (peom  BVEMSHEG lmuwd  QFUISS.
BHaMHHILGHI  BLogbmBHaT 2018  QFULDUT
THD STbldaiul Le.

BEaHSHIH LD  UyHu 2 SHemET 2 [HUTHGLD
QUITERLEG P whpd OSTPROBIL SpSTO6 2 i)
OFui  o6BzxCumen  Gevmimauled  SHOUTMSW
(O3 (21{20F: [BL6UIQ & 6N HHEN6I QaweouBHl6umS
Gosuid auILILBSHSILD.

ymauleney pmitd WwgHFTID WeTer Cxfw oidsmy
FgmUF  FLLLD 2006 @60  UTTTEHLOTTINSST6D
SREsbsILLLG. G SFETHTY aFFflbamaseie
Senemey  GQurdulenr  (weiteid  eweid  80%  ou&
2 WISHWGILET SuFTHRSmeTD iHsfbas 2015
o0 FBHSILLL .

ollerbgflé o0,
QuUITHLBEHEHBTS

ymaslgss  (pouTg — GLEIEMm6N
o pusBL
gngryen Qurdsamen oMlpsd OFUIHH  WHDID
urLgtemeuselledmba 100 SLLT  6Tevemevd @6
yemaulemney almueneienul &L HULGSHIHN 2 a6l L
Cuaud Hev HmHHmIB6T 2018 Q6D SIEMOFFTENEULITED

SREsHGBILLLNT oAU B HmSHEIGMmENT

yemauleneo

Qeweoupdgiusnsts FlLsHe  GomOsTeTeTiLL
Gouewngw FHpSHmIE6T euenFWiLL (B cuhSeimer. Bbs
BLOIYSMBHET 2 605 HHTHT] MG FLLEF
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FOATWSHNEG DeWEIS 2 6T6men. AIHLOTEID OMHMID
uemieisasdeal  sPsflysmen  BHSHMOBTEIH
Palaurm e  ymasulamey eufl  Sidlsfllienuds
somsHHD ufl HSATEMS 2 (houTes HSM) FenL
OGN ED

FLLSF  Foeumwd 2030
@ eominauler
I g

BGHILLEPE B,
(peitanflenioseir Westeu(nHLOTM)

1) Gadw ymasulensvd &L HUUTL (B elulsdhdlet
eueny&Fd 20182022 gwnflésiinBaed

2) ymaulemeud OxTHe0gHIMHM
HmeouiL 1960 ([hHSI LenBUTen 605
&L (bLurL (hsb QBTeTENSHEMENTL
UTHIBTHFH60

3) gngmgewmt QurHuiLed o CuL  FLLWD
LMHMID DIDEOTHBHMS LIVLILIHSHHIHD

4) yemasuilemeo suflsemen o _uij&HHiHe0

5) ymaslyssts ymasuleneoulesr SEiGse
GMsHg  Np&amyn oLrllssliu®Gas0

6) ouywu ugmwfliys semmuied Lensuleneoll
vweur(  sEOYL upPlw @@ elifleurest

WBaWFHHHLL LD @(HEBISenemTLIL|
QeuIwIu®GS60. .
7) yemaulenev eleugmuisenern LomHmI

UTDAITSTISHNES LTHDH 256|560

2018 eupLThs SifEma

11.1.17. 2_svsmeomailwl
yemasuieme <pule]

auwIgI6uBEBSHT

ymaulemevd &L GOuTh upPlu  Soeouibhamend
ALOBH,  QFweuBHHHH — woHmd  wHIGH
QFwiusnsTs Brlgs Hnemer GLbUBSSHISH WHDID
ymaulmevd sLGUUTH  uphiw 2 &  SETHT]T
Siwller  FLLSF  FOUTWSSET  UTFHBIBEET
Gpurjeneu OFUluBNSTS 2_gailwefllé @
CBTEHHHILAT 2 05 HSTHT] Senol womid Crruis
sl GUUTL (G enwwd wonw SGwfssTailar Godw
GHTHTT  HlYIeUeid  elaueuDMIL 681 Lenauleney  Lommid
wgETrD BsTer CaAll sy Fou 2 _csTailu
auwgubCHTT yamaulme Spuielener GomOETemIL gl

15 euwg oo  osHEG  CooulL euwg

aubGeuTseienL Gui yenauleney LIWIGTTLITL 6mL
BEUIIBITEINE LD 2 _.61.1.3U16) BGxdlw
iy S5 3615 SIL6vTT 6ot o _6iEHTY SLUIITGLD.

BBs opWeureng 30 &L  GoupullL  BTHH6MN
BLSSLILL (BoTong). Sieupmled flev @emmise@ Gmul L
Oa1Ly  opulesemen  Uisd OFligetener.  @gl
yemasuleneoll Lweium(® wmmid Lensuleme sl GUuTl (b
Qamemns SieaTssSHM LGN JDFRIBT GHNHS
CaxAl  oenaled  UpHBlHdgen  HImeu  AUPEIGLD.
BTHBEDGEG @MmLUld MMID RO o Uled6i
LPEVLD smeolIBUTE 60 gmu(HLd LOTMDEISEN6T
QuUiBaugDaTaT  Buamoamwll  QUDDISSHS @
SIOUGSSIULL  Gppwampowd uwauGsE BbhS
iy CuphesmereriLhSEma.

yemauleney ommid wgFTyd stear Caiwu oidsmy
FMU  LONID FHTHTY JMOFH, LEHH6T  OHTnD
semsOsBUILY OO LsTefaleuyd HlenemieasensaiL e
GmeNhg 2 06 &HTHTT el womd Crrul
sbUY PamowsdHar o slwrd b Spwielemen
RQevmmaulsd GomOaTamiBetsiar. @b Wi SBTen
OamPedmL L N HE 2 H6l 2 s HHTHTY
sy wopn  CeTw  sGBUY  Blemeowdbemed
aUpEIBLILIHE DT,

allenmé OES Y SWMféalILGS60, r il
augeuemOlIl] MWD eure] GFeveyd SHLD swmfhg
(PYdaiubGH o LuL opelhsmer SpJbL  Lelsel
gnamiGa  OsTLmsIUL (BeTenar.  Bhs  Cadlw
Sieneleonen  opwiedel  opwHBL  UewiEeT 2018
Bmid auemy Siedsvg 2019 (PH6D HTEUTEWI[H UMY
OaTL®w.  syey  Gsasflly 2019 BEHULGHUID
OaTLmIs ALl BetengiLer  (igeysst 2019
BnPsGeT HmLbG. Bbs Ul bsTen Cmasms,
seilaisat wHmd yHw wHHw sl Caemeuwsld
Curenipy FbuSHW Hrey Gaiflliy wOHMID LGLUUTWE
gngemismer CrTWl SHEHUY enould LOHMILD 2 _60H



GEHTHT] DMLY UPBRIGMCHT(H SpUle (PYEYDDSH6
Qeitenn]  oiemeundssm OpTens Samb0sBly HmID
yeiiefelours —Hemenissamsbdlar  Qanhsms  ommi.
Qs oplassTer  alamsE0aTsHIBeT  GLlisefled
L BeupmiILBEUGIL 6t BHT6LH6I
uGLUTWIeEsTS ChIRwrs mww  CFmewssHnG
simiuiu@Gw. Cerwl sEUY mwwsHmesE Cahs @
Gw 2017 @0 @emmsdE ealmuw 0FISCHTH
SFBMT  FoU  LHOIDWEST COFHTens  Sas0sHLIIY
wpmd  etefeleuss Hemenissensder  CBTfedmi
o fluifsEhoHETar  ULLMDD QTN  BLSHHWS.
w&H6T OFHTns HamsOsbUY LOHMID LeTaflaleurs
FmanssMSHRGHID LMmBUlmney OOMID  DSHIFTILD
e Caflu  GsmPsdmplu  umlum COLT@Hssrs
2018 glged g SGwHssTalE S eomeRiLTalsd
BGuevds Luwing oieflesiulLg).

Crafasiiul L

yemauleney womid wgumeid Waren Gxfw fsmraenu

11.1.18. yamaszaonm Ymsulmed SHLLY
&P FASHI L Eisei

G&mpLby LIGOE M VBB BHH 60 @PSHSIMLPLIL|L 6T
BTLIed Lmsligssrd Lmasulme LWLl @hds
@F Soywelmenr oiFary  gouwler  Umsssemm
yemaulenevd smHSHLLLD ComOsmeni®h aumEainagl. Leo
SUTWS Godmen 2 _sTenLsdll Ga Uil Lemalsd
BT{H Swalw utflu SpuiuTGw. BznE Cuweadsons,
alevgfiilemen Bremuliugners AP Seralsomer
wrdf SpUieyH6T QHEIGMDITS GLHEBTETETILL L 6.
0] s (Uum (B dflalled  dlewLs @
STeBeMedHBEID, CUITHMEIL LESMmESHHIDHHS60
usd mEHeN ULsHa  SreysefeldmBbaId HIEISE6T
BIT6YBHEMENLI QupmyeTGenmid. [9)13%::) U161 6IT
SMNHHID  61HhHCUTH  LmdliligdsTs  Lemasulmsol
2 pusd, BnaGLd,  elpumen
Sloevg  AlDUMTHE — AIPEIGHON — eTaLDDISGHS
smL alFes@G FLLESm AMWPSILGHSHIISDE
Hea  uwesTenETe Sohsar. IBESHEsIULL
Sidlsmflsefler Sialene QST LILGDH ST S
SIUTSHET uulhmield s ILIBeuGIL 6ot eI jemrTey
PapsdsHLmise CumOaTsieriiLGasime.

QumL el

yomIGmTwmed uUTHdbslLlLaaEhHE0w  Seufseie
GBLL SEBSSHUTHEHSGL LOHDID [HENILITSHEHESGLD
HEIBET  BHHHGHMN  QouellILBSHUSNETS @
HNHMS 2_(HoUTSBAD, Sieufseien 2 ulJeurpousne
SiFsu’s o galamenl GQUDeD euTuled . L
tepr 1§ (Voice of Blue Pea) @uissd Blmieuliu L g|.
@ns QuasmseT @UCUTEH waTTEL  JELSaT
LO(HSHSIGULDMEN, LeD LOHSSHIe Blmieuesid, GuiTgHemeuill

UaEMmOGSHYSD,  @rseryfl  whmd  symily
O(HSSIGUDMENTH6N60 BmieuliLiL (HerTemen.
yemalgssrs yensulenev O oumuteul

UhmiGmTUIsE erdima GomsTeateriu®w elulijemryey
papFfaepbate yOMCHTWIED utHéssiulL @bs
Crrwrenjser LWIpmelssUUBeTTCHT(H  SISNEHTS
Siujseiar 2 el QupliuGEnal.
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2 BUULLD 36. UmadHoDM Lmasulemevd HHLILS
OaTLIurs QFHTLILeNLW  UBISHUTLLT6I & ElhL 6T est
OL,BoTFMENS Tl L EISH6T

11.1.19. Guflu  yewasulenev wwpmd  HAplus
@evd@G®en upPw pFTUIFS

@bs opyruiEd 2017 waouy 1 oo 2018 mereufl 29
5@ @@Ll BLESUIULLFIL T Lmaulensy Lommib
wHFTID BT SiHsTy Fmu QaTpby, Sbuam,
ey, @IHaLfl, WTSSMD, USIDET, HTTHLTLD,
GOBTHE,  WTPLUTewID oML HHBHTamIoem6eD
B WyCssmisemend  CFihs  Fmieujsefilen
allenenum’ (h  DIOGTEOIBISST, UTEVJ  UTLFTNEVHAT,
SLILOL MWD @FewiLmd Bleneult LT sTenevseflledmha!
500 SCLy smmereled SiemwpbaeTen  LFCsamsafled
sremluGdAED  ymsulamed  alembugd,  elpuee,
&M Hs6T  PMID  OBTATIPSHD FIMSBB6T LMW
BOUL SpUleysenen SiHsTy Fenu GHOSTEVILF. S
auemawiTe efwruryd @Gmlseied Lamsulaney alpuene
CunGsrstemniu@Gdam, Ursemw  QeuwiubGEesm
Siev6evgl BT AIUGSSILGDED FHSTLILBISMET HET
(paaujset uHe CFUigeTene).

2018 sumBLTHS SiNHma

Beumnilev, allensmuim’
MDSTAEIBEHSE GBS0 smewiulL  LyTeniBaet
Gamedl &S0 (156 gFhHSILUURIG6T), Leiamed (93
FhelumIEeT) oo  Gmmer  WGemwy (22
FhSHTUILIBIEENT) N SIENLOTH 61616 Bemeu
SMAHHID  USTITL B  Lensulemey  Bimieueiom e
Uil yes oSGLfésa ymaulame  BneuaisSHna@
(9e119)  Q&FTHSLOMETEMEUWITGLD.

LITL&Ten 606 LoMmILD

Qetteumd  SbmsWTeng  6ImIEsl
saipUlgliysamen eleuflddlsment:

yevemmuiedest

o GumewLjser (71%), WeOGuTIBH6eT (22.4%)
wpmd o efembuyd  (6.4%) SpFwieneu
ellembLIy Salest &b QuTgleumest
AUIQAIRIGBETTHS HTEUILILIL L 60T

s @b uGHaefed Oametsuatey GCFulISNE
Qu@peurflwmes STt L Yo BUlenevds
swrfiiiyser HsQrL (44.7%) Snss QBHTLIHS)
ymallgsars Lmaulmen QurmLast (42%),
wpmid e (13%) oLGLb.

- OBs UG Hs6rMe0 DFBLOTH Guomuig

o2 pusdHsemen  elpuemer OFulmr  @LEISET

fPw  wellenss smLs6T  (64.8%). MBH

QaTLibBs Oxm elpusmeiwmenjser (21.4%),

wpmd  BLOTGHL  elpusnerwTerjsst  (7.8%)

B0

. DmeNEhIHEEMT  FIHGWL sy OQUITGHleuTest

SHHAHGTTUTWILOTS SIMLOHH HLILG
@6vmlenaullss LevBeum) @L_BIH6160
SIMLOHSHIET6T LITL &IT6n6V&H6IT LOMMILD

alenemuT(h MSTRIEIGMENF  &HY  @HEND
Ha0r(hasemen (100%) elpuenen QFUIISTGLD.
+ @evmiemauled @lyevenmuie) GmGsTeemiu L
92% @LmisaNe Fmeugseilen Hewr 0L L G360
(@amymwions 1 BLLT) yewaulemnsy 2 _musdsel
SIUSTeuNbBLILIL L 6.
+ 85% aisoner yemasulened 2 musHl QuTmL aeir
WlLmul, @ellyser Sievevgdl  QUTDENLOEEIT
AL RIS EHSHGH
SHBTemwulled ST AILBGHSILLIGHHSH60T.

T AUuBSSIuL(Heien

alpuenen  OQUTHLBEHSHTE  HewL  GFwiILL (Heien
yCxad
BOL(POUGBHSILL Couswi(Bd. CETaTems @RevHEHTH
500 Sl opemrs@an(100 L jseledmba
SiPsiflbaiulL) allmuenen QUITHL_BETHSTE
ST enwl HEML (OEIENEA ] FLLHMS
alfleurs@oug LflbaImIHSILL6VTLD.
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BI&H FTf et Georm mLo

13.1 dé sapm

yemauleney womid wgumeid Waren Gxfw fsmraenu

Hewaswlensv pmid wgFTrid WFTer CHFw HySlSTr FemL
2018 4. QFui 31 9 ib Fsglulled
Pfewe upglu Syfléems

@iy 2018(em) 2017 (em)

QT g 5IdS56T
BEDL_(LPENDWIEVEIT OlFT g 56T
o 51" L_amioiiL] euedasm,OUTH) obmiid 16 17,763,509.52 19,130,254.89
O LI T 63T BIGS6T
LevemLog ClFTSHg| 17 53,046,996.07 28,463,269.37
S| (HouUF CFTEHSIHH6T 18 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
BL (PP ClF TS5 %561
@iy 19 34162.58 12,638.11
6u TG euentriy wesmeu 26 - 118,613.32
(Lp6&dTInL_1g W ClF&VIdEHeVS6T 28 50,000.00 115,100.00
HTFLD HTFHEGF FLOLOTEITEN6L N5 EIHLD 20 290,809.39 967,164.45
Qurss QFTdHgIdbH6T 73,546,350.02 51,164,930.14
Quirpy i &aseir
L penmli GummiLidaser
I Hmus ClFevailssribiser 21 1,691,233.14 1,864,577.77
L& 6&TewL_d& e 67HUT(HEH6T 22 186,738.50 120,255.00
CuTgl eweuLiLdsHeir 23 129,323.02 4,048.02
Qurss Camlw C\FTsgidssT 71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35
Canlw QFrdgisssir/e_fep 1pgHe
CLPEVS GITLD 24 6,560,893.26 6,560,893.26
s ClsrenL_ 25 66,677,823.10 60,753,500.00
Srew_ evs/(uppTé Geop) 29 (18,115,912.18) |  (18,138,343.91)
WPhIW uBLSSDEBTET & TTdEH6VB6T 27 16,416,251.18 -

71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35

Qevsiens CQUITHS Flewm TSI (S SrBlwwkiseflst LTy @Qbs  Blddam Dmidassr
SWrfEsU@BHeD LHMID (eiTeflewsOliLBdHe) CGTLTurs ussfilliureri Femu CUITMILiLddm neD
Couswr(Hd. @b BlFlds Fmpmudbsst ussfiliureri FewuuilerTsd biSsMsE0UL R Djeuiser
FTTLITS sUILILOIL L1 (h6iT6mesT.
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Lewsullensy wHmid wgiFTrD BFTer C5fw FsTr Fewu
2018 19.QFbui 31 b FlaSlujL_6iT WpigeuwLBS aIHLSIDHIBTeT
BIFlF QFwerHmiens uHBlw g Hm

Czsnw flews! (UhmTs Gewm)

DIy 2018(em) 2017 (em)
Osmifmur’ (h e(FLOTeTLD
ST QHTedL - BTG 1pib 9 19,387,360.00 13,000,000.00
CLPSVSET GIHETewL (3)6VH T %6V 30 12,902,798.55 -
QLTSS au(HLOTETLD 32,290,158.55 13,000,000.00
Qarflpur’ (HF GlFevallerid
e flwii FLOLIGTLD 10 7,709,152.11 3,535,245.45
BIST&HInLg W GLIT(HL &6
ugmrifliiy 12 986,728.05 507,904.18
RUILIHSERFTT CFemeuser 13 10,821,251.91 10,225,870.76
Gl TeTId HMID B)VSHTEH5H6) 14 12,902,798.55 10,784,56.35
Qurgs Qasrfbur’ (& QFevaierid 32,292,480.02 25,472,364.70
Qsrflpur’_ ® CFwpHur®EHefleT epevLomesr (2,321.47) | (12,472,364.70)
wewas/(LpHDTdEGemD)
Bglé Sruib
UEIE S S L T RIS6T 15 9,260.00 6,250.00
Csrflpur’_® QFwHuTHSefleT epsLbTeT (11,581.47) | (12,478,614.70)

2018 eu@pLThS SiNsHams




yemauleney womid wgumeid Waren Gxfw fsmraenu

yewasullensv ommib wgFryid Wsrer Csw FlaTr Fevu
2018 19 QFbuir 31 i FlBFlujL_6T (PIg UL bS aI(HLSI DS Tesr

BIFI0 LMiIEFeD g DM

Gpliy 2018(cm) 2017 (ew)

Qarhum’ B QFwmnHuTBHsemsT fpevLpreT HIGI

LmilFsFs)

Qarflpur’ B GFwpuT@seflst cpsowTer Csmlw 11,581.47) (12.478,614.70)

lewa/ (UHDTS GHswM)

FITESHE6T - -

QsmADL® CPVSRT HL L wThISEHES (LPHDIw (11,581.47) (12,478,614.70)

Qsmfipumr’ (G @)soruib

Cgiiwrargglar oslsmiiyl (GmmausnL_ge) 14 12,902,798.55 10,784,566.35

ST EFTHISSSGT CLPVSATH CFTeDL (3)6VSTE 6V 30 (12,902,798.55) -
| @)L (1 F5NE560) G e pmausnL_g6D 19 (21,524.47) 5,386.21

urGeusiiy weve (9FHMNSH6V)/&®DauHL 56V 26 118,613.32 (118,613.32)

(P&ITanL_1g W QlFeVIHSVS6T 28 65,100.00 (115,100.00)

()5 MNS560) GHwDouswL_B6»

®euLlIyE6T 9 FH M550/ (GwDausnL_g6v) 23 125,275.00 (141,951.98)

L On FsMNSH50/(GmmausnL_g6b) 21 (173,344.63) 1,832,727.33

oor )luiT & 615 % TedT ClFeVI F 6VBEIT 22 87,511.50 58,275.50

9)B5 M550/ (GPPaImL 56)

Qs mfipur@ssfler epsvid L L1’ L LigwTLD 190,049.25 (173,324.61)

Casrfipur’ ® QewpLrBseafst cpewrar Gsmlw 190,049.25 (173,324.61)

BB umiiFesv

W& Q¢ QFwnur@seflsr cpewrer BHlN

Uri1gse)

Qury) wHmID 2 _LsTewnTHISsT Ol TsiTeams) 16.1 56,571.00) 3,222,946.87)

9| (H6UF C\FTEHEI5 5 EhHBTET GlBTETarsy 18.1 (246,698.00) (67,890.00)

LovswLwd QFTEHEI&H5EhESTET ClE TeTemsy 17.1 (28,213,135.31) | (23,106,792.75)

cpevger WerellliL(rarms GsrenL) 25 27,650,000.00 26,460,000.00

W57/ QFwbhur@Bsefsr cypsvwrer Comlw BlFI0

UTIEFF6D

(866,404.31)

(62,370.38)

au(HLGBl6T @)msluiled ST STaHdGHF

FLOLD T63T 66U B (61H LD

ST&ID HTHEGF FLLTTUSEH C5nlw (676,355.06) (110,954.23)
&MLy [(GewmeusnL_gev)
A BLSBST DTLGHD STEHD STEEEE 967,164.45 1,078,118.68
FLOLD T63T 66U B (61H LD

290,809.39 967,164.45
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Lensuilene wmmid wgsFrrid asrer CsAw ySlarr Few12018 19 Qe 31 gyib

Blaglullev
2 flewio pHeL LTHME Fn HMI

2018
CHLIMT.
2018.01.01 gy Fagluflsv NATA Blgluib 49,176,049.35
HL_[bB 6U(HL_BI%EHHHTET & JTdhdH60DH6IT 16,450,264.38
. . . .. 8,822,878.35
HL_[bd U (HLBISEHIHHTET GlHTEWL (3)6VH Td> 560
2018.01.01 gyib Flaglulled Frrésiin L Bleeneu 56,803,435.38

APVSTE CHTEL B) VS TEH 6 (12,902,798.55)

STV LGB SHHTET FIiTddH605%60T

(11,581.47)

UHLSHDETET Lhlewa/(LHMTHEGH®MD)

2018.12.31 gyid Flsgluiled Blsyiemeu 71,539,055.36
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13.2 pHsFapnSEnsETET GNILILS6I

yenasuilewsy whmib wgFrrd srer CaHw Y FlaTr FepL
2018 yaouir 31 g Syl 6T WyudLES QBHL ST BBldbdm HmIdSEnddsrer
@I s6iT

1. swrfiyssreT ojigliLienL
1.1 @lewTE5d FHmI

yewsullewsv wommib wgiFrrid Wsrer Caflw oFlarr Fepuullet BldldEdam Hmisserrerene
BiglBlemey LuHPlw FHmi, BlF GFwsvTHmiens uHBW FmmHm, BISI LTLFFO LuHBlw
Fmpmi, 2 few YHL WTHMS FnDHml LOMID BlBlESIn HDMISBEHBHTET &ML SH6T
eTTLIUNENME  ClBETEdTH Y wWhHLHIETenS. @)bd FmDmIGHHeT @eVBIens L L uid
HEWTEHEHTOTT BlmeusrsHlerrsd Geuaflull_ i’ L @evkiens CUTHISHIMOD HawTdhd L (Hd
S Bluwersiseaflest Lrsrr swrfldbsiiul (Hsireret.

1.2 QrwpHu® wHMID FLOTLILIERT [HTeTIILD

Y BTT  FeouwleT FBllEmmmisser eugorHmids  Slrw  wriler  9glitenullev
Swrfésiiul Herer@sr® @)evmkiens epumullsv(en.) Fwilililssiiul (Hererer.

1.3 9raThisd ClsrenL_dseir

YBHETr  FeouwTeTgh  @rewtlh)  suswsullevrer  CaTewLsemertt  GlumiSleTMGI.

O|HEUWITEUEIT,
- CLPEVSH VT Gl TeWL_d56iT
- LTI (191D Gl&TemL_g6iT

CLPVHETS OlETewL &6 ClUTHIGFHIWD HewTdhd L (D SrplwwmisHeaflsT Ursrrb seanrddLl
ughuliul (hererer. @)bhs WewpulesrCurg cpevserds OlarewLser LNHEuTL i’ L
QUHLTRTLTS HHBUILL HeTerCHTH g1 IjgliuenL_ulley CaFTsHgidhsHefler LweysTor
QU sTVGSleT g eHmISCsTETaT LI (R6iTarg).(2_sTrewTions.  CF TS Ssefleor
auHLThs CpuinTerd CFwwiiul’ L QuuIwE eHLSSIDSHTET 6U(HLOTETLOTS & 6vTd: &Ll

uglwiiu’ (herergs).
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Tifz (AT OB TewL_WITedTg) @O L & TEVLILI GB35 T6vT 6 (IHLDTSVTLOT &5
THmIECETaTarL LI (BHeiTarEsm(H B FlF QFweTHMIEHS - HMIn @ UTey
DUSSLILIL (H6TETS].

2. QFrggss6T WHMID YjsubhBler WHINT B JygLiLenL
2.1. gygevrid, QU] LHMILD 2 LIS T6vTBIS 6T

S Herd, Clury wHmID 2 LsTERThIGeTST ElTwrersl OFThgIshsewer eummler
ergliurigasliul L uweTuml g6t QuTHL(H Couemev GlFuiujh Blewsvewiods@ds 65 Tevt(h
aHUSHHTEH GumllasTsrariiti’ L g8seid GlFvalarsgL T ClaTsrars) 9sLeVGI
BT LD T 630718 %6185 TEvT &l T UILDT GLD.

QFrdgissemar LweTUTL (h&@E THSSSHI g FoH CsTL s alHemTbasiLBID
Flaglauenys CHUILTETLD auLpBISGLILIL (HETETd].

Eumrn wHMID 2 LsTeRThIGET sTedrUeT LilsiTauhd ChriGasTl B wewmuilsy GgpiioTerid
QFwiL®ib. Cgd QY sHerid, CUITY] LHMID 2 LISTERTHIGET - (B)VBINS GILITFHISHSHIHM
seTEE L (hd Oarsrens 7 360 allgliyenr GFwwiiul (herer suswsuilsd Glumrn wHmiib

2 LIGTERTHIGET STl (pedmuilsd Hevvrd:@LiLgluliLi’ (HeTergi.

Ursrer eupLrbs allalsnisst LilsTeum eusnasuilsy LiwsitL(B)ds L1 (RS m6vT.

SU_L_LBger Hmib QLTG5 ensssT 25 au(pL_missir(4%)
@UIHET FTEHETRISHEHLD ©_LIdST6RTHIS @D 10 sugpL_missir(10%)
SOTUTL RIS HMID CLIT(5HSsnasHer 10 suL_tuser(10%)
senflesflger SeunL_ st (20%)
QzalliiLje0 HMID HULjQ) B_LIdTeRTBISST SeunLmissr (20%)
UTEHET RIS ST 10 sumL_niismer(10%)
TdTIWEDa 10 aumL_iissir(10%)
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m OsFrdgisarar Caiiwrer allflgsslsy, Blaewey GUMILSESTET LWy sTer
YU HTVSFV  SHewflFwrer wrHmd  goul_(herersrs  STLLUUEL UL FHP60
9 FOlFTHHler Cauirerorerg yslw srgliurilitlenest Urdluedliugmasrs eTdliEmevLd
HHSHBH Carerariit’ B S(HSSLLEID.

9T LDLIS 6D LEANTNC) CF w1 CFWeLTHMIWSHS STBWLSH 60 (B b
eTFTUTTSSIUL L. QUTHTTSTT BevsiTsenear GuenfldF GClFsveIb CUTHL(H D SHeTLD,
QUTY] VDG 2 LIGTERTHIGEHSSTET FH(hbHD  Hevevgh urTwfiifler CuTwL (b
CunblsmsrarliLil’ L GlFevayser euaurm CumelsreTarliLBD FheiLliLgsdl) GClFevaTs
TMMI&6HTeTerLiLI(HILD.

2.2 o|meuF ClFTSHH5H6iT

CeTOILTHeTHmeT GlaTeToausTe] CFIIMSNHETHS CLNHEISTaTETILIL L CFsvallerd 9| meus
QFrssTs THMIS6ETTeTILHUCHTH HYFOFTSSHIGEHET YouNPINETET — LIwisy|6iTear
QUi sTeVD  Lomes  wlIipEsEd  OFinwdiu@b.  Ursrer  eumLThs  efHmIST
UilstTeu(mLomm) yewLossledTmeuT.

9| (HoudF O\FTSH1dH6T 20 sumL_mizsT(5%)

2.3 yevewd O\FTdh g

Yewsullewsw whmih wgsFTrd sHLNemer suspiayl’ HeusmaTar ClFwmUTHHeT FTiuTss
Cunllsrerariiul’ L. Caveallerhiser Levswwd OGlFrsasTs  THMIGCISTTariiLI(HILD.
I SBMHW QFwHLUTHS6T QT Tumresr iyl 1 v/ CevTFenear Bl&HLpFASHL L KisserT,
YDV all(hhHz], Lewasullewsd HMID WHFTID STET YBHHTr FewuF FL L SFlewesr
BewL_(pewDLILI(HSSHIHD, Yl WHMID FHaue) (pewmewid wHMid GoHumriensy HMILD
wHNTLTE Q@ermsTantiLu@BID. LVsHwsF OFTSSTOTSH  YSMHSTRT  LIWISY|6TET
WL STV Lrms wHLILNMEaD CFiiwiiublib.

Ulrgrer eumLThe 6FSHmIG6T LilsdTau(HLOTN)| J6W LS 65T M 6dT.

Levewiod QFrdg S eupLmigser(20%)

3. &GS CBTdHEGBH6T

FTéEG CBTHGSH6T @)(HLIYS Srwssn @ walT@H GFinwulin’ Hesrerest.

2018 eu@mLThEs SiNsama 43



ymaulensey womid wgumeid WeTen G Hsmraenu

44

4. srad BT &S5 GEF FLOLDTETEN OIS GHLD

HTFHLD HTFHGEF FLOLOTOTENEUSEEHLD waHUlley 2 sirar LIewTd wHMID eubisluiley 2 eTer Liewrd
TOTLIQINEN M G1HTERT(H |eWLOHS] (G LD.

5. QumrmiLiL)seir

FLbs STV Blapeyseaflsst QumCGUDTES BL LUy SLLUuThH 2 6rer@urgl 0b6lGTanasLl
WEFA CurmiliLseiT THMI&H6STeTarILI(HILD. HL_GTH(HBIT sp(meu fledr
Couanr(hCaxmefleir Lilrsrrd CFessLiLiL. Cauanriqur HVeV% WHOSTewSHL LGS TSHSl6m
Fag) CHTL S50 HeUBHLSSNDGHT QFISLSLILIL Couenttiqws HL_LILTHHT 0bH06lSTenDs
UGS reHler pL iy QurmliyseTTs &S {HID.

6. au(pLOTeTLD 671D MIS 6\ eiTemLILI(hg6v

epVBHeTs  CEsTewLser UHCUTL LUl L eu@BwTerTwrs nms6lsTsreariiLl (heTerst.
LB eisTGlL_(LpLd OB Tem L6 HTEVLILIGS& B T6vT 6 (HLOTEITLOM S
THmI&6sTerariiL’ (HeterCHT(h aU(HLTRTE Fn DBV auTey WauGHLILI(BLD. HeWITHHI
CFsvallerhisEnd 9L Hmi iy LlitenL_ulled s7HMIdH6lETarariiLiL (hsirarsyt.

7. uBsiseflliyg S L Bigeir

FemLwresTg) 2 flwiigeflest Gwrds Fouergslsd wenpwrs12% whpmin3% CFwsvru BlF)
woHmib BbLilsens Glurmitiy Bl& sriurs ukseaflliy GFiiSsTng).

8. BIFILI UmFFeD Fn DMI

Cpiflev wpewm LwSTURSSLILL B BIFI LUTHIFFD gn DM SWTHASBOLL (HeTeTg).
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yewasullewsy whmiib wgIFTrid sTer CAw HB&ETr FemL
2018 apui 31 b FagujLer WiyauewL b IBHLSST B35S D DIdEEHdbSTRT @M1 H6T

@moiiy: 9 2018 2017
- -
LBest@L_pib 1lemerfliinyg
19,387,360.00 13.000,000.00

a6 1pid ererfliiy (9.1)

GrSgd 19,387,360.00 13.000,000.00
@ploy: 10 2018 2017
€15 ¢h-

sariflwiit FLbLiemid

ueTlwm’ QL T@g)&sTesr FbLeTid 6,267,008.25 2,926,883.27
oor. G 1. Lkisaflliys QsTens 348,032.72 213,169.55
oar.5.ClUT.B. LBIGaILS CHTenss 87,073.18 53,292.39
Guavgls Crr Gsusmev 289,526.46 283,624.74
Ul Q& TOsTemL_& ClFsveassir 87,511.50 58,275.50

ELrggid 7,079,152.11 3,535,245.45
@midy: 11 2018 2017
€15- 5.
QIPBISHE) LDMILD BIsTddnlq s ClLmpL_aseir
FHT ) TE BT LHMILD a1e05s GsenallILITMET 85,429.87 19,011.21
ﬂnﬂ@in’gdr POID A s 0 355,801.53 333,516.75
® .. 61,318.00 66,250.00
2_6wT6)y/ ()60 2_6UUT6Y LIT6UT BIFHGIT
Qrggip 502,549.40 418,777.96
Goliy: 12 2018 2017
5. 5.
pgmomiig
suraesTll Lirmofiiy 639,001.55 337,314.18
IWIUE 2 LsTemThisefler urTfiy (Hewresflsst wHmb 347,726.50 170,590.00
@ uihBlT FIrgesTBILH6T)
ALLEE ) 986,728.05 507,904.18
@pliy: 13 2018 2017
€15. €15
@UILIEHFTT CFemeuseir
@LHTG'L) HL_L_65THIGHET 15,59000 37,17000
QB TemVCLIA/() HERTIISHET &1L 60T MBI 6T 202,117.44 212,923.28
Sl surrpsma;/gul_'luu'mér Cremeusseir 8,536,155.72 8,443,954.62
OGTEFTTS FH1_L_eRTEISET 685,210.69 796,966.86
BlIFeUTs LGTIILITETT FenL &L L eWTBIG6T MDD D _LIFTen6ssTH6ir 1,060,535.81 643,073.00
321,642.25 91,783.00

afler LT mig6r/eyemedtil GlFeVey eI

Qurgsid

10,821,251.91

10,225,870.76

2018 euBLTBS SINdbend




ymaulensey womid wgumeid WeTen G Hsmraenu

yensullensy ommId wgIFTrD tsrer G HFETr Fenu

2018 i 31 gyib FaFluyL et WigouedL bS5 aHLSB6T BS]Edm HMIdEEHSSTr &BILILS6T
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@mioy: 14 2018 2017
B- -
Gainoresro — 611D, QT LOHMILD D115 T EFTIB!S6IT
UL RIs6T opmit QUTGES5IERET 77,808.00 77,808.00
@UHAT FTHATEIHEHLD ©_LIGTERTEIS @B 155,439.75 155,439.75
SOTLITL IS ohmIid QLT (eI Hser 138,386.05 138,386.05
& eufleafl g 6ir 450,975.97 450,975.97
QT & EITHISGET 1,414,350.00 | 1,414,350.00
QFailliysv HMID HL_LjV 2_LIGTesTHIS6T 599,725.00 599,725.00
TPITUIEHEI 4,341.40 4,182.35
Gl Tesri- LjsVenind OFTSgI
LenaUilewevw|Ld gIFTIBISEDTWD LSBT LiwsTUBSHCourswrs $®LILSemenT
CuLBSSHIMUSHETS FUPpSTWSISleHeT ausdIgpL (HF6V 1,041,457.88 | 1,041,457.88
L& &S00 HHS al@uBausHETaT Blspdfsmer sugdiap (HFe 11,232.73 11,232.73
1).10.18.91.5.FL_L$60F O (LpDLILHSSHIUSHSTES UFS) 6ULPHIEHSH 6D 1,065,813.91 | 1,065,813.91
L1015, 9.5 .SyIaIESHT 2yHmed afl s 28,811.16 28,811.16
LGIFTTSSIET & BISleHeTd GWMUILSDNSTS CaussSl L CloTeiTenm 61 d %560 368,516.68 368,516.68
Yewsullewev oMHmib gIFTTLD euiphissd HMI Casall @ewmealiLi(Bgs0 984,572.77 984,572.77
D0 a5 Hapids A L s 2,142,887.81 | 1,144,461.14
Pl 1 60 wHMID HCVTFMT Bl&PFHSSIL_L_HigssiT 2,643.456.20 | 1,760,505.47
oy ity WHHID SEaED WML 849.789.03 625,369.66
. . - N 807,339.72 634,062.48

ST TewtlLIL) LHMID GHLTiensu
CaliioTesrid — ) (Heud CFTHSHI
O|(HoudF QFTEGI5S56T 117,894.50 -
Qorgsid 12,902,798.55 | 10,784,566.35

@mlay: 15 2018 2017

- -

Blgld Slrwib

UBIE S &L_L_GUTBIG6T 9,260.00 6,250.00

Qurgsid 9,260.00 6,250.00

@oloy: 16 2018 2017

- -

Qury whmid o LFTeRTEISsT (16.1)

SUL_L_BIG6T HMID QUIT(HESHIe0SHS56T 1,753,326.21 1,799,365.60

@ Wb ET FTHETBISHEHLD 2 _LIG T 60T EhLD 1,216,384.97 1,255,999.36

SHOTUITL_BIGET HMILD CLIT (555160 56T 1,048,578.35 1,150,805.68

& 6uf] ol i 1,276,868.13 1,569,483.90

6T & 6VTH1 G561 10,588,027.40 11,314,800.00

QaalliiLe HID S LI 2 LISTewThIST 1,843,383.84 2,004,450.00

TSP UIGHAU 36,940.63 35,350.35

Qurasid 17,763,509.52 19,130,254.86
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yensullensw opmiid wgFrrd tbgrer Casfw Flsry Fenu

2018 &b 31 gy1b FasFlujL_651 (1pigIDL bF UHLSSIT 155 dn D M1 SEMHESTEIT GHMILILBET

@Lf)]uu 17 2018 2017
. .
yevewwd Oersg (17.1)
Le»aulleweou|id LGIFTTBISENETUD LHSTH LeTL(HSS5ICouTenTd 5HLILISN 6T
CubLBSSIUSHSTE FYPSTLSS DT ausiayl (HF6 2,911,464.04 | 3,124,373.63
Yeos55600mbg al uBGusphamTar Hlspsfsmer sugigy B 29,377.59 33,698.19
Y-10.18.9).8. 5L $mF peoL(pmpULGSSIMSDETS S b G560 3,240,853.06 | 3,301,900.71
4.10.15. 9. .9 VIUVSSBH T QDMed ol 81,708.89 86,433.48
WGIFTTSF 6T B MeITd: GHWMLUILSNSTH CausvsS L QoTeTenm a1GH 560 1,047,083.32 1,105,550.04
Lewaullensy opmILd WGIFTTLD suphiged wHmib CHstall GemnssLIL(HS6) 2,619,865.27 2,953,718.32
AHP allGSS Plspddls Sl L miser 11,001,555.13 5,777,844.54
aflifliiy " L eb opmib HCerFemer BlapsASIl L hissir 22,507,818.27 7,042,021.86
Q1] WHYID HEHAISD (LPePHEDLD 4.983,608.65 2,501,478.66
seraTeniliL) whoib GopHurimen 4,623,661.84 | 2,536,249.94
QLTsLD 53,046,996.07 | 28,463.269.37
@mliy: 18 2018 2017
- -
I BUF CFTSF)
S QT dsbssr 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
Qurgzio 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
@iy 19 2018 2017
Ch- -
FréGhH QFrdGHser (19.1)
sTASTH ST 34,162.58 12,638.11
S|EVI6UEVS 2_LIGTewTThId6iedT LgmiolliL - -
QTS0 34,162.58 12,638.11
@oliy: 20 2018 2017
- -
BT ST S G5 FLDLDTEHT 6D6)SH(EIHLD
Beviins ki, LssTWe &/F). 0077769376 290,809.39 967,164.45
U6 6iTem LIGSTLD - -
Grgsio 290,809.39 967,164.45
@miiny: 21 2018 2017
- -
9" AnF QFsvailesmsisest
Gueavglas Crr Geusnsv 41,618.98 86,976,.73
A iglgardra 3539700 35,150.00
el Gsoay . 140677417 | 1,686,283.58
iﬂL’u}L aprma;/g,juuga{& Gremeussir 49.486.74 56.167.46
SOTEMILD o 14,000.00 -
usssflwr’_QL_T@g) FibLeTd
GQorésid 1,691,233.14 1,864,577.77
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Yensullews oHmitb wgHFTrid IfSTer G yBETT FewL

2018 yapui 31 gyib SaFlujL 61 Wiy bS LSBT B15Ean HMISHEHSHTET GHBILIL|d56iT

GOy 22 2018 2017

5 5
@515 EHBIS6IT
uenfl&ClBTenLdsTer sHUTHssT 186,738.50 |  120,255.00
Quorssin 186,738.50 |  120,255.00
Gmiy: 23 2018 2017

¢5- ¢5-
DEULIL|SEB6IT
Curg: speuLidasir 129,323.02 4,048.02
Quorésin 129,323.02 4,048.02
G 24 2018 2017

5- 5-
CLLVSH LD LODHMILD 6381 &bISE6T
NATA glglwid 6,560,893.26 | 6,560,893.26
Qurssi 6,560,893.26 | 6,560,893.26

spoy: 25 2018 2017
p.- 5-

T FTBIS & ClETEL_F6IT - CLPVSETLD

WplQsT Blepieneu

cpevger Werafliiy (25.1)

uT&eTD — ewwdGrT Geuett susssriy. WPPH 3563 glewm Gaifluflssrrsd
cpevgesrs Garent I NIn&asn (2018 gy gesrd, Qumn) wHmib

2_LIG [ EWThIS6T, L{eVewLod CFTS S, Heud OFrdhg LBg CsHiuiomeTid)
HLh% aUHLSHDBTET Frrdhsmevamer (2016 &2017 gygerd, Qurs) wHmib
2_LIG T GWTIBIHET, L{SVSHLDF @&n’g’s@, S|(HeuUF @5n’§3§[ Lb’g[ @ iomedTLD)

60,753,500.00
27,650,000.00

(12,902,798.55)

(8,822,878.35)

34,293,500.00
26,460,000.00

Grgsid 66?677,823010 | 60,753,500.00
@mlliy: 26 2018 2017
(GE ¢h-
61 rGeuevoriq uIsme
LIGHSTLY 603 (LPM LIGSTLD - _
Qi 2-palls sisr -] 118613.32
QTS sLd - 118,613.22
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@mitny: 27 2018 2017
- -
SLb% FHLSIDSHTRT ST TE0H6T
Brewr Wenas/upmragGemm (2016CsiiwrarsSlsr £ip &1 191 BIS6T WHDID OLIT(HSSIHSH6T) (34,01320) 34,01320
uenllaQsrenL_darer sshuT®sst (ewas srhur@sst 2016 whHmib 21,028.00 -
Flrer CHuioreTid — gy Heous QFTEEIss6T (2016 wHmib 2017 D6 HsEpdsTar GsiioreTid) (125,82104) -
Blrewr Gxiinorerid — Gurm) wHmIh 2 LsrentBisaT(2016 & 2017 hlews Gz iiiwmesrid) 1,417,70980 -
FlretL Cgiwrerid — Leveoiwd Qergg (2016 & 2017 ews Gsiiwmerid) 6,314,469.27 -
SIF epevgend Qaren (2016 &2017 gygerid, QU WHMID 2 _Li1%]T ST HISGST, L{6VHLOS 8.822.878.35
Qerg g1, 9| Heoud QFTHg g5 Gz iwrerid ’ ’ ’
QrgsLo 16,416,251.18 34,013.20
&M 28 2018 2017
¢h- H-
WeTILIg W OFIHSHVH6T
H1PFF B EHEHBTET (LpMHLIGHTLD(CLPSVSEIT (LpHILICISTLD - 65,100.00
B @ . o . (e g’. o ) 50,000.00 50,000.00
6TGILIT(HEIT 61 LPBIE 60T (H S TS sweuLiL]
Qurssid 50,000.00 | 115,100.00
@B 29 2018 2017
- -

L LOlewas/ Limm T 56w
p/QsT Blavisweu
STOLILIGBSSTET enas/LHDTESGemD
SL_[bD UHLSSDEBTET &JTdEH6VB6T

(18,138,343.91)
(11,581.47)
34,013.20

(5,625,716.01)
(12,478,614.70)
(34,013.20)

- (18,115,912.18) | (18,138,343.91)
@miiy: 30 2018 2017
- 5.

g et CEsren i iIndsn

S QsTewL — apsvgerid (2018 ygerid, Qumrgf) HMID 2 LI&TEwTBISET,L|VeMF QFTSFI,
S|Beud QFTHs 1651 Cpuiwrerid

12,902,798.55

Qurgszio

12,902,798.55
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auHLThS HMldsems 2018
emaullemev opmid wgFrrd erer Cafw yFlsrrFemu

2019 Gw 06

SHEMEVEUT

Yewa ullemev ommid gFrrd hTer ChFw HBlsTr Fewi.

Hewasuilewev wmmi waFTrid Warer Cafw oyFlaryr Fewuuisr 2018 igabui 31 9y

FEFW LT  (plypeuewL_bd UBHLSHIDSHTOT  BlBlbdm MMmibser LOHMID  eTemevTiu
Fl L fglurer whHmib euwiGuBSSe Coemeussr unpmlw 2018 oyib oy esrigeir 19 oy b

WHH CHrFw HewTshsTileydF FLU_ L gHer 12 opp LNMallsst LrsmrwmssT &enrdhds il
S 2 S 2 8y

SHWVEMLD Y HlLGlullest o mlHemss

Gumuiy YPlsenas B)GgIL 6T @) enenTdhdsLILIL (HeTarg].

L Uefluy.17.&. efl&srwrder

HEVTEHSBTIUITETT HENEVENLD S LIG]

Ulrdlser: QFwevmert, &&TaHTyd, SLTFenet wHMID HEHF (HHFI6U |eHLDF .

2019 Gw 06
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UBLTHS Mlsews 2018
yemaullemev wpmib wgFryh terer Cafw Hlarraem

SHemevau T

Yewasullewey ommitd wgFrrd smer CHFw HBlsTr FewL.

Lewasuilewsw wmmih wgFTrid Warer Csfw yFlarr Femuuiler 2018 yabui 31 gyib
BEB WL 6T  (plgeuedL_bdh QUHLSSH DETRT  BlPHlEdm DMIGHH6T WHMILD  6TeHedTU
FlLfglurer whHmib euwnbi@GuUBSSe0 Chemeuser upmlw 2018 oy oysvnrigesr 19 o ib
Qevsas Cafw sewrdsTileyd sl L ggler 12 b Ltflalleir Lysrrwrer sentdariiey

SHWVEMLD Y HlLGlullesr o njlsHenas

1. BIFlE FnDmIdBH6iT
1. 1 aflymwib

Hewasuilewsv mmitd g Fryh tbgmer Cafw yFarreemuuier 2018 HeFnpui 31 @)sv
2 siTaTeuTMTedT  [BlF  Blewevewiods dmmhHm LOHMID HSFHFuled  (1pigeusHL_Hb
DLENTIYDHTRT BIFF CFWOTHMEV FnDHMI, 2 MlewLD CPVSHATSFI6V LTHMBISET Fn DML,
5 HBHUIV (PLgUHL_HE H6WTIG DS TET HTFHILTUIFFD FnDMI LOPHMILD (LpdsdsIUILDT 6T
HTH S L (hd% AEJ O EF B EAD 6TEWITILI allerd s BH&H6U6VS 61637 1D
Curfliiyssener 2 srar_dsalw 2018 FelFbui 31 @60 wpiyauswL_bs 2)6vTIg M T6sT
BlBlddn DMI&H6T (G eVBIenD FeThTW S CFTFOlFDS @ lq Wy o TFwensvsnioliLilssr 154(1)
0 2 miliyswruLer CFisg eurdassiiu@n 2018 @er 19 b Gevdss Csflw
SWMTHEHTIIS YBSTTFFLL Solewrgid 1971 b gyevrigesr 38 b @evss BlF
B BTTFFL_L B THID THUT(H%EH ) @)ewTnhis 6T6vrd| LiswTLiLiledr &K1 HewTdaTiiley
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Preface

The Annual Report 2018 has been prepared
based on the information and performance of
achievements and special projects undertaken
by the National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
(NATA). In this report, the information has been
provided based on the key performance of NATA.

In term of clause 14 of the financial Act No. 38 of
1971 and Guidelines of Good Governance, the
NATA is required to prepare this Annual Report
contains the information on performance of
the Authority, annual accounts and the Auditor
General’s report.
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Message from the
Chairman

The National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
(NATA), is pleased to share this report which
provides a summary of the main policy decisions
and key activities undertaken during the period
1% January 2018 until 31" December 2018.

It is appropriate that | take this opportunity to
record our deep appreciation to the President
of Sri Lanka, H.E. Mr. Maithripala Sirisena, for his
enduring interest and support to the control
of tobacco and alcohol in particular and to the
prevention of all types of substance abuse in
general. The Hon Minister of Health, Dr. Rajitha
Senarathna, deserves our deepest gratitude for
his guidance and for reposing his faith in the
current Board to provide the leadership to the
tobacco and alcohol programs in the country. He
clearly visualizes the relevance and significance of
tobacco and alcohol control in the context of non
communicable diseases and within the overall
perspective of health.

| also need to place on record the excellent
cooperation and support that we constantly
receive from the senior officials of the Ministry
of Health, the Secretary of Health who has
introduced a number of measures to improve the
efficiency of the decision making processes, the
Director General who is extremely responsive to
our proposals and plans, and the Deputy Director
Generals and all of the staff of the Directorate of
Non-Communicable Diseases Directorate in the
Ministry. Their ready support in the spirit of being
genuine partners has facilitated the work of NATA
enormously.

The World Health Organization (WHO) has
been our strongest and most reliable partner,
along with the WHO FCTC Secretariat, and
the spontaneous support we receive from the
WHO at the Global, Regional and Country levels
cannot be overvalued. The resources and the
technical advice that we receive from WHO and
the FCTC have made a signal contribution to the
achievements in tobacco control in our country.
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I must appreciate the very thoughtful advice, wise
counsel and recommendations that | constantly
receive from our Board of Management of NATA.
They have helped us greatly to ensure that
the programmes of NATA are multi sectoral,
meaningful and productive. They are ever vigilant
to safeguard that NATA adopts and implements
the right policies and strategies and they have
been a great source of confidence to all of us
at NATA. The Board has supported the work of
NATA in numerous ways including in the direct
implementation of some of the field programmes
in their respective departments and institutions.

We have had a few vacancies in the Board as we
entered the year under review due to a number
of unavoidable reasons and have been able to fill
these with new members nominated by the Hon
Minister. The Board is an excellent mix in terms
of the breadth of representation of different
constituencies and the depth of expertise that is
directly relevant to the work of NATA.

NATA is extremely pleased that being an
institution under the Ministry of Health, we
continue to work in a seamless partnership
with the Ministry and its relevant programmes,
particularly in NCD. The cooperation we receive
from the Ministry is immeasurable and NATA
has been able to introduce a number of newer
initiatives in tobacco and alcohol control, most of
which are mentioned in this report.

We are pleased that the prevalence of tobacco
use as smoked tobacco is continuing to show a
slightly declining trend. This is evident from the
national level adult data from the STEPS survey
in 2014 as well as from the results of the very
recent Global Youth Tobacco Survey (GYTS) in
2015 and a number of spot surveys that have
been reported. But much remains to be done and
any complacency will be an invitation to seriously
risk the maintenance of the recent achievements.
Tobacco and alcohol continue to be the biggest
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killers in the country, exceeding the combined
mortality from the next six diseases put together.
They are also the main causes of much of the
chronic illnesses and the substantial loss of
productivity in the workforce and the resultant
economic losses.

The trends in the prevalence of alcohol uses
are more disquieting because the data we have
generated from the excise figures and recent
survey indicate an increase, albeit small, in
the number of people who regularly consume
alcohol. The overall per capita consumption is
also relatively high and when considering that a
large percentage of the population, particularly
the women, do not consume any alcohol at
all, the per capita consumption per drinker
is unacceptably high in our country. It is our
contention that we do not take the harm from
alcohol and the overall measures for the control
of alcohol seriously enough, and the country as
a whole may have to pay an unacceptably high
price for this foot-dragging. We need to take
the control of alcohol very seriously in the next
few years because the health, economic and
social harm that it could wreak is exceedingly
disturbing. H.E. the President has given lead to
the alcohol control Program and we need to work
together with the state organizations and civil
society groups closely to realize its objectives.

One of the acknowledged successful measures,
probably the most effective, and unanimously
recommended by the FCTC and the WHO as
well as other experts in the area for reducing
the initiation and use of tobacco and alcohol is
taxation. Sri Lanka needs to formulate a taxation
policy and formula and we have had negotiations
with the WHO seeking technical advice from
the experts in Thailand for this purpose. This is
of high priority and we need to get the Ministry
of Finance on board for its development and
implementation.
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The evidence that we have generated with the
help of tobacco taxation experts globally and
nationally confirms that the price of cigarettes
today is in real terms less than the prices twenty
years ago when adjustments are made for
depreciation and the increases in the per capita
income. If this is corrected by a realistic taxation
formula the government will derive considerably
larger tax revenue and more importantly there
will be a concomitant reduction in the number
of smokers. The global evidence is that this
reduction will come mainly from the children and
youth and the poor segments of the population.
Therefore, the government is missing a win-win
situation, from the dual perspectives of health
and economics.

The support of the H.E. President and the Minister
have been the main reason why we have been
able to introduce a number of types of effective
legislation, including amendments to the NATA
Act, to control the spread of the tobacco and
alcohol menace in the country. Of these a few
are worth mentioning and include the cabinet
decisions to ban sale of cigarettes within 100
metres of a school or a religious institution,
introduction of plain packaging of cigarette
cartons and packs and the wide acceptance of
the proposal to formulate a taxation formula for
tobacco and cigarettes, and also for alcohol. The
amendments also include a stringent definition
of “closed” spaces, and making some of the
violations cognizable offences and assigning
wider powers to the authorized officers.

The Ministry of Health and NATA proposed a
number of amendments to the NATA Act based
on the experience of the past eight years and
the cabinet has ratified most of them and they
are now being drafted as legal enactments for
presentation to Parliament. These amendments
will help to close the gaps that hinder or delay
the implementation of some of the provisions of
the Act.



We can state with a certain degree of confidence
that the NATA has grown to a position of some
stability both in terms of its structure as well as its
financial viability. The nucleus of permanent staff
and the temporary staff attached to projects have
been carrying an enormous volume of work and
for NATA to be able to move to the next stage of
growth and development additional staff will be
needed. In fact, the necessary cadre requirement
has been proposed and accepted by the senior
management and the Ministry of Finance and
NATA is taking steps to fill these positions in the
approved cadre.

The NATA, in collaboration with the Ministry
of Health, Nutrition and indigenous medicine,
and the other partners, particularly the WHO,
has been able to complete most of the planned
programme of work and a summary of this is
given in this report. We have the confidence that
with our collective effort of all our partners and
other stakeholders NATA will be able to lead the
movement to eliminate the harm from tobacco in
our country to a level where it will cease to be a
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public health problem within the next five years.
At the same time, we need to strive much harder,
mobilize all the support possible and introduce
all measures to contain and control the harm
from alcohol in the shortest possible time.

As Chairman, | must place on record the excellent
support and cooperation that | receive from the
NATA family, which although few in number,
willinglyand unreservedly carry anenormousload
of work. Finally | need to thank our international
partners, specially the World Health Organization,
the World Bank, Tobacco Free Kids and Data for
Health of the Bloomberg Philanthropies, the
University of Melbourne Cancer Division, the
University of Cape Town, University of Seattle, U.S.
and the International Lung Foundation.

Wishing a tobacco and alcohol-free Sri Lanka!
Dr. Palitha Abeykoon

Chairman
National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
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Mission

Vision

A country and people free of tobacco & alcohol  Mobilizing all social sectors to liberate our society
use from harm caused from tobacco and alcohol.

Objectives

To identify the board and specific policies in
relation to tobacco and alcohol (and other
narcotics) for protecting Public Health.

To eliminate tobacco and alcohol related
harm through the assessment and monitoring
of the production, marketing, advertising and
consumption of tobacco products and alcohol
products.

To make provisions discouraging persons
especially  children from smoking or
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consuming alcohol by curtailing their access
to tobacco products and alcohol products.

To promote and adopt and implement clean
air laws and restrict the availability spaces
to protect the community from tobacco and
alcohol.

To propose and promote all other measures,
including cessation tobacco and alcohol
programmes necessary to prevent harm from
tobacco and alcohol to the population



Functions

AdvisetheGovernmentontheimplementation
of the National Policy on Tobacco and Alcohol.

Encourage and assist health promotion
through the media sponsorships and
community-based projects.

Recommend measures to minimize the harm
arising from the consumption of tobacco
products and alcohol products.

Recommend measures in consultation with
the National Dangerous Drugs Control Board,
for the elimination or minimization of illicit
drug use.

Recommend legal, taxation, administrative
and other measures necessary for the
implementation of the National Policy on
Tobacco and Alcohol.

Monitor and evaluate the implementation of
such policy.

Evaluate the impact of policy measures and
advise the government on such modifications
to the Policy as may be necessary.

Encourage and assist research on issues
relating to Tobacco and Alcohol.

Monitor economic, health and other issues
relating to the production, consumption and
marketing of tobacco products and alcohol
products.

National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

Conduct, promote and co-ordinate research
in relation to the use of Tobacco and Alcohol.

Secure participation of all necessary
governmental, or non-governmental
agencies and private sector organizations in
the implementation of the National Policy on

Tobacco and Alcohol.

Encourage active community participation
in the implementation and monitoring of the
National Policy on Tobacco and Alcohol.

Receive communications from the public on
issues relating to tobacco and alcohol and
to recommend necessary action in relation
thereto the implementing agencies.

Act as the co-ordinating agency for all
activities carried out by the government and
nongovernmental agencies and organizations
relating to minimizing the harm arising from
the production and consumption of tobacco
products and alcohol products.

Monitor the progress of all investigations
relating to Tobacco and Alcohol.

Liaise with local, regional and international
organisations on issues relating to Tobacco
and Alcohol.
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Progress in the
year 2018

(1°t January to 31 of December 2018)

11.1.1. New Amendments

Proposed amendments to the National
Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol Act, No 27
of 2006

The proposed amendments to the National
Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol Act No 27 of
2006 intend to enhance the efficiency and the
effectiveness of the Authority as an independent
regulatory agency.

The amendments have been drafted by the
Legal Draftsman's Department and have been
reviewed by the NATA and have been sent back to
the Legal Draughtsman through the Ministry of
Health, Nutrition and Indigenous Medicine. The
Ministry of Health also made their observations
for the improvement of the provisions.

Key (proposed) Amendments

1. To select five members among the persons
who have wide experience and knowledge
in the field of medicine, law and other
fields related to tobacco and alcohol
control and prevention measures including
rehabilitation and counseling.

2. To enhance the power of the Authority
allowing to collect and maintain a data base,
relating to the rehabilitation centers and
from the importers, exporters, distributors,
dealers, retailers or warehouse operators.

3. To enhance powers of the authority,
allowing the Authority to collect, collate and
disseminate statistics and data on different
aspects of tobacco and alcohol.
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10.

11.

12.

To include Medical Officers of Health,
additional Medical Officers of Health and
Customs Officers, as Authorized Officers, so
that the said officers can take action under
the National Authority on Tobacco and
Alcohol Act.

To give additional protection/powers to the
Authorized Officers by including them as
Peace Officers within the meaning of the
Criminal Procedure Code, No 15 of 1979.

To enhance the powers of the Authorized
Officers by allowing them to stop and search
any person committing or attempting to
commit an offence and arrest and detain
any person for committing an offence, if
necessary.

To enhance the fines up to ten thousand
rupees to those who violate the general
provisions of the Act.

To impose restrictions for the employment
of persons below 18 years in places which
stores, sells or offers for sale any tobacco
product or alcohol product.

To prevent sale, offer for sale or permit for
sale of any alcohol or tobacco product within
the radius of one hundred meters from the
premises frequented mainly by children.

To display a billboard, containing a pictorial
health warning as may be prescribed.

To impose restrictions on displaying tobacco
or alcohol product, or their brand names,
logos, color combinations, including in the
Internet and Social Media.

To introduce plain packaging of cigarette
cartons and packs and other packings of
smoking devices.
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11.1.2. Legal Actions
Table 1 : Prosecutions undertaken by Excise Officers under NATA act

Offence of selling tobacco products to miners 985

Offence of smoking in public places 1,866

Table 2 : Prosecutions undertaken by Public Health Inspectors under NATA act

District Offence of Offence of selling  Offence of selling tobacco products
smoking in tobacco products  without health warning and the tar,
public places to miners nicotine content in each tobacco product.

Kandy Not reported Not reported Not reported

Ampara 03 Not reported Not reported

Anuradhapura 10 Not reported Not reported

Puththalama 11 Not reported Not reported

Colombo 11 Not reported Not reported

Kurunegala 04 Not reported Not reported

Monaragala 11 Not reported Not reported

Polonnaruwa 04 Not reported Not reported

Matara 03 Not reported Not reported

Badulla 16 02 00

Jaffna 0 0 53
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11.1.3. Capacity Building Programs for
Authorized Officers

The NATA Act is implemented through
Authorized Officers: Food and Drugs Inspectors;
Public Health Inspectors (PHI); Police Officers and
Excise Officers. NATA is continuously engaged
in improving their awareness of the NATA Act,
as well as the health hazards of tobacco and
alcohol, in order to strengthen their capacity
to implement the NATA Act effectively and
comprehensively. To this end, NATA organized
workshops for Authorized Officers to elicit the
challenges of implementing the Act as well as
possible remedial measures to be identified.
NATA conducted awareness programs on NATA
act for PHls in every district during the last year,
as a follow-up to the similar work in earlier years.
Authorized officers were given the opportunity
to participate in National and International
seminars to encourage them and to improve their
knowledge and to appreciate their services.

NATA has supported the establishment of smoke
free villages through Medical Officers of Health
(MOH) and Public Health Inspectors, together
with community participation. This was achieved
using a multi-disciplinary approach. The MOH
office collaborated with the Divisional Secretariat,
Pradeshiya Sabha, Police, Zonal Education office
by NATA. Local government authorities, Divisional
Secretaries, community and Religious leaders also
extended their support for the program. Over 30
such tobacco free towns have been established
and many new MOH areas are considering similar
work and there is a possibility that we would
have a large number of tobacco free zones in the
coming years.
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NATA started to conduct review programs for PHIs
to follow up the work done by them and to further
improve the effectiveness of the activities. Review
meetings were conducted for Western provincein
2018.The objective of this review program was to
monitor and evaluate the process of community
level tobacco and alcohol prevention. There has
been a great deal of enthusiasm for the tobacco
and alcohol prevention programs as well as for
the enforcement of the Act, and the expansion of
the tobacco prevention programs in many areas
around the country.

Overseas training programs are being arranged
for PHIs, who are actively engaged in tobacco and
alcohol prevention.

NATA provided an opportunity to present Tobacco
free zone work in 12t Asia Pacific Conference on
Tobacco and Health (APACT 12%). The abstract,
“Lessons learnt from the national program of
establishing Tobacco Free Zones in Sri Lanka’,
submitted to the APACT 12 conference by Mr.
T.G.S.L. Prakash who is a Public Health Inspector
(PHI), had been selected for a Rapid-Fire Session.
The conference was held in Bali, Indonesia on
14% September 2018. National Authority on
Tobacco & Alcohol (NATA) facilitated this valuable
opportunity, considering the importance of
appreciating the effort of Mr. T.G.S.L. Prakash and
all other PHIs in Sri Lanka and for showcasing
the work being done in Sri Lanka. This occasion
created a platform to share the idea of “Tobacco
Free Villages in Sri Lanka” with an international
audience.



Figure 5 & 6. PHI training program at Gampaha
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Figure 7, 8 & 9. PHIs were presented at the review
meetings.
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11.1.4. Establishment of Tobacco Free
Zones

The National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
of Sri Lanka has initiated a national program
of establishing ‘Tobacco Free Zones' (TFZs) for
combating SHS with the help of Public Health
Inspectors (PHIs) as main coordinators at the
grass root level in 2016. There are different
approaches employed to control tobacco
use all over the world and the World Health
Organization Framework Convention (WHO-
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FCTC) advocates for smoke- free cities as an
effective tobacco control strategy. Public Health
Inspectors together with communities with the
help of NATA established tobacco free zones in
Anuradhapura, Ampara, Badulla, Jaffna, Matara,
Galle, Gampaha, Hambanthota, Kandy, Kegalla,
Kalmunai, Kurunagala, Matale, Monaragala,
Mulathivu, Nuwaraeliya, Polonnaruwa, Puttalam,
Rathnapura, Trincomalee and Vauniya Districts.
163 smoking free zones have been established in
2018.

Figure 10. Smoke free zone board in Minuwangete.

Figure 11. Regional Director of Health Service is
addressing the tread union.

Figure 12.

Public Health Inspectors mobilizing
communities on tobacco control.
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11.1.5. Training of Trainers Programs
(TOT) for Field Officers in
Divisional Secretariats

NATA also conducted training of trainers
programs for the field officers in Divisional
Secretariat officers in Kaluthara, Ingiriya,
Dodangoda, Milleniya, Mathugama, Palinthu
Nuwara, Narammala, Gampaha, Polonnaruwa,
Alawwa, Nikaweratiya, Kegalla and Kurunegala
to ensure their support for field level activities of
Authorized Officers. These officers are engaged

with the community and educate them on the
harm of tobacco and alcohol. The field officers
trained at this training sessions are conducting
regular Tobacco and Alcohol prevention
programs in their divisions. After six months
NATA conducted a review program to evaluate
the alcohol and tobacco prevention activities
in the field and in general it was observed that
the trained officers have been actively engaged
with community leaders and community-based
health workers to reduce alcohol availability and

accessibility in their communities.

Figure 13.TOT program for field officers in Mathugama
Divisional Secretariat office.

>
-

Figure 15. TOT program for field officers in Alawwa
Divisional Secretariat office.

Figure 14. TOT program for field officers in Milleniya
Divisional Secretariat office.

Figure 16. TOT program for field officers in Narammala
Divisional Secretariat office.

Figure 17. Review meeting with field officers of Divisional Secretariat who success in alcohol and tobacco prevention
activities.
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11.1.6. Establish a Resource Team for
Tobacco and Alcohol Control in
Districts

A two-day residential Training of Trainers (TOT)
program has been held on 19" and 20* February
2018 at National Institute of Mental Health
(NIHM),Angoda. For the initial program Public
Health Inspectors representing Western Province
were selected, as they were authorized officers
according to the Act.

The workshop sessions include practical aspects
of prevention based on participatory learning
activities and focused on some of the following
aspects.

1. Treatment and rehabilitation

2. Attraction to the image of tobacco and
alcohol

3. Normalization and generalization

4. Promotion and new digital media

Around sixty PHIs were participated representing
several MOH areas in Western province.

National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

Figure 18. Establishment of resource team in Kaluthara
District.

Figure 19. Establishment of resource team in Kandy
District.
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11.1.7. Tobacco and Alcohol Prevention
Program for Elders and Families.

National Authority on tobacco and Alcohol
conducted programs targeting families and
elders with the support of “SiripodaWessa
Counseling Service”. Poverty hits them and their
families when they are addicted to tobacco and /
or alcohol and their poverty related problems are
aggravated by many factors. Because of tobacco
and alcohol consumption, they spend more and
more money to buy alcohol and/ or tobacco,
while use of harmful substances make them ill
and they need to spend their money to meet a
wide range of diseases ranging from weakness to
general ill health and to more serious and even
fatal illnesses like heart diseases and cancers.
This results in inability of earning money and the
poverty increases day by day in a vicious cycle.

Figure 20. Alcohol and Tobacco prevention programs
for newly formed villagers in Hambanthota.
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Figure 21. Alcohol and Tobacco prevention programs
for newly formed villagers in Matara

The programmes were held at some areas in
Colombo such as Weliwita, Kaduwela, Hokandara
and Borella with the participation of “Samurdhi”
holders, welfare societies in villages, parent
societies, buddhist societies, civil protection
committees and three-wheel drivers societies.
Officers of National Housing Development
Authority were trained to conduct tobacco
and alcohol prevention programs for newly
formed villages in Hambanthota, Matara and
Anuradhapura district.



11.1.8. Awareness Programs for
Children and Youth and Other
Communities

Children and youth are vulnerable and an
attractive target group for the tobacco industry.
It is well documented that the younger the age of
initiation of smoking, the more likely the person
is to become a regular smoker, and the less likely
he/she is to quit. It is important to ensure that
young people are aware of the harmful effects
of smoking, as well as to educate them on the
unethical marketing tactics of the tobacco
industry.

NATA, in collaboration with the Ministry of
Education conducted several school health
promotion programes for school children with
specificfocusonthe health hazards of tobaccoand
alcohol. Awareness programs were conducted at
several schools in Badulla and Colombo districts.

Training of trainers (TOT) programs on the health
hazards of tobacco and alcohol were organized
parallel to the competition for principals
and school teachers in Wayamba Provincial
Council.500 Principals participated in  the
program.

TOT program for teachers was also organized by
Provincial Education Department and Provincial
Council of North Western Province with NATA.
The program was a result of the program of
Tobacco and Alcohol Prevention Program for
principals. The program was held at Educational
Development Centre of Wariyapola on 10" and
11" of December 2018. The program was a full
day program and Sixty teachers representing
both Sinhala and Tamil mediums were expected
to be trained as trainers. Around fifty teachers
had participated to the program for both days.
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The objective of this training was to train other
teachers to enlighten students on tobacco and
alcohol prevention.

In concurrence with the day of substance abuse
prevention a special workshop was organized
to train around 120 officers of Ministry of
Industry and Commerce. The resources for these
workshops were provided by NATA.

National Dangerous Drug Control Board
organized another workshop for school children
and young groups in Moneragala in concurrence
with the day of prevention of substance use and
against substance venture. The program was held
on 15" and 16™ July 2018. A poster competition,
counselling service, marathon and a musical show
were held in order to attract young community
members and the school children.

A tobacco and alcohol prevention program was
held on 18" August 2018 at Piliyandala Bethel
Christian Church for 50 children. The program
was organized through PHIs of Piliyandala and
Kesbewa areas. (WGP Niroshan - Piliyandala and
Gayan Prasanna — Kesbewa)

Bureau of the Commissioner General of
Rehabilitation, rehabilitates the drug users
within one-year period and reenter them into
the society. Afterwards the rehabilitators were
observed and supported through district
centres. The bureau organized a 3-day progress
assessment program from 19" September 2018
to 21 September 2018 at Moratuwa with the
participation of 40 members. The main objectives
of this programmes were to review the progress
of rehabilitators, discuss their problems and take
relevant actions for remediation. NATA provided
resources for the success of this program.
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Figure 24, 25,26 & 27. Alcohol and Tobacco prevention program for school children in Colombo District.
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11.1.9. TOT Programme for Ayurvedic
Community Physicians

TOT programme for Ayurvedic Community
Physicians was completed successfully with the
Department of Ayurveda of the North Western
Province, on 2" November 2018. The main
objective of the programme was to build the
capacity of the ayurveda doctors for prevention of
alcohol and tobacco in North Western province. In
addition, Dr. Hemantha Amarasinghe of the NATA
smokeless tobacco project committee delivered a
lecture on control of smoke & smokeless tobacco
in Sri Lanka with the reference of NATA Act. The
topic “alcohol myths, truth and industry” was
discussed by Dr. Sameera Hewage. Around one
hundred twenty ayurvedic doctors participated
to the programme.

Figure 28 & 29. TOT program for Ayurvedic Community
Physicians
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11.1.10. Mobile Exhibition Stall

Awareness was done at following events using
NATA Mobile Exhibition Stall.

1. Scout program

Scouting being a non-formal education helps
young people to build character combined
with skills for which they are trained through
the scout programmes in order to produce
useful and worthy citizens. On the request
of Sri Lanka Scout Association (Colombo
district branch) an effective programme
was conducted by giving education and
communication material on the adverse effects
of alcohol and tobacco on annual Colombo
camporee for 53 time from 9" -14™ August
2018 at the Vihara Maha Devi Park. NATA was
conducted activities to increase the awareness
of about 1000 scouts on tobacco and alcohol
prevention at the camp.

2. WEDESA Medical exhibition

NATA provided Materials for WEDESA Medical
exhibition conducted by University of Sri
Jayawardanapura to increase the awareness
on tobacco and alcohol prevention.

3. Education Exhibition at Kuliyapitiya

U

The exhibition named as “Nineteen plus’
was organized by the Ministry of Education
for school leavers to guide and to introduce
them for the job market. With the request of
the Education ministry, a stall was maintained
at the exhibition, which was held on 3™ to 7t
October 2018 in Kuliyapitiya. Aware the youth
on tobacco and alcohol prevention and to
enlighten them and their parents on the health
effects due to tobacco and alcohol were done
parallel to the job fair.

4. Health Camp in Sri John Kothalawala Defence
University for school children and youths.
NATA contribute to the exhibition and made
the public aware of the harm from tobacco
and alcohol and ways of prevention using the
Mobile Exhibition Stall.

2018 Annual Report

27



National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

11.1.11. The Workshop on Counselling
Skills for the Preventing Non-
Communicable Diseases

Officers of “Healthy Life Style Centers” are
assigned officers, for counselling on preventing
Non-Communicable diseases. The use of tobacco
and alcohol positively correlated with having NCD
and adversely effect on NCD diseases. Therefore,
the workshop for preventing tobacco and alcohol
for officers of “Healthy Life Style Centers” was
highly effective and highly recommended.

A workshop series on counselling skills for the
preventing tobacco and alcohol, at the behest
of the NCD division of the Ministry of Health
was organized for officers of “HLC" centers over
the country. The initial programme was held on
17" August 2018 for Kalutara district officers. As
the initial workshop was successfully conducted,
the next programmes were held on 9 and 16t
of November for Kurunegala District officers
of "HLC" centers. On 21 December 2018, the
Anuradhapura district workshop was held with
100 officers which was higher than expected
participation. It is planned to continue this
programme to train all the HLC staff around the
country.

Figure 30. The workshop on counselling skills for the preventing Non-Communicable diseases in Anuradhapura.
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11.1.12. Advertising and Promotion
Campaign 2018
Plain Packaging

An advertisement on prevention of Tobacco use,
was published on 22" April 2018 on the back
cover of the Sunday Leader newspaper, and
another full-page advertisement was published
on 12* June 2018 in Treasure Island magazine.
The opportunity was used to publicise Plain
packaging which had then been approved by the
cabinet.

Quit Line

For the purpose of promoting 1948 Quit Line
service, the initial media campaign has been
held on Channel Eye TV channel during T-20
cricket match season. Ten second video clips with
the theme of “Choose Health, not Tobacco” was
telecast 16 times on 14" August 2018 during the
commercial-breaks of T-20 match. This helped
to promote the quitline as seen in the increased
number of calls to the centre.

On Television

The importance of using tele-marketing for
discouragingthe use of alcohol and tobacco has
been recognized by the NATA Board members
and they decided to focus more on a television
campaign. The media campaign was held from
15 December 2018 to 13™ January 2019. A 30
second video clip with the song of “Mawakage
Dethane” authored by Ven Elle Gunawansa was
telecast on three reputed television channels in
Sri Lanka.

National Television of Sri Lanka and the
Rupawahini chose to telecast the advertisement
on all 30 days in the 1% commercial break
during the main News telecasting. The same
advertisement was telecast on Independent
Television Network (ITN) and Derana television
channels in the weekends of the same month (10
days) during the 1t or 2" commercial breaks of
the main news telecasting.

This advertisement effectively communicated the
message of harm of tobacco and alcohol to the
public.

National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

11.1.13. Cessation Services

The Tobacco Quit Program is identified as a
priority area. The quit line was first established in
September2010atthe RDHS Office Anuradhapura.
The existing Quit line (Toll Free number: 1948) has
been strengthened with the introduction of new
software, by increasing the number of incoming
lines and extending its operating hours to 8.00
am to 4.15 pm. The services are toll free and
trained volunteer counselors are working on the
Quit line to enable us to provide an island wide
service.

A Quit line counseling training workshop was
conducted by experts from the University
of Washington, USA. Participants included
consultant psychiatrists, medical officers of
Mental Health, nursing officers working in
mental health clinics, counselors attached to the
universities and nongovernmental organizations,
public health inspectors and members of the
WHO. The consultant psychiatrists, together with
selected participants will carry this forward as the
resource persons for future such workshops.

A certificate course on counseling skills was also

conducted for volunteer counsellors involved in
the Quit line and an M Health service has been
established through social media.

Figure 31. Certificate course in psychological counseling
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11.1.14. World No Tobacco Day - 2018

The National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol,
in collaboration with the Ministry of Health,
Nutrition and Indigenous Medicine and the World
Health Organization, commemorated the World
No Tobacco Day (WNTD) on 07" June 2018 with
the participation of the policy makers, a widely
representative group officials of the relevant
government departments and institutions,
students of health science courses, stakeholders
and supporters of obacco control programmes.
The Hon. Minister of Health was the chief guest
and the WHO representative to Sri Lanka was the
guest of honour.

The Theme of the WNTD for the year 2018 was
Tobacco and Heart Disease and discussions
featured on this theme and also on Smokeless
Tobacco (ST) that has become a major health
problem in the country. The proceedings of the
day also included discussions on issues related to
tobacco industry interference, issues of taxation
and tobacco cultivation.
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Figure 32, 33,34 & 35. World no tobacco day 2018
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The conduction of this kind of high-level
advocacy event for the tobacco control ensured
the creation of deeper awareness among all of the
stakeholders and raised their level of motivation
for graeter advocacy for for policy reform on
matters related to tobacco industry interference,
taxation and tobacco crop substitution.

Thelocal experts participated astheresourceteam
for the technical sessions. All the stakeholders
and upper and middle level managers of the
relevant Ministries, Authorities, Departments,
NGOs, Technical and funding agencies, University
academia, media personnel, officers from the
Defense Forces and the Health Ministry personnel
participated at this advocacy event.

300 participants were mobilized by four technical
sessions about the harm of smoked and smokeless
tobacco, tobacco industry interference, and
taxation and tobacco crops. Commemorating
event of “World no tobacco day” is an effective
advocacy event to communicate tobacco control
massagers for the politicians as well as public.




11.1.15. International Conferences and
Experts Meetings

Eight session of the Conference of the Parties
(COP8) to the WHO Framework Convention on
Tobacco Control on held from 1%t - 6™ October
2018 in Geneva, Switzerland. It was the forum
for discussion on all aspects of global tobacco
policies and all the countries who are members
of the Framework Convention on Tobacco control
attended. Minister of Health (Ministry of Health,
Nutrition & Indigenous Medicine), H.E. A.LA.
Azeez (Ambassador, Permanent Representative
of Sri Lanka to UN), Chairman (National Authority
on Tobacco & Alcohol), Dr. Lakshmi Somathunga
(Board Member and Additional Secretary-Public
Health Service), Dr. Champika Wickramasinghe
(Deputy Director General, Non-Communicable
Diseases), Ms. Dulmini Dahanayake (Second
Secretary, Permanent Representative of Sri Lanka
to UN), Dr. Sujatha Senarathne (Private Secretary
to Hon. Minister), Mr. Parakrama Bandara (Board
Member and Assistant Secretary — Ministry of
Mass Media), Ms. Kusum Piyarathne (Member
and Aditional Secretary, Ministry of Industry
and Commerce), Mr. Sebastian Denzil Lakshman
De Mellawa (Board Member and Deputy
Commissioner of Excise,Excise Department), Dr.
Upul Gunasekara (Board member and Public
Relation Officer to the Hon. Minister) and Mr.
Lamith Suranga Dambadiwa Hewa (Inspector of
Excise, Excise Department) participated as the
delegates from Sri Lanka ta the COP 8.

Dr. Jayamal De Silva, Senior Lecturer in Psychiatry,
Consultant Psychiatrist and Resource Person
to NATA and Mr. Sajeewa Medawatta, Board
Member and Deputy Inspector General of Police,
Sri Lanka Narcotic Bureau were nominated for the
Second WHO-Thai Health Alcohol Workshop in
Bangkok, July 2018 by NATA.

National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

11.1.16. FCTC 2030 Project

SriLanka ratified the WHO Framework Convention
on Tobacco Control (FCTC) on 11 November 2003,
being the first country in Asia and the fourth in
the world to do so.

WHO and the FCTC Secretariat have launched
an initiative to assist countries to strengthen the
implemention of the measures to control tobacco,
in line with the Articles of the FCTC, until the year
2030. Sri Lanka is one of only15 countries selected
for this project. One of the criteria used in this
selection was the potential for meeting the FCTC
goals according to the timeline. The others were
the progress that has been made by the country,
the commitment of the political and managerial
leadership and the interest in the country for
such facilitation. A joint WHO / UNDP mission
visited Sri Lanka twice - in 2017 and 2018 to
discuss the modalities of implementation of this
project. The activities of this project commenced
in September 2018.

The FCTC project will ensure financial and
technical support to develop new strategies and
further strengthen the implementation of the
current policy measures in Sri Lanka.

The National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
(NATA) Act was approved by Parliament in 2006,
and was amended in 2015, which increased the
size of health warnings to 80% front and back
and increased the fines.

Further amendments that include expanding
smoke-free places, plain packaging of tobacco
products and restrictions sales of tobacco within
100 meters of schools were approved by the
Cabinet in 2018, and the necessary amendments
to the Act to implement these measures are
being drafted. These measures are in accordance
with the WHO FCTC. NATA also intends to develop
a tax formula that would calculate tobacco tax
increases every year that takes into account
increases in income and inflation.
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Under the FCTC 2030 project, Sri Lanka’s priorities
will be:

1) Development of a National Tobacco Control
Strategy 2018-2022

2) Protection of tobacco control policies from
tobacco industry interference

3) Strengtheninglegislationand enforcement,
including on plain packaging
4) Raising of tobacco taxes

5) Launch of a campaign on the harms of
smokeless tobacco

6) Integration of a comprehensive tobacco
use cessation program in primary care
sector

7) Support tobacco farmers to shift to
alternative livelihoods
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11.1.17. Global Adult Tobacco Survey

The World Health Organization and the Centers
for Disease Control (CDC), and the National
Institute of Health, USA, along with NATA have
initiated the Global Adult Tobacco Survey (GATS)
with the aim of enhancing country capacity to
design, implement, and evaluate tobacco control
interventions and help to monitor key articles of
the World Health Organization’s (WHO) Framework
Convention on Tobacco Control (FCTC).

GATS is a nationally representative household
survey that monitors tobacco use among adults
aged 15 years and older. This survey has been
conducted in over 30 Countries with some of
them having completed more than one repeat
survey. This will provide nationally representative
data on different aspects of tobacco use and
tobacco control policy implementation. This
survey is conducted using a standardized protocol
enabling cross-country comparisons as well as
changes over time, through repeat surveys.

The National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
and the Ministry of Health, with the Department
of Census and Statistics (DCS) will conduct this
survey in Sri Lanka in collaboration with the
Ministry of Health, WHO and CDC. Technical and
financial support for this study is provided by
WHO and the CDC.

The initial work for the study has already
commenced, which includes finalization of the
questionnaire, sample design and the finalization of
the budget. The preparatory work of this national
level survey will continue till the end of 2018, or
even the first quarter of 2019.The data collection
is scheduled to commence in mid-2019 and the
results will be available by end 2019.CDCand WHO
will provide with the latest data collection and
analysis equipment such as tables, computersand a
new central computer server for this survey, which
will become property of DCS on the completion of
the study. The questionnaire will be uploaded to



the tabs and the data collected will be directly
transferred to the central server where the
analysis will take place. A team from CDC visited
Sri Lanka in 2017 and conducted a workshop for
the technical staff of NATA and DCS, and further
training was provided for the DCS/NATA study
team in Atlanta, USA in April 2018.

National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

11.1.18. Smokeless Tobacco Prevention
Programs

NATA Smokeless Tobacco Project has been
carrying out a Survey on Smokless tobacoo use in
the Island with the collaboration of the University
of Colombo. This was a relatively large nationwide
study that included many of the risk groups. In
addition there have also been small scale sample
surveys that were undertaken simultaneously to
determine the prevalence. We have also drawn
from the data that is available at the Cancer
Control Unit as well as the data from the Faculty
of Dental Sciences of the University of Peradeniya.
All of these studies were very useful for the
introduction of the regulations which prohibited
the manufacture, import, sale or offer for sale any
type of smokless tobacco products. Authorized
officers are trained and awareness campaigns are
carried out to enhance their knowledge.

Voice of Blue Pea movement was established
to create a platform for cancer victims and their
co- survivors to express themselves and to get
maximum assistance for their survival. These
movements are now established in Apeksha
Hospital, Maharagama Institute of Dental
Sciences, University of Peradeniya, Rathnapura
and Karapitiya hospitals.

These victims are trained and their assistance

obtained for the awareness canpaings carried out
against smokeless tobacco and oral cancer.
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Figure 36. Consultative meetings with relevant
stakeholders on smokeless tobacco prevention
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11.1.19. Research on Big Tobacco Tiny
Targets.

This research was conducted within December
1t 2017 and January 29%, 2018, and NATA
performed visual surveys of tobacco advertising,
sale, displays, and purchase incentives located
within a 500-meter radius of school children’s
playgrounds,  kindergartens,
secondary schools in Colombo, Gampaha, Kandy,
Rathnapura, Matara, Badulla, Anuradhapura,
Kurunegala, Jaffna and Trincomalee in Sri Lanka.
Field Agents recorded instances of 05 tobacco
brands being sold, advertised, or displayed. Of
these, brands the most instances observed near
schools and playgrounds were Gold Leaf (156
instances), Dunhill (93 instances), and John player
(22 instances). All of these are owned by the
multinational tobacco company, British American
Tobacco company (BAT).

primary, and

The following report details the findings from our
investigations including :

« The most common forms of advertising were
Posters (71%), Billboards (22.4%) and other
Advertising (6.4%).

« Common tobacco product available for
purchase in these areas was Cigarettes (44.7%);
followed by smokeless tobacco products (42%)
and then bidis (13%).

« common point of sale in these areas was small
grocery stores (64.8%). This was followed
by street vendors (21.4%) and then Mobile
venders (7.8%).

« The most common tactic was that of selling
single cigarettes (100%) around schools and
playgrounds in various locations in Sri Lanka
that would be appealing to the youth.

. Tobacco displays at a child's eye level
(approximately 1 meter) were observed in 92%
of the locations investigated in Sri Lanka.

« 85% of the tobacco products were displayed
besides candy, sweets or toys.

Enforcement of banning point of sales products
should be strongly implemented. Expanding
the law of banning point of sale product display
within 500 radius (increased from 100m ) could be
recommended as a policy goal.
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Management Team/
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12.1 Organizational Chart
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12.1 Cadre Information at 31.12.2018

Position Salary Code Approved Cadre Actual Cadre
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Financial Progress

13.1 Financial Statement
NATIONAL AUTHORITY ON TOBACCO & ALCOHOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
Note 2018 (Rs.) 2017 (Rs.)

Assets
Non Current Assets
Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment 16 17,763,509.52 19,130,254.89
Intellectual Assets 17 53,046,996.07 28,463,269.37
Intangible Assets 18 2,360,872.46 2,357.890.00
Current Assets
Inventories 19 34.162.58 12,638.11
Receivables 26 - 11861332
Prepayments 28 50,000.00 115,100.00
Cash & Cash Equivalent 20 290,809.39 967,164.45
Total Assets 73,546,350.02 51,164,930.14
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accrued Expenses 21 1,691,233.14 1,864,577.77
Provision for Gratuity 22 186,738.50 120,255.00
General Deposit 23 129,323.02 4,048.02
Total Net Assets 71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35
Net Assets/ Equity
Capital 24 6,560,893.26 6,560,893.26
Government Grant 25 66,677.823.10 60,753,500.00
Accumilated Surpluses / (Deficit) 29 (18,115,912.18) (18,138,343.91)
Prior year Adjustments 27 16,416,251.18 -

71,539,055.36 49,176,049.35

The Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial
Statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAs).
These Financjal Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf.
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Director
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Additional Secretary
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NATIONAL AUTHORITY ON TOBACCO & ALCOHOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Operating Revenue
Government Grant - Recurrent

Capital Grant Amortization

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses
Personnel Emoluments

Supplies & Consumables used
Maintenance

Contractual Services
Depreciation & amotisations

Total Operating Expenses

Surplus/(Deficit) from Operating Activitics

Finance Cost

Bank Charges

Net Surplus/(Deficit) from Operating Activities

Note 2018 2017
Rs. Rs.
9 19,387,360.00 13,000,000.00
30 12,902,798.55 2
32,290,158.55 13,000,000.00
10 7,079,152.11 3,535,245.45
11 502,549.40 418,777.96
12 986,728.05 507,904.18
13 10,821,251.91 10,225,870.76
14 12,902,798.55 10,784,566.35
32,292.480.02 25,472,364.70
(2,321.47) (12,472,364.70)
15 9,260.00 6,250.00
(11,581.47) (12,478,614.70)
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NATIONAL AUTHORITY ON TOBACCO & ALCOHOL
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note 2018 2017
Cash flow from Operating Activities Rs. Rs.
Surplus/(Deficit) from Operating Activities (11,581.47)] (12,478,614.70)
Adjustment for:
Operating profit before working Capital charges (11,581.47)] (12,478,614.70)
Increase / (Decrease) in Depreciation 14 12,902,798.55 10,784,566.35
Amortization of Government Capital Grant 30 (12,902,798.55) -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 19 (21,524.47) 5,386.21
(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables 26 118,613.32 (118,613.32)
(Increase) / Decrease in Prepayments 28 65,100.00 (115,100.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposit 23 125,275.00 (141,951.98)
Increase / (Decrease) in Accruals 21 (173,344.63) 1,832,727.33
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions relating to emplyee cof 22 87,511.50 58,275.50
Cash Generated from Operations 190,049.25 (173,324.61)
Net cash flows from Operating Activities 190,049.25 (173,324.61)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Plant & Equipment 16.1 (56,571.00)|  (3,222,946.87)
Acquisition of Intangible assets 18.1 (246,698.00) (67,890.00)
Acquisition of Intellectual assets 17.1 (28,213,135.31)] (23,106,792.75)
Capital Re-imbursment (government grant) 25 27,650,000.00 |  26,460,000.00
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (866,404.31) 62,370.38
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (676,355.06) (110,954.23)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 967.164.45 1,078,118.68
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 290,809.39 967,164.45
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NATIONAL AUTHORITY ON TOBACCO & ALCOHOL
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018
Rs.

NATA Fund as at 01.01.2018 49,176,049.35
Adjustments in respect of the previous years 16,450,264 .38
Capital Grant Amortization for the previous years (8,822,878.35)
Adjusted Balance as at 01.01.2018 ; 56,803,435.38
Capital Reimbursment 27,650,000.00
Capital Grant Amortization (12,902,798.55)
Adjustment for the period -
Excess/(Deficit) for the Year (11,581.47)
Balance as at 31.12.2018 71,539,055.36
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13.2 Notes to the Financial Statement

NATIONAL AUTHORITY ON TOBACCO & ALCOHOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 315 December 2018

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of National Authority on Tobacco & Alcohol comprise the Statement of
Financial position, Statement of Financial performance, Cash flow Statement, Statement of change
in equity and notes to the financial statements. These statements are prepared in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAs) laid down by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL).

1.2 Functional and presentation Currency
The Financial Statements of the Board are prepared under the historical cost convention and used in

Sri Lanka Rupees (Rs.)

1.3 Government Grants
Board receives two types of Government grants namely,

- Capital Grant

- Recurrent Grant
The capital grant in accounted as per the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting standards. The
method sets up the capital grant as differed income which is recognized as income on basically the
useful life of the assets (eg. Annually depreciated value of the assets is accounted as income for the
years.)
Recurrent grant has been recognized income of the period and credited to the statement of financial

performance.
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2. ASSETS & BASES OF THEIR VALUATION
2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment is the cost of acquisition or construction together with

any expenses incurred in bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation has been provided from the date the assets are available for use up to the date of
disposal.

Plant and Equipment are depreciated on straight line method as mentioned below, further, that the
plant and equipment have been accounted at cost method as prescribed in the SLPSAS7 - Property
plant and Equipment.

The principle annual rates are used as follows:

Building & Fittings 25 Years (4%)

Machinery and Equipment 10 Years (10%)
Furniture & Fittings 10 Years (10%)
Computers 5 Years (20%)
Audio & Video visual S Years (20%)
Vehicles 10 Years (10%)
Others 10 Years (10%)

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation rate, useful life of
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectation.

Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant and equipment in the order to
restore or maintain the future economic benefit expected from originally assessed standard of

performance is recognized as an expense when incurred.

2.2 Intangible Assets
Expenditure incurred for purchasing software is recognized as an intangible asset and these assets
are amortized over their useful lives. The principle annual rate is used as follows:

Intangible Assets 20 Years (5%)
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2.3 Intellectual property
Expenditure incurred on activities for strengthening the prevention of tobacco & alcohol is

recognized as an intellectual assets. The activities are identified as awareness / advocacy program,
capacity building, implementation of the NATA act, research & information system and monitoring
& evaluation. Intellectual properties are amortized over their useful lives.

The principle annual rate is used as follows:

Intellectual Assets 5 Years (20%)

3. INVENTORIES

The inventories have been valued at cost.

4. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and Cash Equivalent comprise cash in hand, cash at bank.

5. LIABILITIES
Liabilities are recognized in the balance sheet when there is a present obligation as a result of past
events. Obligation payable at the demand of the creditors or within one year of the balance sheet

date is treated as current liabilities in the balance sheet.

6. REVENUE RECOGNITION
The capital grant has identified as deferred income. Recurrent Grant has been recognized as income
of the period and credited to the Statement of Income. All income has been recognized on an

accrual basis.

7. CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The company contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees as Provident Fund and

Trust Fund contribution respectively.

8. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method.
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National Authority on Tobacco & Alcohol
Notes to the Financial Statement for the yvear ended 31.12.2018

Note: 9 2018 2017
Recurrent Reimbursement Rs, Rs.
Recurrent Reimbursement (9.1) 19,387.360.00 13,000,000.00
Total 19,387,360.00 13,000,000.00
Note: 10 2018 2017
Personnel Rs. Rs.
Staff Salaries 6,267,008.25 2,926,883.27
EPF Contribution 348,032.72 213,169.55
ETF Contribution 87.073.18 53,292.39
Overtime 289.526.46 283.624.74
Gratuity expenses 87 511.50 58,275.50
Total 7,079,152.11 3,535,245.45
Note: 11 2018 2017
Supplies & Consumerbles Items Rs. Rs.
Stationery and office requisites 85.429.87 19,011.21
Fuel 355,801.53 333,516.75
Food / Refreshments 61,318.00 66.250.00
Total 502,549.40 418,777.96
Note: 12 2018 2017
Maintenance Rs. Rs.
Vehicle maintenance 639,001.55 33731418
Office equipments maintenance (Computers & Machinery) 347,726.50 170,590.00
Total 986,728.05 507,904.18
Note: 13 2018 2017
Contractual Services Rs. Rs.
Postal charges 15.590.00 37.170.00
Telephone / Internet charges 202,117.44 212,923.28
Building Rent / Cleaning service 8,536,155.72 8,443,954.62
Electricity charges 685.210.69 796,966.86
Administrative board member fee & Refreshments 1,060,535.81 643.073.00
Advertisment /_other expenses 321,642.25 91,783.00
Total 10,821,251.91 10,225,870.76
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National Authority on Tobacco & Alcahol
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31.12.2018

Note: 14 2018 2017
Depreciation - Plant Machinary and Equipment Rs. Rs.
Building & Fittings 77.808.00 77,808.00
Machinery & Equipments 155,439.75 151,835.37
Fumiture & Fittings 138,386.05 138,386.05
Compulers 450,975.97 450,975.97
Vehicles 1,414.350.00 1.414,350.00
Audio & video visual 599,725.00 599,725.00
Other 4.341.40 4,182.35
Depreciation -_Intellectual property
Empower the community in promotion of prevention of new users of tobacco & alcohol. 1,041,457.88 1,041,457.88
Strengthen the tobacco quit programme 11,232,73 11,232.73
Facilitate the implementation of the NATA Act. 1,065.813.9] 1,048,313.64
Capacity building of the NATA office 2881116 28811.16
Development of an alcohol harm reduction programme 368.516.68 368,516.68
Reduction of supply chain and demand on tobacco & alcohol 984,572,177 984,572.77
Capacity Building Programmes 2,142,887.81 1,444,461.14
Awareness Programmes & Advocacy Programmes 2.643,456.20 1.760,505.47
Research & Information system 849,789.03 625,369.66
Monitoring & Evaluation 807.339.72 634,062 48
Depreciation - Intangible Assets
Intangible Asscts 117,894,50 -
Total 12,902,798 .55 10,784,566.35
Note: 15 2018 2017
Finance cost Rs. Rs.
Bank Charges 9,260.00 6,250.00
Total 9,260.00 6,250.00
Note: 16 2018 2017
Plant & Equipment (16.1) Rs. Rs.
Building & Fittings 1,753,326.21 1,799.365.60
Machinery & Equipments 1.216.384.97 1.255.999.36
Furniture & Fittings 1.048,578.35 1,150,805.68
Computers 1,276,868.13 1,569,483.90
Vehicles 10,588,027.40 11,314,800.00
Audio & video visual 1,843,383.84 2,004,450.00
Other 36,940.63 35.350.35
Total 17,763,509.52 19,130,254.89
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National Authority on Tobacco & Alcohol
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Note: 17 2018 2017
Intellectual property (17.1) Rs. Rs.
Empower the community in promotion of prevention of new users of tobacco & alcohol. 2.911,464.04 3.124.373.63
Strengthen the tobacco quit programme 29.377.59 33.698.19
Facilitate the implementation of the NATA Act. 3,240,853.06 3,301,900.71
Capacity building of the NATA office 81,708.39 86,433.48
Development of an alcohol harm reduction programme 1,047.083.32 1,105,550.04
Reduction of supply chain and demand on tobacco & alcohol 2,619.865.27 2,953,718.32
Capacity Building Programmes 11,001:555.13 5,777.844.54
Awareness Programmes & Advocacy Programmes 22,507,818.27 7.042,021.86
Research & Information system 4,983,608.65 2.501,478.66
Monitoring & Evaluation 4,623,661.84 2.536.249.94
Total £3,046,996.07 28,463,269.37
Note: 18 2018 2017
Intangible Assets Rs. Rs.
Intangible Assets (18.1) 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
Total 2,360,872.46 2,357,890.00
Note: 19 2018 2017
Inventories (19.1) Rs. Rs,
Stationery items 34,162.58 12,638.11
Office equipment maintenance - -
Total 34,162.58 12,638.11
Note: 20 2018 2017
Cash & Cash Equivalents Rs. Rs.
Bank of Cevlon, Battaramulla A/C 0077769376 290,809.39 967,164.45
Cash in Hand - *
Total 290,809.39 967,164.45
Note: 21 2018 2017
Accrued Expenses Hs. Rs.
Over Time 41,618.98 86,976.73
News papers 153.956.25 -
Fuel expenses 25,397.00 35,150.00
Building Rent / Cleaning service 1,406,774.17 1,686,283.58
Electricity 49,486.74 56,167.46
Staff Salaries 14,000.00
Total 1,691,233.14 1,864.577.77
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National Authority on Tobacco & Alcohol
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31.12.2018

Note: 22 2018 2017
Reserves Rs. Rs.
Provision for Gratuity 186,738.50 120,255.00
Total 186,738.50 120.255.00
Note: 23 2018 w7
Deposit Rs. Rs.
General Deposit 129,323.02 4.048.02
Total 129,323.02 4.048.02
Note: 24 018 2017
Capital & Reserves Rs, Ra.
NATA Fund 6,560,893.26 6,560,893 26
Total ) 6,560,893.26 6,560,893.26
Note: 25 018 007
Government Grant - Capital Re. Rs.
Balance B/F 60.753.500 00 34,293 500 00
Capital Reimbursment (25,1 ) 27,650.000.00 26,460 004 00
Vehicle - Micro Van WPPH 3563 by the Treasury - -
Capital Grant Amortization ( 2018 Depreciation on Plant & equipments,Intellectual property Intangible Assets) (12,902,798.55)
Prior year Adjustments (2016 & 2017 Depreciation on Plant & equipments,Intellectual property.Intangible Assets) (8,822 ,878.35)
Total 66,677 ,823.10 61,753,500.00
Note: 26 2018 37
Receivables Rs. Rs.
Festival Advance = E
[nstress |oan - 118.613.32
Total - 118,613.32
Note: 27 2018 2017
Prior year Adjustments Rs. Rs.
Accumnilmed Surpluses / Deficit (Under Depreciation 2016 - Buillding & Fittings ) {34,013 200 3401320
Provision for Gratuity (Over provisions 2016 & 2017) 21,028 00 .
Accumilated Depreciation - Intangible Asscts (Depreciation for 2016 & 2017) (12582104}
Accumilated Deprecianon - Plant & Equipments (Over Depreciation for 2016 & 2017) 1.417.709 80
Accumilated Depreciation - Intellectual Property (Over Depreciation for 2016 & 2017) 631446927 -
Government Grant Capital{ 2016 & 2017 Depr on Plant & equip Jntellectual propenty, Intangible Assets B 822 878 35
Total 16,416,251.18 34,013.20
Nate: 18 2018 2017
Prepayments Rs. Rs.
Advances for programmes { Capital Advance) - 63,100.00
Deposit for the fuel supplier 50,000 DN 50,000 00
Total 50,000.00 115,100.00
Note: 29 2018 W17
Accumilated Surpluses ¢ Deficit Rs. Rs.
3/F Balance (18,138,343 91) 15.625,716.01)
Surplus/{Deficit) for the period (11L381.47) (12478614 70)
Prior Year adjustmen) 34,013.20 (34,013.20)
Total (18,115,912.18)]  (18,138,343.91)
5
Note: 30 1018 2017
Capital Grant Amortization Rs. Rs.
Government Grant - Capital ( 2018 Depreciation on Plant & equipments, Intellectual property. Intangible Assets) 12,902,798.55 -
Total 12,902,798.55 -
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13.3 Auditor General's Report

My No: HSM/D/NATA/1/18/96 Date: 06" May 2019

Chairman
National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

Auditor General’s report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018 on the
financial statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31 December
2018 of National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

The above report is sent herewith.

W.P.C. Wickremaratne
Auditor General

Copies: Secretary- Ministry of Health, Nutrition and Indigenous Medicine
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My No: HSM/D/NATA/1/18/96 Date: 06" May 2019

Chairman
National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

Auditor General’s report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018 on the financial
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the
National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol

1. Financial Statements
1.1 Opinion

The audit of the financial statements of the National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol for the
year ended 31 December 2018 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, was carried out under my direction in
pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with provisions of the National Audit Act No. 19 of
2018 and Finance Act No. 38 of 1971. My comments and observations which | consider should
be reported to the Parliament appear in this report.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the section on qualified
opinion in my report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Authority as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards.

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) SriLanka Public Sector Accounting Standards

The following observations are made.

(i) According to the paragraph 47 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard
3, material prior period errors should be corrected retrospectively in the first set
of financial statements authorized for issue after their discovery by restating the
comparative amounts for prior period presented in which the error occurred.
However, without doing so, a sum of Rs. 16,416,251 had been adjusted to the
Authority Fund and 06 items into the financial position statement as at 31
December 2018 as prior year adjustments.

(i) According to the paragraphs 23 and 28 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standard 14, details relating to the transactions made by the members of the
Board of Directors with the related parties had not been disclosed in the financial
statements.
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(iii) According to the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 19, actions had not
been taken to create an asset for payment of employees benefit, to assess the
present value of the employees benefits which should be paid to the employees
in future by an actuarial valuer and if there is a loss or profit when compared with
the fair value of the asset, to recognize such amount in the accounts.

(iv) According to the paragraph 21 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard
20, intangible assets should be recognized only in the instances where the
Authority has the power to control the assets and receive future economic
benefits. Contrary to that a sum of Rs.67,948,653 spent on awareness programmes
in the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 had been identified as intangible assets instead
of identifying as recurrent expenditure.

(b) Accounting deficiencies

The following observations are made.

1.3 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

(i) Accrued expenses amounting to Rs.710,408 as at 31 December 2018 had not been
taken in to accounts and a sum of Rs.715,831 paid for the previous year had been
identified as an expense of the year under review.

(ii) Although audio and video tapes with carrying value of Rs.1,843,385 as at 31
December 2018 should be recognized as intangible assets, it had instead been
recognized under property plant and equipment.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities, under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. | believe that the audit evidence
I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

1.3 Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing matters related to going concern and using
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the
Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial
reporting process.

As per the Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Authority is required to
maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to
enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared of the Authority.

1.4 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
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to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| have communicated with those charged with governance regarding the significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | have identified during

the audit.

2. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Special provisions are included in respect of the following requirements in the National Audit Act
No. 19 of 2018.

- Interms of the requirements of section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, except
for the effects of the matters described in the section on the ‘Basis for the Audit Opinion” of
this report, | obtained all information and explanations required for the audit and as far as it
appears from my inspection, the Authority had maintained proper financial reports.

- Interms of the requirement indicated in Section 6(1)(d) (iii) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of
2018, the financial statements of the Authority presented are consistent with the preceding
year.

- Interms of the requirement indicated in Section 6(1)(d) (iv) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of
2018, the recommendations made by me in the previous year have been included in the
submitted financial statements.

Onthe basis of the procedures followed and evidence obtained and being restricted within the material
matters, nothing that warrants the making of the following statements did not come to my attention.
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o In terms of the requirement of section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, except

for the following observations, whether the scheme has not complied with any applicable
written law, or other general or special directions issued by the governing body of the

Authority;

Reference to Laws, Rules, Regulations
etc.

Description

(a) National Authority on Tobacco and
Alcohol Act No. 27 of 2006
(i) Section 3(1) (b)

Although an officer, above the rank of a Senior
Secretary of the Ministry of Justice should be
appointed as a member of the Board of
Management of the Authority, the said member
had not been appointed even up to 31 March
20109.

(ii) Section 22 (2)

Although all funds received to the Authority by
way of gifts, grants or donations from the
Consolidated Fund and from sources within or
outside Sri Lanka or abroad should be credited to
the Fund maintained in favour of the Authority, a
sum of Rs 5,871,048 received as foreign grants had
not been accounted and a sum of Rs.47,037,360
received as Government Grant during the year
under review had been directly credited to the
Government Grant account without crediting to
the Fund account

(b) Financial Regulations 625(3) of
the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka

Even though cash remittances given as grants by
various parties should be deposited in the
Treasury, foreign grants amounting to
Rs.27,982,925 received directly to the Authority
since the year 2016 to the year 2018 had not been
deposited in the Treasury. Provisions had not been
made in the estimates for the use of such grants
and other than the cashbook and the payment
vouchers, which showed how the grants had been
utilized, the relevant files and financial statements
were not presented to the audit.

(c) Section 6.5.1 of the Public
Enterprises Circular No. PED/12
dated 02 June 2003

A draft annual report of the Authority had not
been submitted along with the annual financial
statements.

(d) Public Finance Circular No.
01/2014 dated 17 February
2014

Updated organizational structure of the Authority,
approved cadre and details relating to the actual
cadre, budget, master procurement plan imprest
requirement plan and internal audit plan had not
been included in the action plan prepared for the
year under review.
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e Interms of the requirement of Section 12(f) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, whether
the Authority has not performed according to its powers, functions and duties.

A sum of Rs.1,000,000 had been sent to the Director General of Health Services by the
Authority during the year under review for a function held to felicitate the Minister of Health,
Nutrition and Indigenous Medicine even though the said activity was not in compliance with
the activities mentioned in the paragraph 14 of the National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
Act No.27 of 2006.

W.P.C. Wickremaratne
Auditor General
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